
Philip Bostock, Chief Executive 

Bindu Arjoon, Assistant Chief Executive  

 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN 
Tel: 01392 277888        www.exeter.gov.uk 

Direct dial: 01392 265275 

Fax: 01392 265268 

email: sarah.selway@exeter.gov.uk 

Our ref:  
Your ref: 
 

 

To the Chair and Members  
of the Scrutiny Committee - Resources 
 

 

 

 

 
AGENDA FOR 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 

 

 

The Scrutiny Committee - Resources will meet on WEDNESDAY 26 JANUARY 2011, commencing 
at 5.30 pm, in the Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter to consider the following 
business.  If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Sarah Selway, 
Member Services Officer on Exeter 265275. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street. 

 Pages 

Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

 

1 MINUTES  

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2010. 
  
 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare personal and prejudicial 
interests, including the nature and extent of such interests, in relation to business 
on the agenda, before any discussion takes place on the item.  Councillors 
requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer prior to the 
day of the meeting.  
 

 

3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - 
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 

 RESOLVED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of items 15 
and 16 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 4 of Part I, Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

 



4 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 19  

 A period of up to 15 minutes will be set aside to deal with questions to the 
Committee from members of the public. 
 
Details of questions should be notified to the Assistant Chief Executive at least 
three working days prior to the meeting. Further information and a copy of the 
procedure are available from Member Services (265275) also on the Council web 
site: http://www.exeter.gov.uk/scrutinyquestions   
 

 

5 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING 
ORDER 20 

 

 To receive questions from Members of the Council to appropriate Portfolio 
Holders. 
  
 

 

6 AUDIT PLAN 2010/11  

 The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will present the plan to Members 
– plan circulated 
  
 

1 - 16 

7 CERTIFICATION WORK REPORT 2009/10  

 The Council’s External Auditor, Grant Thornton, will present the report to 
Members – report circulated 
  
 

17 - 28 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

8 REVENUE BUDGET PROPOSALS 2011/12  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated 
  
 

29 - 52 

9 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2011/12-2013/14  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated 
  
 

53 - 72 

10 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2011/12  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated 
  
 

73 - 82 

11 LICENSING THE GUILDHALL FOR WEDDINGS AND CIVIL PARTNERSHIPS  

 To consider the report of the Head of Corporate Customer Services – report 
circulated 
  
 

83 - 84 



MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 

 

12 NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2011/12  

 To consider the joint report of the Head of Contracts and Direct Services, Head of 
Treasury Services and Acting Head of Estates - report circulated 
  
 

85 - 94 

13 ESTIMATES 2011/12  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services – report circulated 
  
 

95 - 124 

14 THE SHERIFF'S COACH  

 To consider the report of the Head of Corporate Customer Services – report 
circulated 
  
 

125 - 126 

PART II: ITEMS SUGGESTED FOR DISCUSSION WITH THE PRESS AND PUBLIC EXCLUDED 

 

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

15 RESTRUCTURE OF THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND CASHIERING 
SERVICES 

 

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Service seeking approval to a 
restructure of the Accounts Payable and Cashiering Services – report circulated 
to members 
  
 

127 - 134 

16 STAFFING - HOUSING BENEFITS  

 To consider the report of the Head of Treasury Services seeking approval to a 
restructure of Housing Benefits – report circulated to members 
  
 

135 - 138 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
 The next Scrutiny Committee - Resources will be held on Wednesday 23 

March 2011 at 5.30 pm  
 
 

 

FUTURE BUSINESS  

 
 The schedule of future business proposed for this Scrutiny Committee and 

other Committees of the Council can be viewed on the following link to the 
Council’s website:http://www.exeter.gov.uk/forwardplan 
Councillors can view a hard copy of the schedule in the Members Room. 
 

 
 

 
 



Membership - 
Councillors Coates (Chair), Cole (Deputy Chair), M A Baldwin, Branston, Crow, Hobden, Macdonald, 
Mitchell, D J Morrish, Morris, Spackman, Thompson and Wardle 
 

 

Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site 
http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you 
how you can ask a question at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Member 
Services Officer on (01392) 265275 for further information. 

 

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print 
on request to Member Services on 01392 265111. 

 
Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us 
know. Contact Member Services 01392 265197 or email member.services@exeter.gov.uk  



D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

 2
0
1
0

E
xe

te
r 

C
it

y 
C

o
u
n

ci
l

A
u
d
it

 p
la

n
 2

01
0-

11

G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 P
u

b
li

c
 S

e
c
to

r

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
1

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
n

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

20
10

-1
1 

A
u
d

it
 P

la
n

T
h

is
 i
s 

o
u
r 

au
d

it
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 f

o
r 

E
xe

te
r 

C
it

y 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
(t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l)

. 
 I

t 
se

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 

th
at

 w
e 

w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

u
t 

in
 

d
is

ch
ar

gi
n

g 
o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 

to
 g

iv
e 

an
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

an
d

 a
 c

o
n

cl
u
si

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

ac
h

ie
v
in

g 
v
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

. 

S
e
e

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 r
is

k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

W
e 

se
t 

an
 i
n

d
ic

at
iv

e 
fe

e 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0.

 I
n

 s
et

ti
n

g 
th

is
 f

ee
, 
w

e 
as

su
m

ed
 t

h
at

, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

e 
tr

an
si

ti
o

n
 

to
 I

F
R

S
 i
s 

a 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
ch

an
ge

 a
n

d
 c

h
al

le
n

ge
, t

h
e 

ge
n

er
al

 l
ev

el
o

f 
ri

sk
 i
n

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e 
si

gn
if

ic
an

tl
y 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
at

 i
d
en

ti
fi

ed
 f

o
r 

20
09

-1
0.

 F
o

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e 

20
09

-1
0 

au
d
it

 w
e 

h
av

e 
u
p

d
at

ed
 o

u
r 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 a

u
d
it

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t.
 

S
e
e

E
n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

S
e
e

V
a

lu
e
 f
o

r 
M

o
n
e
y
 a

u
d
it

S
e
e

A
u
d

it
 f
e
e

S
e
e

O
u
tp

u
ts

 a
n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e

S
e
e

A
p
p
e
n
d

ix
 A

In
 A

u
gu

st
 2

0
10

 a
 n

ew
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 l
o

ca
l 
V

al
u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 a
u
d
it

 w
o

rk
 w

as
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. 
F

ro
m

 2
01

0-
11

 w
e 

w
ill

 g
iv

e 
o

u
r 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 c

o
n

cl
u
si

o
n

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

w
o

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

cr
it

er
ia

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
.

T
o

 c
o

ve
r 

th
e 

m
at

er
n

it
y 

le
av

e 
o

f 
Ju

lie
 M

as
ci

, 
yo

u
r 

au
d

it
 m

an
ag

er
,
w

e 
h

av
e 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 P

er
m

in
d

er

S
et

h
i
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

te
am

.  
In

 a
d
d
it

io
n

, w
e 

ar
e 

in
tr

o
d
u
ci

n
g 

a 
n

ew
 i
n

 c
h

ar
ge

 a
u
d
it

o
r,

 L
lin

o
s

W
ill

ia
m

s,
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

te
am

 i
n

 t
h

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.
A

s 
in

 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

ye
ar

s,
 w

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

ts
 f

ro
m

 a
cr

o
ss

 G
ra

n
t 

T
h

o
rn

to
n

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
.

W
e 

h
av

e 
u
se

d
 t

h
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

fe
es

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
20

10
-1

1 
to

 c
al

cu
la

te
 

yo
u
r 

au
d
it

 f
ee

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

at
 t

h
e 

p
re

sc
ri

b
ed

 l
ev

el
.

Y
o

u
 w

ill
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

 n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

s 
an

d
 p

la
n

s 
fr

o
m

 u
s 

th
ro

u
gh

o
u
t 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d

e 

yo
u
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
d

et
ai

le
d

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

u
lm

in
at

in
g 

in
 t

h
e

is
su

e 
o

f 
o

u
r 

A
n

n
u
al

 A
u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

W
e 

h
av

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 o

u
r 

in
d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

th
e 

A
u
d
it

 a
n

d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

b
el

ie
v
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
an

y 
m

at
te

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

b
ro

u
gh

t 
to

 y
o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

.
W

e 
co

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

's
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 i
n

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

Page 2



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
2

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
cc

o
u
n

ts
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

p
la

n
 s

et
s 

o
u
t 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 w

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

 t
o

 u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 i
n

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

20
10

-1
1 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 a

t 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l. 

 T
h

e 
p

la
n

 i
s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 o

u
r 

ri
sk

-b
as

ed
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 a

u
d
it

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

an
d
 i
s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 o

u
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

p
o

te
n

ti
al

 b
u
si

n
es

s 
an

d
 a

u
d
it

 r
is

ks
 t

h
at

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 b

e 

ad
d
re

ss
ed

 b
y 

o
u
r 

au
d
it

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 i
n

 p
la

ce
to

 

m
it

ig
at

e 
th

es
e 

ri
sk

s.

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l’s

 a
cc

o
u
n

ts
 a

re
 a

n
 e

ss
en

ti
al

 m
ea

n
s 

b
y 

w
h

ic
h

 i
t 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e 

st
ew

ar
d
sh

ip
 o

f 
re

so
u
rc

es
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i
n

 t
h

e 
u
se

 o
f 

th
o

se
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
. I

t 
is

 t
h

e 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
to

:

•
en

su
re

 t
h

e 
re

gu
la

ri
ty

 o
f 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
b

y 
p

u
tt

in
g 

in
 p

la
ce

 s
ys

te
m

s 
o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 f

in
an

ci
al

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

ar
e 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
au

th
o

ri
ty

;

•
m

ai
n

ta
in

 p
ro

p
er

 a
cc

o
u
n

ti
n

g 
re

co
rd

s;
 a

n
d

•
p

re
p

ar
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
, w

h
ic

h
 p

re
se

n
t 

fa
ir

ly
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 o

f
th

e
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
an

d
 i
ts

 e
xp

en
d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 i
n

co
m

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

o
rt

in
g 

S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

(I
F

R
S
).

O
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

W
e 

ar
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 a

u
d
it

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 t

o
 g

iv
e 

an
o

p
in

io
n

 a
s 

to
:

•
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

u
e 

an
d
 f

ai
r 

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
an

d
 i
ts

 e
xp

en
d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 i
n

co
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 i
n

 q
u
es

ti
o

n
;

•
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

ey
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 p
ro

p
er

ly
 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 r

el
ev

an
t 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n

, a
p

p
lic

ab
le

 a
cc

o
u
n

ti
n

g 
st

an
d
ar

d
s 

an
d
 o

th
er

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
; a

n
d

•
w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
A

n
n

u
al

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

(A
G

S
) 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 p

re
se

n
te

d
in

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 r
el

ev
an

t 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d
 t

o
 r

ep
o

rt
 i
f 

it
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
m

ee
t 

th
es

e 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

ts
, o

r 
if

 t
h

e 
st

at
em

en
t 

is
 m

is
le

ad
in

g 
o

r 
in

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 

o
u
r 

kn
o

w
le

d
ge

.

Page 3



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
3

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

•
S
p

ec
ia

lis
t 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
th

ro
u
gh

 t
h

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
IF

R
S
 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
an

d
 s

em
in

ar
s 

an
d
 r

es
p

o
n

d
in

g 
to

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 q
u
er

ie
s.

 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

im
p

lic
at

io
n

s 
o

f 
an

y 
d
ev

el
o

p
in

g 
is

su
es

 t
h

ro
u
gh

re
fe

re
n

ce
 t

o
 I

F
R

S
 g

u
id

an
ce

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

fi
n

al
is

ed
 I

F
R

S
 C

o
d
e 

an
d
 d

is
cu

ss
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y.
 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

 a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 r
es

ta
te

m
en

t
o

f 
it

s 
o

p
en

in
g 

b
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t 

an
d
 

20
09

-1
0 

co
m

p
ar

at
iv

es
 t

o
 I

F
R

S
 a

n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

fe
ed

b
ac

k 
o

n
 t

h
e 

tr
ea

tm
en

t 
o

f
b

al
an

ce
s 

an
d
 a

d
d
it

io
n

al
 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u
ir

ed
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 l
ia

is
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f 

IF
R

S
 

o
n

 i
ts

 s
u
b

si
d
ia

ry
, E

xe
te

r 
C

an
al

 a
n

d
 Q

u
ay

 T
ru

st
, a

n
d
 t

h
at

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 i
s 

av
ai

la
b

le
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 

su
b

si
d
ia

ry
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

re
st

at
em

en
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
n

d
 a

lig
n

 i
ts

 a
cc

o
u
n

ti
n

g 
p

o
lic

ie
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
ga

in
st

 i
ts

 a
gr

ee
d
 b

u
d
ge

t.
 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

th
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 l
ev

el
 o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 a

ga
in

st
 i
ts

 s
av

in
gs

 

p
la

n
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 c

o
n

si
d
er

 t
h

e 
u
se

 o
f 

ge
n

er
al

 r
es

er
ve

s 
d
u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
n

st
 i
ts

 I
F

R
S
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 t

h
ey

 

re
m

ai
n

 o
n

 t
ra

ck
 t

o
 p

re
p

ar
e 

th
e 

re
st

at
em

en
t 

en
tr

ie
s 

an
d
 f

ir
st

 s
et

o
f 

IF
R

S
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 b

y 
30

 J
u
n

e 
20

11
.

•
S
p

ec
ia

lis
t 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
as

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 

o
f 

IF
R

S
 t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d
 s

em
in

ar
s 

an
d
 r

es
p

o
n

d
in

g 
to

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 q
u
er

ie
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
em

 i
n

 t
h

e 
tr

an
si

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

ce
ss

.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
an

y 
fu

tu
re

 d
ec

is
io

n
s 

m
ad

e 
in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

Ic
el

an
d
ic

 b
an

k 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

an
d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e 
va

lu
e 

o
f 

th
es

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

re
fl

ec
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 a
cc

o
u
n

ts
. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
d
u
ri

n
g 

20
10

-1
1 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 t

h
e 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 a
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y 
ac

co
u
n

te
d
 f

o
r.

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

A
ll 

ar
ea

s 
o

f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 &
 F

in
an

ci
al

 

In
st

ru
m

en
ts

P
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 o

f 

20
10

-1
1 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 u

n
d

er
 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 F

in
an

ci
al

 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 

(I
F

R
S

)

F
in

an
ci

al
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 

p
re

ss
u

re
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g
 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 a
b

ili
ty

 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

s 
b

u
d

g
et

 

an
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

to
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

In
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fi

n
an

ce
 

te
am

 r
es

o
u

rc
es

 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 

st
at

u
to

ry
 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 b

y 
30

 

Ju
n

e 
20

11

In
co

rr
ec

t 
ac

co
u

n
ti

n
g

 

fo
r 

Ic
el

an
d

ic
 B

an
k 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

T
ab

le
 1

 b
el

o
w

 s
u
m

m
ar

is
es

 t
h

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

in
it

ia
l 
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o

f 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 a
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g 
ri

sk
s 

fa
ci

n
g 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
an

d
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n

ed
 r

es
p

o
n

se
.

T
a
b

le
 1

: 
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

A
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

Page 4



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
4

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
cc

o
u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 -

ap
p

ro
ac

h

A
u

d
it

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h

W
e 

w
ill

:

•
w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 F
in

an
ce

 T
ea

m
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 w
e 

m
ee

t 
au

d
it

 
d
ea

d
lin

es
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

d
u
ct

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y;

•
p

la
n

 o
u
r 

au
d
it

 o
n

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u
al

 t
as

k 
b

as
is

 a
t 

th
e 

st
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

, a
n

d
 

ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

st
af

f 
in

vo
lv

ed
; a

n
d

•
co

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
o

f 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

w
h

en
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
o

u
r 

au
d
it

an
d
 w

h
en

 
re

p
o

rt
in

g 
o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

gs
. 

In
 s

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

u
r 

au
d
it

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
co

m
p

ri
se

s:

P
la

n
n

in
g

U
p

d
at

in
g 

o
u
r 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
th

ro
u
gh

 
d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ac
co

u
n

ts

C
o

n
tr

o
l

e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

•R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

d
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 i
n

te
rn

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 i
n

cl
u
d
in

g 
IT

, w
h

er
e 

th
ey

 i
m

p
ac

t 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

•A
ss

es
si

n
g 

au
d
it

 r
is

k 
an

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

in
g 

an
d
 i
m

p
le

m
en

ti
n

g 
an

 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

au
d
it

 s
tr

at
eg

y

•T
es

ti
n

g 
th

e 
o

p
er

at
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

 s
el

ec
te

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls

•A
ss

es
si

n
g 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u
d
it

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
C

IP
F

A
 C

o
d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

•P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

o
ve

ra
ll 

ev
al

u
at

io
n

•D
et

er
m

in
in

g 
an

 a
u
d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

•R
ep

o
rt

in
g 

to
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

an
d
 F

in
al

 A
cc

o
u
n

ts
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

es

S
u

b
s
ta

n
ti

v
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

•R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

l 
d
is

cl
o

su
re

 i
ss

u
es

 i
n

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

•P
er

fo
rm

in
g 

an
al

yt
ic

al
 r

ev
ie

w

•V
er

if
yi

n
g 

al
l 
m

at
er

ia
l 
in

co
m

e 
an

d
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 b

al
an

ce
 

sh
ee

t 
ac

co
u
n

ts
, t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 c

o
n

si
d
er

at
io

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 a
u
d
it

 
ev

id
en

ce
 i
s 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

an
d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e

Page 5



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
5

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
cc

o
u
n

ts
 a

u
d

it
 -

o
th

er
 i
ss

u
es

C
e

rt
if

ic
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 R

e
tu

rn
s

In
 a

d
d
it

io
n

 t
o

 o
u
r 

au
d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

n
d
 V

al
u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

, w
e 

ar
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 c

er
ti

fy
 g

ra
n

t 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r

et
u
rn

s 
ab

o
ve

 
p

re
d
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

s.

In
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

o
u
t 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 g

ra
n

t 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r

et
u
rn

s,
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
ct

s 
as

 a
n

 a
ge

n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

, o
n

 b
eh

al
f 

o
f 

th
e 

gr
an

t 
p

ay
in

g 
b

o
d
ie

s.
 T

h
e 

w
o

rk
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

o
r 

is
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 

u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 i
s 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 i
n

 a
 C

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 I

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

, i
ss

u
ed

 b
y

th
e 

A
u
d
it

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 s
ch

em
e,

 f
o

llo
w

in
g 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

gr
an

t 
p

ay
in

g 
b

o
d
y.

  
A

s 
ag

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 r

ec
o

ve
r,

 i
n

 
re

sp
ec

t 
o

f 
ea

ch
 g

ra
n

t 
cl

ai
m

 a
n

d
 r

et
u
rn

, a
 f

ee
 t

h
at

 c
o

ve
rs

 t
h

e 
fu

ll 
co

st
 o

f 
th

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

w
o

rk
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

n
.  

T
h

es
e 

ra
te

s 
ar

e 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
h

o
u
rl

y 
ra

te
s 

fo
r 

ce
rt

if
yi

n
g 

cl
ai

m
s 

an
d
 r

et
u
rn

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

's
 'W

o
rk

 
p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d
 s

ca
le

s 
o

f 
fe

es
 2

01
0-

11
.' 

P
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

w
o

rk
 w

e 
w

ill
 i
ss

u
e 

a 
gr

an
ts

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 

re
p

o
rt

 i
n

 f
u
ll 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
o

n
 c

o
n

cl
u
si

o
n

 o
f 

o
u
r 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
w

o
rk

.

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

ra
u

d
 I

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

 (
N

F
I)

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
es

 i
n

 t
h

e 
N

at
io

n
al

 F
ra

u
d
 I

n
it

ia
ti

ve
, t

h
e 

A
u
d
it

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
's

 d
at

a-
m

at
ch

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

 d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 p

re
ve

n
t 

an
d
 d

et
ec

t 
fr

au
d
 i
n

 p
u
b

lic
 b

o
d
ie

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d
 a

ct
io

n
s 

in
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
u
p

 t
h

e 
m

at
ch

es
 i
d
en

ti
fi

ed
.

O
th

e
r 

is
s

u
e

s

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t

A
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 a

u
d
it

, w
e 

w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
h

e 
A

n
n

u
al

 
G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
(A

G
S
) 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if

 i
t 

is
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
o

u
r

kn
o

w
le

d
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 (

W
G

A
) 

co
n

so
lid

at
io

n
 

p
ac

k 
fo

r 
co

n
si

st
en

cy
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 a
cc

o
u
n

ts

E
le

c
to

r 
c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e

T
h

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
gi

ve
s 

el
ec

to
rs

 c
er

ta
in

 r
ig

h
ts

:

•
th

e 
ri

gh
t 

to
 i
n

sp
ec

t 
th

e 
ac

co
u
n

ts

•
th

e 
ri

gh
t 

to
 a

sk
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

o
r 

q
u
es

ti
o

n
s 

ab
o

u
t 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
; a

n
d

•
th

e 
ri

gh
t 

to
 o

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts
.

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt

 o
f 

th
es

e 
ri

gh
ts

, i
n

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

th
e 

ri
gh

t 
to

 o
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u
n

ts
, 

w
e 

m
ay

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

 a
d
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 f
o

rm
 a

 d
ec

is
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

el
ec

to
r'

s 
o

b
je

ct
io

n
. T

h
e 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 m
ay

 b
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

an
d
 c

o
u
ld

 r
es

u
lt

 
in

 t
h

e 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

t 
to

 s
ee

k 
le

ga
l 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d
. T

h
e 

co
st

s 
in

cu
rr

ed
 i
n

 r
es

p
o

n
d
in

g 
to

 a
n

y 
q
u
es

ti
o

n
s 

o
r 

o
b

je
ct

io
n

s 
ra

is
ed

 b
y 

el
ec

to
rs

 a
re

 n
o

t 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d
it

 f
ee

. I
n

 t
h

e 
ev

en
t 

o
f 

co
st

s 
b

ei
n

g 
in

cu
rr

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
el

ec
to

r'
s 

o
b

je
ct

o
rs

 w
e 

w
ill

 d
is

cu
ss

 t
h

es
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
an

d
, 

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e,
 c

h
ar

ge
 f

o
r 

th
is

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

A
u
d
it

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
's

 f
ee

 s
ca

le
s.

Page 6



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
6

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 a
u
d

it

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

T
h

e 
C

o
d
e 

re
q
u
ir

es
 u

s 
to

 i
ss

u
e 

a 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
n

 w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
ec

o
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 i
ts

 u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
. T

h
is

 i
s 

kn
o

w
n

 a
s 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 

co
n

cl
u
si

o
n

.

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 V

F
M

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
in

ce
 w

e 
is

su
ed

 o
u
r 

in
d
ic

at
iv

e 
fe

e 
le

tt
er

, a
 n

ew
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 l
o

ca
l 
V

al
u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 a
u
d
it

 w
o

rk
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. F
ro

m
 

20
10

-1
1 

w
e 

w
ill

 g
iv

e 
o

u
r 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 c

o
n

cl
u
si

o
n

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

w
o

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

cr
it

er
ia

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

:

C
o

d
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

W
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

R
is

k-
b

as
ed

 w
o

rk
 f

o
cu

si
n

g 
o

n
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 f
in

an
ci

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
, s

tr
at

eg
ic

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
an

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l. 

S
p

ec
if

ic
al

ly
 w

e 
w

ill
:

•
u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 
m

ed
iu

m
 t

er
m

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
id

en
ti

fy
in

g,
 i
m

p
le

m
en

ti
n

g 
an

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
co

st
 

re
d
u
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 s

av
in

gs
; 

•
co

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ag
ai

n
st

 L
o

ca
l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

at
io

s;
 a

n
d

•
co

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 r
es

p
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

S
R

 a
n

d
 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

th
at

 t
h

is
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
n

in
g.

O
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

in
it

ia
l 
ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t,
 w

e 
w

ill
 a

gr
ee

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

h
et

h
er

 f
u
rt

h
er

 w
o

rk
 

m
ay

 b
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 a

n
y 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

.

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ro

bu
st

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

to
 

m
an

ag
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 to
 

se
cu

re
 a

 s
ta

bl
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
po

si
tio

n 
th

at
 e

na
bl

es
 it

 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

bl
e 

fu
tu

re

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 
fo

r 
se

cu
rin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 

re
si

lie
nc

e

Page 7



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
7

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 a
u
d

it

R
is

k-
b

as
ed

 w
o

rk
 f

o
cu

si
n

g 
o

n
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

si
n

g 
re

so
u
rc

es
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

vi
n

g 
p

ro
d
u
ct

iv
it

y 
an

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

S
p

ec
if

ic
al

ly
 w

e 
w

ill
:

•
co

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 i
n

 
p

la
ce

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 

th
at

 t
h

er
e 

is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 p
o

st
-i

m
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

re
vi

ew
s 

o
f 

p
ro

je
ct

s;
 a

n
d

•
re

vi
ew

 h
o

w
 t

h
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

sa
vi

n
gs

, 
ef

fi
ci

en
ci

es
 a

n
d
 i
n

ve
st

m
en

ts
 r

ef
le

ct
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

.

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 
pr

io
rit

is
in

g 
its

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 

tig
ht

er
 b

ud
ge

ts

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

pr
op

er
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 it

 
se

cu
re

s 
ec

on
om

y,
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s

C
o

d
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

W
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

W
e 

w
ill

 t
ai

lo
r 

o
u
r 

V
fM

w
o

rk
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g 
o

u
r 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s,
 i
t 

is
, w

h
er

ev
er

 p
o

ss
ib

le
, f

o
cu

se
d
 o

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
as

 a
n

d
 c

an
 

b
e 

u
se

d
 a

s 
a 

so
u
rc

e 
o

f 
as

su
ra

n
ce

 f
o

r 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d
 M

em
b

er
s.

 W
h

er
e

w
e 

p
la

n
 

to
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

V
fM

co
n

cl
u
si

o
n

, w
e 

w
ill

 i
ss

u
e 

a 
T

er
m

s 
o

f 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

u
tl

in
in

g 
th

e 
sc

o
p

e,
 m

et
h

o
d
o

lo
gy

 a
n

d
 

ti
m

in
g 

o
f 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
. T

h
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
it

h
 O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e.

T
h

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
al

l 
o

u
r 

lo
ca

l 
V

fM
au

d
it

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 k

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 

in
 o

u
r 

R
ep

o
rt

 t
o

 T
h

o
se

 C
h

ar
ge

d
 w

it
h

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 (
IS

A
 2

60
 r

ep
o

rt
) 

an
d
 i
n

 
th

e 
A

n
n

u
al

 A
u
d
it

 L
et

te
r.

 W
e 

w
ill

 a
gr

ee
 a

n
y 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
o

n
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

-b
y-

re
vi

ew
 b

as
is

.

Page 8



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
8

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

B
a
rr

ie
 M

o
rr

is
 (

C
P

F
A

)

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

T
0
1
1
7
 3

0
5
 7

7
0
8

E
b
a
rr

ie
.m

o
rr

is
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

P
e
rm

in
d

e
r 

S
e
th

i 
(C

P
F

A
)

A
u

d
it

 M
a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0
1
1
7
 3

0
5
 7

6
0
0

E
p
e
rm

in
d
e
r.

s
e

th
i@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

L
li
n

o
s

 W
il
li

a
m

s
 (

A
C

A
)

In
-c

h
a
rg

e
 A

u
d

it
o

r

T
0
1
1
7
 3

0
5
 7

7
5
4

E
lli

n
o
s
.w

ill
ia

m
s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

N
e
g

a
t 

S
u

lt
a
n

IT
 A

u
d

it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0
1
1
6
 2

4
7
 5

5
9
0

E
n
e
g
a
l.
s
u
lt
a
n

@
u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

E
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
te

am

Y
o

u
r 

m
ai

n
 a

u
d

it
 t

ea
m

 i
s 

b
as

ed
 i
n

 B
ri

st
o

l 
an

d
 a

re
 

al
l 
p

u
b

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
sp

ec
ia

lis
ts

.

H
o

w
ev

er
, 
w

e 
o

p
er

at
e 

as
 

a 
n

at
io

n
al

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 

co
o

rd
in

at
in

g 
th

e 
w

o
rk

 o
f 

al
l 
o

u
r 

o
ff

ic
es

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 

th
at

 n
ew

 i
d

ea
s,

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

s 
an

d
 s

er
v
ic

es
 a

re
 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
n

d
 d

is
se

m
in

at
ed

 

to
 a

ll,
 i
rr

es
p

ec
ti

v
e 

o
f 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
.

B
ar

ri
e 

is
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 

E
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
L

ea
d
, b

ri
n

gi
n

g 
h

is
 

ex
te

n
si

ve
 l
o

ca
l 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 

ex
p

er
ti

se
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

B
ar

ri
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ke

y 
co

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e,

 t
h

e 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 o

th
er

 

se
n

io
r 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e.
 

B
ar

ri
e 

is
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

th
e 

q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 

o
u
tp

u
t 

an
d
 s

ig
n

in
g 

th
e 

au
d
it

 r
ep

o
rt

s 

an
d

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

P
er

m
in

d
er

S
et

h
i
is

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
au

d
it

 a
n

d
 i
s 

th
e 

m
ai

n
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 f
o

r 
th

e 

H
ea

d
 o

f 
T

re
as

u
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d
 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

co
ve

r 
fo

r 
Ju

lie
 

M
as

ci
 w

h
ils

t 
sh

e 
is

 o
n

 

m
at

er
n

it
y 

le
av

e.

P
er

m
in

d
er

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

fe
ed

b
ac

k 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 

th
ro

u
gh

o
u
t 

th
e 

au
d
it

 p
ro

ce
ss

 

an
d
 i
s 

th
e 

fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 

co
n

ta
ct

 d
u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 f
o

r 

d
is

cu
ss

in
g 

an
d

 r
es

o
lv

in
g 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g 
is

su
es

 

th
at

 m
ay

 a
ri

se
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 l
ia

is
e 

cl
o

se
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u
d
it

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

to
 

m
in

im
is

e 
d

u
p

lic
at

io
n

 o
f 

w
o

rk

R
ep

o
rt

in
g 

to
 P

er
m

in
d

er
, L

lin
o

s

is
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 

fi
el

d
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 d

ay
-t

o
-d

ay
 l
ia

is
o

n
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ce

 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

 

L
lin

o
s

w
ill

 b
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
ed

 

b
y 

a 
te

am
 o

f 
au

d
it

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ts

.

N
eg

at
is

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
re

vi
ew

 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 I
T

 s
ys

te
m

s 
to

 

co
m

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 p

ro
ce

ss
.

N
eg

at
al

so
 t

ak
es

 t
h

e 
le

ad
 o

n
 

an
y 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 i
n

 

ar
ea

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

an
d

 

se
cu

ri
ty

.

Page 9



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
9

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
u
d

it
 f

ee

W
h

a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 s

c
a
le

 a
u

d
it

 f
e

e
?

T
h

is
 i
s 

d
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

fe
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 b

y 
au

d
it

o
rs

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
st

at
u
to

ry
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 A
ct

 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

d
e 

o
f 

A
u
d
it

 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
2
0
08

. 

It
 r

ep
re

se
n

ts
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 b

es
t 

es
ti

m
at

e 
o

f 
th

e 
fe

e 
re

q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

an
 a

u
d
it

 w
h

er
e 

th
e 

au
d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
h

as
 n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

au
d
it

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d
 i
t 

h
as

 i
n

 

p
la

ce
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
en

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t.
 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

A
s 

se
t 

o
u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

in
d
ic

at
iv

e 
A

u
d
it

 F
ee

 L
et

te
r 

is
su

ed
 i
n

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0,

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l 

in
d
ic

at
iv

e 
fe

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
au

d
it

 f
o

r 
20

10
-1

1 
w

as
 £

13
3,

83
0

(e
xc

lu
si

ve
 o

f 
V

A
T

),
 t

h
is

 

is
 c

o
m

p
ar

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fe
e 

o
f 

£
11

7,
65

2 
fo

r 
20

09
-1

0
.

T
h

e 
sc

al
e 

au
d
it

 f
ee

 f
o

r 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 c
al

cu
la

te
d
 a

t 
£

13
3,

83
0.

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 p
ro

p
o

se
d
 f

o
r 

20
10

-1
1 

is
 i
n

 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ab

o
ve

 s
ca

le
 f

ee
.

H
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

fe
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u
o

u
s 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d
 m

ay
 b

e
re

vi
se

d
 i
f 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

n
ew

 r
is

ks
 a

re
 i
d
en

ti
fi

ed
 e

it
h

er
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g 

o
r 

d
u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

au
d
it

 o
r 

if
 w

e 
ar

e 
u
n

ab
le

 t
o

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
th

e 
au

d
it

 a
s 

p
la

n
n

ed
 d

u
e 

to
 t

h
e 

ti
m

in
g 

o
r 

q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 p
ro

vi
d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

In
 t

h
e 

ev
en

t 
th

at
 w

e 
co

n
si

d
er

 

it
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o

 r
ev

is
e 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 a
u
d
it

 f
ee

 u
p

w
ar

d
s,

 w
e 

w
ill

 d
is

cu
ss

 t
h

is
 w

it
h

 

se
n

io
r 

o
ff

ic
er

s.
 

T
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d
 s

ca
le

s 
o

f 
fe

es
 2

01
1-

12
 i
ss

u
ed

 f
o

r 

co
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 i
n

 D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0,

 i
n

d
ic

at
es

th
at

 a
 

re
b

at
e 

o
f 

1.
5%

 o
n

 t
h

e 
20

10
-1

1 
fe

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
p

ai
d
 d

ir
ec

tl
y 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
ea

rl
y 

in
 

th
e 

N
ew

 Y
ea

r.
  
T

h
is

 i
s 

in
 a

d
d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ea

rl
ie

r 
re

b
at

e 
o

f 
6%

 f
o

r 
th

e 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 a

u
d
it

 c
o

st
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

tr
an

si
ti

o
n

 t
o

 I
n

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 F
in

an
ci

al
 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g 

S
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

(I
F

R
S
).

  

H
o

w
 w

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 y

o
u

r 
s

c
a
le

 a
u

d
it

 f
e

e

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 a
u
d

it
 f

ee
 i
s 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d
 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

A
u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

's
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

au
d

it
 f

ee
s 

fo
r 

20
10

-1
1.

 F
o

r 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l, 

th
e 

sc
al

e 

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

cl
u
d

es
 a

 f
ix

ed
 e

le
m

en
t 

fo
r 

a 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

co
u
n

ci
l 
an

d
 a

 p
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

ed
 g

ro
ss

 e
xp

en
d

it
u
re

 a
s 

d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
.

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

c
a
le

 a
u

d
it

 f
e

e

B
as

ed
 o

n
 a

 t
h

o
ro

u
gh

 r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

th
e 

au
d
it

 t
ea

m
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

cl
u
d
es

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d

 M
em

b
er

s,
 w

e 
th

en
 t

ai
lo

r 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 r

ef
le

ct
lo

ca
l

ci
rc

u
m

st
an

ce
s.

 T
h

is
 m

ay
, 
in

 e
xc

ep
ti

o
n

al
 c

ir
cu

m
st

an
ce

s,
 r

es
u
lt

 i
n

a 
va

ri
at

io
n

 

u
p

w
ar

d
s 

o
r 

d
o

w
n

w
ar

d
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
sc

al
e 

au
d

it
 f

ee
. 
 A

n
y 

va
ri

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e 

m
u
st

 b
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

, f
o

llo
w

in
g 

ag
re

em
en

t 
o

f
th

e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 f
ee

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

Page 10



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
10

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
 s

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 i
s 

sh
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ta

b
le

 b
el

o
w

:

A
u

d
it

 a
re

a
P

la
n

n
e

d
 f

e
e

 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
P

la
n

n
e

d
 f

e
e

 
2

0
0

9
-1

0

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 W

G
A

£
8
5
,0

7
5

£
6
9
,5

0
0

V
fM

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
£
4
8
.7

5
5

£
4
8
,1

5
2

T
o

ta
l 

a
u

d
it

 f
e
e

£
1
3
3
,8

3
0

£
1
1
7
,6

5
2

C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

s
*

£
2
0
,0

0
0
(e

s
t.
)

£
2
0
,0

0
0
(e

s
t.
)

* 
th

e
 q

u
o

te
d

 f
e

e
 f

o
r 

g
ra

n
t 
c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
n
ly

 
a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 a
t 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 h

o
u

rl
y
 r

a
te

s

T
a

b
le

 2
: 

 2
0
1
0

-1
1
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

N
e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 l

o
c

a
l 

V
fM

 w
o

rk
 –

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

T
h

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 w
ro

te
 t

o
 a

ll 
co

u
n

ci
l 
ch

ie
f 

ex
ec

u
ti

ve
s 

in
 A

u
gu

st
 2

01
0 

to
 

ad
vi

se
 o

f 
th

e 
n

ew
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 l
o

ca
l 
V

al
u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 f
o

r 
au

d
it

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

th
is

 o
n

 t
h

e 
20

10
-1

1 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 f
o

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

ce
ss

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
A

A
).

 

T
h

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 c
o

n
fi

rm
ed

 t
o

 c
o

u
n

ci
ls

 i
n

 t
h

is
 l
et

te
r 

th
at

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

w
ill

 m
ea

n
 a

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 a
u
d
it

 f
ee

s 
fr

o
m

 2
01

1-
12

.  
F

o
r 

20
10

-1
1,

 t
h

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

h
as

 a
lr

ea
d
y 

gi
ve

n
 a

 6
%

 r
eb

at
e 

to
 m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 a
u
d
it

fe
es

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 

th
e 

tr
an

si
ti

o
n

 t
o

 I
F

R
S
 a

n
d
 i
n

 D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0 

in
d
ic

at
ed

 t
h

at
 i
t 

p
ro

p
o

se
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e 

a 

fu
rt

h
er

 1
.5

%
 r

eb
at

e 
o

n
 t

h
e 

sc
al

e 
fe

e.
  
T

h
e 

A
u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 a
ls

o
co

n
fi

rm
ed

 t
h

at
 

it
 d

id
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d
 t

o
 c

h
ar

ge
 i
n

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 f

ee
s 

fo
r 

w
o

rk
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

u
t

in
 2

01
0-

11
 i
n

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

m
an

ag
in

g 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

as
 t

h
is

 h
ad

 n
o

 v
al

u
e 

o
n

ce
 C

A
A

 e
n

d
ed

.

Page 11



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
11

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

O
u
tp

u
ts

 a
n

d
 t

im
el

in
e

R
ep

o
rt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
d

is
cu

ss
ed

 a
n

d
 

ag
re

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

o
ff

ic
er

s 
b

ef
o

re
 b

ei
n

g 
is

su
ed

 t
o

 

th
e 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e.
  

R
ep

o
rt

s 
ar

e 
ad

d
re

ss
ed

 t
o

 

th
e 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
an

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

an
d

 a
re

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r 

th
e 

so
le

 

u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l, 

an
d

 n
o

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 i
s 

ta
k
en

 b
y 

au
d

it
o

rs
 t

o
 a

n
y 

m
em

b
er

 o
r 

o
ff

ic
er

 i
n

 t
h

ei
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 

ca
p

ac
it

y,
 o

r 
to

 a
n

y 
th

ir
d

 p
ar

ty
.

O
u

tp
u

t
P

u
rp

o
s
e

Is
s

u
e
 d

a
te

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n

•
O

u
tl

in
e 

au
d
it

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

•
Id

en
ti

fy
 i
n

it
ia

l 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k 
ar

ea
s 

an
d

 o
u
r 

p
la

n
n

ed
 r

es
p

o
n

se

•
C

o
n

fi
rm

 P
la

n
 w

it
h

 R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
20

11

In
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
p

o
rt

•
O

u
tl

in
e 

o
u
r 

au
d

it
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

o
n

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 w

o
rk

•
R

ev
ie

w
 r

is
k
s 

an
d

 u
p

d
at

e 
p

la
n

n
ed

 r
es

p
o

n
se

 a
cc

o
rd

in
gl

y

•
H

ig
h

lig
h

t 
fo

cu
s 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
au

d
it

•
C

o
n

fi
rm

 w
it

h
 S

en
io

r 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d

 R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

cr
u
ti

n
y 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e

Ju
n

e 
20

11

R
e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e
 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it

h
 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

(I
S

A
 2

6
0
)

•
H

ig
h

lig
h

t 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 a
n

d
 d

et
ai

l 
th

e 
re

so
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

es
e

•
C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

ad
ju

st
ed

 a
n

d
 u

n
ad

ju
st

ed
 a

u
d
it

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s

•
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

re
co

m
m

en
d
at

io
n

s 
re

su
lt

in
g 

fr
o

m
 a

u
d
it

 p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1

A
u

d
it

o
r'

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
•

R
ep

o
rt

 o
n

 2
01

0-
11

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

•
R

ep
o

rt
 o

n
 2

01
0-

11
 v

al
u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

1

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 L
e
tt

e
r

•
S
u
m

m
ar

is
es

th
e 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 a

ri
si

n
g 

fr
o

m
 o

u
r 

20
10

-1
1 

au
d

it
N

o
v
em

b
er

 2
01

1

G
ra

n
ts

 C
la

im
 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

•
H

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 k

ey
 i
ss

u
es

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

gr
an

ts
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

•
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
em

en
t

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1

Page 12



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
12

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

O
u
tp

u
ts

 a
n

d
 t

im
el

in
e

R
e
g

u
la

r 
li
a
is

o
n

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 t

e
a
m

A
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 a

t 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 F
in

a
l 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
ri

s
k
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
V

fM
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 

2
0
1
1

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
1

M
a
rc

h

2
0
1
1

A
p

ri
l 

2
0
1
1

M
a
y

2
0
1
1

J
u

n
e

 

2
0
1
1

J
u

ly
 

2
0
1
1

A
u
g
u
s
t

2
0
1
1

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
1

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
1

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
1
1

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n

Is
s
u
e
 I

n
te

ri
m

 

A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

S
ig

n
 A

u
d
it
 

O
p
in

io
n
 a

n
d
 

V
fM

 C
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n

Is
s
u
e

A
n
n
u
a
l

A
u
d
it
 L

e
tt
e
r

In
te

ri
m

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 w
o

rk
A

u
d

it
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

G
ra

n
ts

 c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

Is
s
u
e

G
ra

n
t

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n

S
u
m

m
a
ry

R
e
p
o
rt

Page 13



E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
13

A
p

p
en

d
ix

Page 14



©
20

10
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

.
14

E
x
e

te
r 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
/A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 2
0
1
0
-1

1
  
| 
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y

W
e 

ar
e 

n
o

t 
aw

ar
e 

o
f 

an
y 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 a
ff

ec
t 

th
e 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 t

ea
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

q
u
ir

ed
 b

y 
au

d
it

in
g 

an
d

 e
th

ic
al

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

to
 

co
m

m
u
n

ic
at

e 
to

 y
o

u
. 

W
e 

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

et
h

ic
al

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
P

B
 a

n
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 i
n

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
in

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y 
as

 s
u
m

m
ar

is
ed

 b
el

o
w

.

A
u
d
it

o
rs

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 a
re

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 C

o
d
e 

o
f 

A
u
d
it

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 S

ta
n

d
in

g 
G

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

d
ef

in
es

 t
h

e 
te

rm
s 

o
f 

m
y 

ap
p

o
in

tm
en

t.
 W

h
en

 a
u
d
it

in
g 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
u
d
it

o
rs

 

ar
e 

al
so

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 a

u
d

it
in

g 
st

an
d

ar
d

s 
an

d
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 

A
u
d

it
in

g 
P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
o

ar
d

 (
A

P
B

).

T
h

e 
m

ai
n

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 S
ta

n
d

in
g 

G
u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 

an
d

 t
h

e 
st

an
d

ar
d

s 
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
is

ed
 b

el
o

w
.

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 o

n
 A

u
d
it

in
g 

(U
K

 a
n

d
 I

re
la

n
d
) 

26
0 

(C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

au
d
it

 

m
at

te
rs

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

se
 c

h
ar

ge
d
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

) 
re

q
u
ir

es
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
ap

p
o

in
te

d
 a

u
d
it

o
r:

•
d
is

cl
o

se
s 

in
 w

ri
ti

n
g 

al
l 
re

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

ea
r 

o
n

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

an
d
 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

ce
, t

h
e 

re
la

te
d
 s

af
eg

u
ar

d
s 

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

es
e 

th
re

at
s 

an
d

 
th

e 
to

ta
l 
am

o
u
n

t 
o

f 
fe

e 
th

at
 t

h
e 

au
d

it
o

r 
h

as
 c

h
ar

ge
d

 t
h

e 
cl

ie
n

t

•
co

n
fi

rm
s 

in
 w

ri
ti

n
g 

th
at

 t
h

e 
A

P
B

’s
et

h
ic

al
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

ar
e 

co
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 t

h
at

, 
in

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 j
u
d

ge
m

en
t,

 t
h

ey
 a

re
 i
n

d
ep

en
d
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
ei

r 
o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

is
 n

o
t 

co
m

p
ro

m
is

ed
.

T
h

e 
st

an
d

ar
d

 d
ef

in
es

 ‘
th

o
se

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

’
as

 ‘
th

o
se

 p
er

so
n

s 
en

tr
u
st

ed
 w

it
h

 

th
e 

su
p

er
vi

si
o

n
, c

o
n

tr
o

l 
an

d
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
an

 e
n

ti
ty

’. 
In

 y
o

u
r 

ca
se

, t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ad
d

re
ss

ee
 o

f 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

o
r 

to
 t

h
o

se
 c

h
ar

ge
d

 w
it

h
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 i
s 

th
e 

au
d

it
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e.

 T
h

e 
au

d
it

o
r 

re
se

rv
es

 t
h

e 
ri

gh
t,

 h
o

w
ev

er
, 
to

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

e 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

w
it

h
 

th
e 

au
th

o
ri

ty
 o

n
 m

at
te

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
n

si
d
er

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
o

f 
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
im

p
o

rt
an

ce
.

T
h

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
’s

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

A
u
d
it

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
h

as
 a

n
 o

ve
rr

id
in

g 
ge

n
er

al
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

t 
th

at
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 

au
d

it
o

rs
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t 

th
ei

r 
w

o
rk

 i
n

d
ep

en
d

en
tl

y 
an

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

el
y,

 a
n

d
en

su
re

 t
h

at
 t

h
ey

 d
o

 n
o

t 
ac

t 
in

 a
n

y 

w
ay

 t
h

at
 m

ig
h

t 
gi

ve
 r

is
e 

to
, 
o

r 
co

u
ld

 r
ea

so
n

ab
ly

 b
e 

p
er

ce
iv

ed
 t

o
gi

ve
 r

is
e 

to
, 
a 

co
n

fl
ic

t 
o

f 
in

te
re

st
. 

In
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r,
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
ei

r 
st

af
f 

sh
o

u
ld

 a
vo

id
 e

n
te

ri
n

g 
in

to
 a

n
y 

o
ff

ic
ia

l, 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 o

r 
p

er
so

n
al

 r
el

at
io

n
sh

ip
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ay

, o
r 

co
u
ld

 r
ea

so
n

ab
ly

 b
e 

p
er

ce
iv

ed
 t

o
, c

au
se

 t
h

em
 

in
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y 
o

r 
u
n

ju
st

if
ia

b
ly

 t
o

 l
im

it
 t

h
e 

sc
o

p
e,

 e
xt

en
t 

o
r 

ri
go

u
r 

o
f 

th
ei

r 
w

o
rk

 o
r 

im
p

ai
r 

th
e 

o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y 
o

f 
th

ei
r 

ju
d

ge
m

en
t.

T
h

e 
S
ta

n
d
in

g 
G

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 i
n

cl
u
d
es

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

sp
ec

if
ic

ru
le

s.
 T

h
e 

ke
y 

ru
le

s 
re

le
v
an

t 
to

 

th
is

 a
u
d
it

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t 

ar
e 

as
 f

o
llo

w
s:

•
A

p
p

o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it

o
rs

 s
h

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
p

er
fo

rm
 a

d
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
an

 a
u
d
it

ed
 b

o
d
y 

(i
.e

. w
o

rk
 o

ve
r 

an
d

 a
b

o
ve

 t
h

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

th
ei

r 
st

at
u
to

ry
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
) 

if
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
co

m
p

ro
m

is
e 

th
ei

r 
in

d
ep

en
d
en

ce
 o

r 
m

ig
h

t 
gi

ve
 r

is
e 

to
 a

 r
ea

so
n

ab
le

p
er

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

h
at

 t
h

ei
r 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

ce
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e 

co
m

p
ro

m
is

ed
. 
W

h
er

e 
th

e 
au

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
in

vi
te

s 
th

e 
au

d
it

o
r 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
u
t 

ri
sk

-b
as

ed
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 a
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
ar

ea
 t

h
at

 c
an

n
o

t 
o

th
er

w
is

e 
b

e 
ju

st
if

ie
d
 a

s 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e 

au
d
it

o
r’

s 
o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

cl
u
si

o
n

s,
 i
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

cl
ea

rl
y 

d
if

fe
re

n
ti

at
ed

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

 p
la

n
 a

s 
b

ei
n

g 
‘a

d
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

’
an

d
 c

h
ar

ge
d
 f

o
r 

se
p

ar
at

el
y 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

n
o

rm
al

 a
u
d

it
 f

ee
.

•
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
ac

ce
p

t 
en

ga
ge

m
en

ts
 t

h
at

 i
n

vo
lv

e 
co

m
m

en
ti

n
g 

o
n

 t
h

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
o

th
er

 a
u
d
it

o
rs

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

fi
rs

t 
co

n
su

lt
in

g 
th

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
.

•
T

h
e 

E
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e 
au

d
it

 s
h

o
u
ld

, i
n

 a
ll 

b
u
t

th
e 

m
o

st
 e

xc
ep

ti
o

n
al

 
ci

rc
u
m

st
an

ce
s,

 b
e 

ch
an

ge
d
 a

t 
le

as
t 

o
n

ce
 e

ve
ry

 f
iv

e 
ye

ar
s

•
T

h
e 

E
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 a
n

d
 s

en
io

r 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d
it

 t
ea

m
 a

re
 p

re
ve

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
ak

in
g 

p
ar

t 
in

 
p

o
lit

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
o

n
 b

eh
al

f 
o

f 
a 

p
o

lit
ic

al
 p

ar
ty

, o
r 

sp
ec

ia
l 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u
p

, w
h

o
se

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

re
la

te
 

d
ir

ec
tl

y 
to

 t
h

e 
fu

n
ct

io
n

s 
o

f 
lo

ca
l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
o

r 
N

H
S
 b

o
d

ie
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
, 
o

r 
to

 a
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

o
r 

N
H

S
 b

o
d

y.

•
T

h
e 

E
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 a
n

d
 m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 t

ea
m

 m
u
st

 a
b

id
e 

b
y 

th
e 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 g

if
ts

, 
h

o
sp

it
al

it
y 

an
d
 e

n
te

rt
ai

n
m

en
t.

Page 15



Page 16



Exeter City Council 

Certification work report 2009-10 

December 2010 

Final 

 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



1 Introduction and approach 1

2 Results of our certification work 3
 

 

Appendices 

A Details of claims and returns certified for 2009-10 6

B Action plan 8

C Certification work fees 9
 

Contents 

Page 18



Exeter City Council  
Certification work report 2009-10 

1

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

Introduction 

1.1 Various grant-paying bodies require external certification of claims for grant or subsidy and 
returns of financial information.  As external auditors of Exeter City Council (the Council), 
Grant Thornton undertakes certification work at the Council, acting as an agent of the 
Audit Commission. 

1.2 The Audit Commission makes certification arrangements with grant-paying bodies, this 
includes confirming which claims and returns require certification and issuing certification 
instructions.  These instructions are tailored to each scheme and they clearly set out the 
specific procedures to be applied in examining a claim or return.  The Audit Commission 
agrees the deadline for submission of each claim by authorities and the deadline for 
certification by auditors. 

Certification arrangements 

1.3 The Audit Commission's certification arrangements are designed to be proportionate to the 
claim or return:  The arrangements for 2009-10 were: 

• for claims and returns below £125,000, certification by us is not required, regardless 
of any statutory certification requirement or any certification requirement set out in 
grant terms and conditions; 

• for claims and returns above £125,000 and below £500,000, we are required to 
perform limited tests to agree entries on the claim or return to underlying records, 
but were not required to undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure or 
data; and 

• for claims and returns over £500,000, we are required to assess the control 
environment for the preparation of the claim or return and decide whether or not to 
place reliance on it.  Where reliance is placed on the control environment, we are 
required to undertake limited tests to agree entries on the claim or return to 
underlying records but not to undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure 
or data.  Where reliance is not placed on the control environment, we are required 
to undertake all the tests in the relevant certification instruction and use our 
assessment of the control environment to inform decisions on the level of testing 
required. 
 

1.4 In determining whether we place reliance on the control environment, we consider other 
work we have undertaken on the Council's financial ledger and any other relevant systems, 
and make appropriate use of relevant internal audit work. 

Our certificate 

1.5 Following our work on each claim or return, we issue our certificate.  The wording of this 
depends on the level of work performed as set out above, stating either the claim or return 
is in accordance with the underlying records, or the claim or return is fairly stated and in 
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.  Our certificate also states that the claim 
has been certified: 

• without qualification; 

1 Introduction and approach 

Page 19



Exeter City Council  
Certification work report 2009-10 

2

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

• without qualification but with agreed amendments incorporated by the Council; or 

• with a qualification letter (with or without agreed amendments incorporated by the 
Council). 
 

1.6 Where a claim is qualified because the Council has not complied with the strict requirements 
set out in the certification instruction, there is a risk that grant-paying bodies will retain 
funding claimed by the Council or, claw back funding which has already been provided or 
has not been returned.  In addition, where claims or returns require amendment or are 
qualified, this increases the time taken to undertake this work, which impacts on the 
certification fee charged. 

Page 20



Exeter City Council  
Certification work report 2009-10 

3

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

Key messages 

2.1 For the financial year 2009-10, we have certified six claims and returns for the Council, 
which amounted to £105,432,000.  This represents both funding claimed by the Council and 
returned to grant-paying bodies, as well as other financial information. 

2.2 The Council's performance in preparing its claims and returns is summarised below. 

Exhibit One:  Performance against key certification targets 

Performance measure 2009-10 2008-09 
Direction of 

travel 

Without qualification 4 4 � 

Amended only 0 2 � 

Qualified only 0 0 � 

Qualified and Amended 2 0 � 

Total 6 6  

 

2.3 This demonstrates that overall the Council's performance in preparing claims and returns 
has not improved over 2008-09.  One of the claims that we were required to qualify was the 
Council's Housing Subsidy Base Data return.  This was subsequently certified as fairly stated 
following additional work by the Council.  Further details on the certification of all claims 
and returns are included at Appendix A.  Where we have concluded that an item is 
significant, further details are included within this section of our report.  

2.4 Where the claims and returns that have been amended or qualified require improvement in 
their compilation in future years, we have made recommendations and include these within 
the action plan at Appendix B. 

2.5 Both the Council's and our own performance in meeting deadlines relating to the 
certification of claims and returns is summarised below. 

Exhibit Two:  Performance against deadlines 

Deadline 2009-10 2008-09 
Direction of 

travel 

Submitted by deadline 5 4 � 

Certified by deadline 6 6 � 

2 Results of our certification work 

Page 21



Exeter City Council  
Certification work report 2009-10 

4

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

 

2.6 The Council submitted five of its claims and returns in accordance with the initial deadline 
set by the relevant government department.  The Housing Subsidy Base Data Return was 
submitted after original deadline, it did meet the extended deadline agreed with the 
Department of Communities and Local Government.  We certified all of the claims and 
returns within the relevant deadlines set by the Audit Commission. 

2.7 The Council has improved its arrangements to submit claims and returns to us within the 
required timescales and this has enabled us to meet all the certification deadlines in 2009-10. 

Certification work fees 

2.8 Each year the Audit Commission sets a schedule of hourly rates for different levels of staff, 
for work relating to the certification of grant claims and returns.  When billing the Council 
for this work, we are required to use these rates.  They are shown in the table below. 

Exhibit Three:  Hourly rates for certifying claims and returns for 2009-10 

Role 2009-10 2008-09 

Engagement lead £325 £310 

Manager £180 £170 

Senior auditor £115 £110 

Other staff £85 £80 

 

2.9 Our fee for certification work at the Council in 2009-10 was £33,937, compared to £24,178 
for 2008-09.  Our fee is above our estimate of £20,000 included in our audit fee letter 
presented to, and approved by, the Scrutiny Committee - Resources on 25 March 2009.  
This is due to the additional work being undertaken to certify the two claims that ultimately 
resulted in their qualification in 2009-10, these being the housing and council tax benefit 
scheme and the housing base data return.  Details of our fee by claim and return and how 
this compares to last year are included at Appendix C. 

Significant issues 

2.10 During our certification work, the following significant issues were identified.   

Housing and council tax benefit scheme 
2.11 Our initial testing of a random sample of 80 claims identified one case where the assessor 

had incorrectly recorded the amount of income received by the claimant, resulting in an 
underpayment of housing benefit.  As required by the Audit Commission's certification 
arrangements, 40 additional cases were reviewed and a further ten errors were identified in 
the 294 input transactions that related to those 40 cases.  Six of these resulted in underpaid 
benefit, two in an overpayment (one case had both an over and under payment) and two 
had no impact on the amount paid to the claimant.  In accordance with the certification 
requirements, the cell entries in the claim form affected by these errors were qualified and 
we were required to report the error rate identified to the Department for Work and 
Pensions. 

Page 22



Exeter City Council  
Certification work report 2009-10 

5

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP.  All rights reserved 

2.12 Our initial sample of claims also identified five cases where we were unable to evidence that 
the rent stated on the benefit claim was the amount being paid by the claimant, as required 
by the Audit Commission's approach.  The Council has stated that it is not required to 
request this evidence.  We understand this to be a national issue which has been raised with 
the Department for Work and Pensions by the Audit Commission.  Consequently, we have 
reported this to the Department but have not undertaken further testing.   

2.13 Two further errors were identified through our initial sample.  We completed additional 
testing in line with the Audit Commission's requirements and agreed the amendments 
required with the Council.  

2.14 Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the scheme may result in payments to 
the Council being withheld by the Department for Work and Pensions and may require 
further certification work to be carried out by ourselves in the future.  The Council should 
consider whether any changes are required to the scope of the Council's current internal 
quality review arrangements over the accuracy of its claims in light of the errors identified 
above.  This recommendation has been included at Appendix B. 

Housing subsidy base data return 
2.15 Following our recommendation in 2008-09, the Council has invested significant time in 

ensuring that entries in this return are consistent with data held in the Academy housing 
system. 

2.16 During the year the Council amended the Academy housing records for approximately 150 
dwellings, affecting their classification on the base data return.  Whilst the Council provided 
detailed working papers supporting those dwellings that had been disposed of during the 
year, it was unable to identify those dwellings whose classification had changed prior to the 
deadline for our certification.  As a result, we were required to raise a qualification over the 
dwelling analysis cells on the return. 

2.17 At the request of the Department for Communities and Local Government, we reviewed 
the subsequent work that was undertaken by officers to address this issue.  The result of this 
additional work enabled us to subsequently certify the claim as fairly stated on 26 November 
2010.  This supplementary work resulted in additional certification fees.  In the future, the 
Council should ensure that an audit trail is available to support all reclassifications of 
dwellings on the base data return.  This recommendation has been made at Appendix B. 

Acknowledgements 

2.18 We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council's officers for their assistance 
and co-operation during the course of the certification process. 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

December 2010

Page 23



E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

  
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 r

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
1
1
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

. 
 A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d

 

A
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r

et
u
rn

s 
ce

rt
if

ie
d

 f
o

r 
20

09
-1

0 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

a
lu

e
 (

£
) 

A
m

e
n

d
ed

? 
Q

u
a
li

fi
e
d

? 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d
 c

o
u
n

ci
l t

ax
 b

en
ef

it
 

sc
h

em
e 

40
,3

14
,1

44
 

Y
es

 
Y

es
 

W
h

ils
t 

th
e 

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
cl

ai
m

 w
as

 f
ai

rl
y 

st
at

ed
 a

n
d
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

er
m

s 
an

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n
s,

 o
ur

 t
es

ti
n

g 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 
er

ro
rs

 in
 t

h
e 

in
p

ut
 o

f 
b

en
ef

it
 c

la
im

an
ts

' w
ee

kl
y 

in
co

m
e 

an
d
 t

h
e 

au
d
it

 t
ra

il 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g 

re
n

t 
p

ai
d
 b

y 
cl

ai
m

an
ts

.  
F

u
rt

h
er

 d
et

ai
ls

 a
re

 
in

cl
u
d
ed

 in
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 2
 o

f 
th

is
 r

ep
o

rt
.. 

  

P
o

o
lin

g 
o
f 

h
o

us
in

g 
ca

p
it

al
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

 
20

0,
64

8 
N

o
 

N
o

 
T

h
e 

re
tu

rn
 w

as
 f

ai
rl

y 
st

at
ed

 a
n

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

er
m

s 
an

d
 

co
n

d
it

io
n
s.

 

H
R

A
 s

u
b

si
d
y 

4,
02

9,
65

6 
N

o
 

N
o

 
T

h
e 

cl
ai

m
 w

as
 f

ai
rl

y 
st

at
ed

 a
n

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

er
m

s 
an

d
 

co
n

d
it

io
n
s.

 O
ff

ic
er

s 
h

av
e 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 t

h
e 

cl
ai

m
 p

re
p

ar
at

io
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

am
en

d
m

en
t 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 in

 2
00

8-
09

 d
id

 n
o

t 
re

cu
r.

 

H
R

A
 s

u
b

si
d
y 

b
as

e 
d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

 
N

/
A

 
Y

es
 

Y
es

 
T

h
e 

re
tu

rn
 w

as
 in

it
ia

lly
 q

u
al

if
ie

d
 o

n
 8

 O
ct

o
b

er
 2

01
0,

 a
s 

ex
p

la
in

ed
 

in
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 2
, d

u
e 

to
 a

 la
ck

 o
f 

an
 a

u
d
it

 t
ra

il 
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 d
at

ab
as

e 
o
f 

d
w

el
lin

gs
.  

F
o

llo
w

in
g 

o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 c
ar

ri
ed

 o
u
t 

b
y 

o
ff

ic
er

s,
 t

h
is

 q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

as
 r

em
o

ve
d
 o

n
 2

6 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
0 

en
ab

lin
g 

u
s 

to
 c

o
n

cl
u
d
e 

th
at

 t
h

e 
re

tu
rn

 w
as

 f
ai

rl
y 

st
at

ed
 a

n
d
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

er
m

s 
an

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n
s.

 

Page 24



E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

  
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 r

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

7

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

©
 2

0
1
1
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

. 
 A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d

 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
V

a
lu

e
 (

£
) 

A
m

e
n

d
ed

? 
Q

u
a
li

fi
e
d

? 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 

D
is

ab
le

d
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 
27

0,
00

0 
N

o
 

N
o

 
T

h
e 

cl
ai

m
 w

as
 f

ai
rl

y 
st

at
ed

 a
n

d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

er
m

s 
an

d
 

co
n

d
it

io
n
s,

 e
xc

ep
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
n

ti
n

u
ed

 u
se

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l o

f 
th

e 
60

%
 li

m
it

 o
n

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
sc

h
em

e 
co

st
s 

fu
n

d
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

D
is

ab
le

d
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 G
ra

n
t,

 a
 r

es
tr

ic
ti

o
n

 t
h

at
 w

as
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 f
ro

m
 

20
08

-0
9.

  
T

h
e 

C
o

un
ci

l's
 f

un
d
in

g 
cl

ai
m

ed
 in

 y
ea

r 
h

as
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
 

b
ee

n
 in

cr
ea

se
d
, b

u
t 

th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 m

at
ch

ed
 b

y 
a 

re
d
u
ct

io
n

 in
 t

h
e 

gr
an

t 
ca

rr
ie

d
 f

o
rw

ar
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
 t

h
er

e 
is

 n
o

 e
ff

ec
t 

o
n

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l 

am
o

u
n

t 
cl

ai
m

ed
.  

C
h

an
ge

s 
to

 t
h

e 
sc

h
em

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

. 

N
at

io
n

al
 n

o
n
-d

o
m

es
ti

c 
ra

te
s 

re
tu

rn
 

60
,6

17
,7

99
 

N
o

 
N

o
 

T
h

e 
re

tu
rn

 w
as

 f
ai

rl
y 

st
at

ed
 a

n
d
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

er
m

s 
an

d
 

co
n

d
it

io
n
s.

 

T
o

ta
l 

10
5
,4

3
2
,2

4
7
 

 
 

 

 

Page 25



E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

  
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 r

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

8

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B
 

©
 2

0
1
1
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

. 
 A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d

 

B
A

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
M

a
n

a
g

em
e
n

t 
re

sp
o

n
se

 &
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
e
ta

il
s 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d
 c

o
u
n

ci
l t

ax
 

b
en

ef
it

 s
ch

em
e 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o
n

si
d
er

 w
h

et
h

er
 a

n
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

sc
o

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 q
u
al

it
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
lr

ea
d
y 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
h

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

s 
p

ro
ce

ss
ed

 in
 li

gh
t 

o
f 

th
e 

er
ro

rs
 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
is

 c
la

im
. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

gr
ee

d
 –

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

h
et

h
er

 a
n

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
n

ee
d
 t

o
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 it

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
in

te
rn

al
 r

ev
ie

w
  

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 

 H
ea

d
 O

f 
T

re
as

ur
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 E

n
d
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 

H
R

A
 s

u
b

si
d
y 

b
as

e 
d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 a
n

 a
u
d
it

 t
ra

il 
is

 
av

ai
la

b
le

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
ll 

ch
an

ge
s 

m
ad

e 
to

 t
h

e 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
w

el
lin

gs
 o

n
 t

h
e 

b
as

e 
d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

gr
ee

d
 –

 r
ec

o
rd

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ke

p
t 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h

 a
n
 a

u
d
it

 t
ra

il 
o

f 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 d

at
a.

  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

n
ci

le
d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
at

ab
as

e 
o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
al

 b
as

is
. 

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

–
 R

ep
ai

rs
 a

n
d
 T

ec
h
n

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

 Im
m

ed
ia

te
 

D
is

ab
le

d
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

h
o

u
ld

 k
ee

p
 t

h
e 

te
rm

s 
an

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
sc

h
em

e 
u
n

d
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 c

h
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

re
fl

ec
te

d
 in

 c
la

im
s 

an
d
 r

et
u
rn

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
. 

H
ig

h
 

A
gr

ee
d
 –

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l w

ill
 k

ee
p

 t
h

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

sc
h

em
e 

u
n

d
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 c
h

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
re

fl
ec

te
d
 in

 
cl

ai
m

s 
an

d
 r

et
ur

n
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d
 f

o
r 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
. 

 H
ea

d
 o

f 
T

re
as

ur
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
 O

n
go

in
g 

 

Page 26



E
x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

  
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 r

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

9

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C
 

©
 2

0
1
1
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

. 
 A

ll
 r

ig
h

ts
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d

 

C
C

er
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 f
ee

s 

C
la

im
 o

r 
re

tu
rn

 
F

e
e
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 (

£
) 

F
e
e
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 (

£
) 

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
va

ri
a
n

c
e
s 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d
 c

o
u
n

ci
l t

ax
 b

en
ef

it
 s

ch
em

e 
20

,1
11

 
13

,0
60

 
A

d
d
it

io
n

al
 a

u
d
it

 w
o
rk

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 a

re
as

 w
h

er
e 

ex
te

n
d
ed

 t
es

ti
n

g 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi

rm
 q

u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 

is
su

es
. F

ee
 r

em
ai

n
s 

b
el

o
w

 m
ed

ia
n

. 

P
o

o
lin

g 
o
f 

h
o

us
in

g 
ca

p
it

al
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

 
86

2 
1,

16
3 

F
u
rt

h
er

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 in

 a
u
d
it

 w
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

H
R

A
 s

u
b

si
d
y 

1,
83

0 
2,

03
0 

F
u
rt

h
er

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 in

 a
u
d
it

 w
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

H
R

A
 s

u
b

si
d
y 

b
as

e 
d
at

a 
re

tu
rn

 
5,

10
4 

3,
59

5 
A

d
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 r

es
o

lv
e 

th
o

se
 a

re
as

 w
h

ic
h

 
w

er
e 

q
u
al

if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

su
b
se

q
u
en

t 
w

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l. 

 F
ee

 in
 li

n
e 

w
it

h
 u

p
p

er
 q

u
ar

ti
le

 a
s 

ex
p

ec
te

d
 

D
is

ab
le

d
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 
93

6 
56

5 
A

d
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

.  
F

ee
 in

 li
n

e 
w

it
h

 m
ed

ia
n

. 

N
at

io
n

al
 n

o
n
-d

o
m

es
ti

c 
ra

te
s 

re
tu

rn
 

3,
93

5 
3,

76
5 

A
d
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
.  

F
ee

 b
el

o
w

 u
p

p
er

 q
u
ar

ti
le

. 

C
o

st
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g 

to
 t

h
o

se
 c

h
ar

ge
d
 w

it
h

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
94

0 
- 

T
h

e 
co

st
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g 

to
 t

h
o
se

 c
h

ar
ge

d
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 
o

n
 t

h
e 

re
su

lt
s 

o
f 

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
 w

o
rk

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e 

ch
ar

ge
d
 a

s 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

io
n

 w
o
rk

 u
n

d
er

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 2

8 
o

f 
th

e 
A

u
d
it

 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 

T
o

ta
l 

3
3
,7

18
 

2
4
,1

7
8
 

T
h

e 
to

ta
l f

ee
 is

 h
ig

h
er

 t
h

an
 o

ri
gi

n
al

ly
 b

u
d
ge

te
d
 d

u
e 

to
 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 w

o
rk

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 in

 t
h

o
se

 a
re

as
 w

h
er

e 
q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
 

w
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

 

Page 27



© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 © 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership. 
 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently. 

No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from 
acting as a result of any material in this publication 

Page 28



  

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 

26 JANUARY 2011 

 

EXECUTIVE  

8 FEBRUARY 2011 

 

 

REVENUE BUDGET PROPOSALS 2011/12 

 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the strategic framework within which the estimates have been prepared 

and circulated for discussion and comment during December and highlights the issues that 
will affect the actual setting of the overall level of council tax. 

 
1.2 This report also summarises the overall budget position arising from the current cycle of 

Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

 

2.  BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 At its meeting of 7 December 2010, the Executive approved a budget strategy based upon 

key assumptions including the likely level of available resources and identified spending 
pressures. This strategy, including the revised medium term financial plan, indicated that the 
Council needed to reduce its revenue budget by about £6 million over the next four years.   

  
2.2 Savings proposals to reduce the base budget by £2.421 million (Appendix 1) have been 

incorporated within the budget papers presented to the individual Scrutiny Committees. 
 
2.3 The Government has now announced the provisional local government finance settlement 

for 2011/12 and 2012/13 and this was in line with previous forecasts.  For Exeter the 
guideline figures are as follows: 

 

• Formula Grant 2011/12  £9,219,387 (decrease 13.8% against 2010/11 ‘adjusted’ 
formula grant ) 

• Formula Grant 2012/13  £8,265,565 (decrease 10.3% against 2011/12 provisional 
formula grant ) 

 
 The provisional settlement now indicates that in overall cash terms our 2011/12 grant will 

decrease by £1,471,049 against the 2010/11 adjusted grant amount of £10,690,436. 
 

3. KEY ASSUMPTIONS 
 
3.1 In producing the Council’s medium term financial plan and annual revenue budget a number 

of factors have to be taken into consideration. Economic factors outside of our control such 
as inflation, interest rates, and economic growth etc. can have a huge impact upon the 
Council’s overall financial position. Consequently it is necessary to make a number of 
assumptions on such issues so that a meaningful financial plan can be produced. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



  

3.2 The following assumptions have been made with regard to the revenue budget for 2011/12: 
 

 Expenditure 
 

• Pay award   1.0% - to cover any pay award and increments 

• Utilities    3.0% 

• Insurance   3.0% 

• Rates    4.5% 

• Fuel    3.0% 

• General Inflation  Nil (see para 3.4 below) 

• Income (excluding car parks) 3.0% 
 

 
3.3 There has been no offer of an increase in pay for 2010/11. Unions have submitted a pay 

claim for 2011/12 of £250 for all employees, on which the Local Government Employers are 
consulting Councils. Given the Government’s announcement of a pay freeze for employees 
earning more than £21,000 and an increase of £250 for those earning less, it is felt prudent 
at this stage to budget next year for pay increases and increments totalling not more than 
1.0%.  

 
3.4 As a means of finding efficiency savings many non-pay budgets will again not be fully 

increased for inflation. There will be some exceptions to this in particular where there are 
ongoing contractual arrangements in place and where the Council has to meet the full price 
increase e.g. insurance and fuel. Recently released figures show that UK inflation increased 
in October mainly reflecting changes in fuel prices. The Consumer Prices Index (CPI) 
measure rose to 3.2%, up from 3.1% in September. The Retail Prices Index (RPI), the 
alternative measure of inflation which includes housing costs, however fell slightly to 4.5%, 
down from 4.6% a month earlier. The government target for the CPI measure remains at 
2%. 

 
3.5 With regard to interest rates the Bank of England has put the base rate of interest on hold at 

only 0.5% since March 2009. Although many analysts are predicting that interest rates could 
start to increase next year, in the short term they are likely to remain at their historically low 
levels. The low levels of interest rates affect the City Council in a number of ways. On the 
negative side the Council has to assume lower investment returns on cash deposits in 
comparison with previous years. This has also been exacerbated by the continuing lack of 
confidence within some parts of the banking sector. Conversely, on the positive side, the low 
interest rates currently prevailing means that the cost of borrowing is lower than normal. This 
is particularly important to the City Council now that it has to make use of borrowing in order 
to fund part of its capital programme.  

 

4. PROVISIONAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT 2011/12 
 
4.1 As indicated above the provisional settlement provides local authorities with their provisional 

funding allocations for the next two years (2011/12 and 2012/13) only. The final allocations 
are expected to be confirmed in January 2011. The City Council’s provisional grant 
settlement for 2011/12 is £9.219 million and this represents an overall cash decrease of 
£1.471 million (13.8%) compared to the current year (‘adjusted’ £10.690 million).  

 
4.2 The adjusted grant figure of £10.690 million for 2010/11 takes into account the transfer of 

funding responsibility for concessionary travel to Devon County Council from 1 April 2011. 
The amount of funding that has been ‘taken’ from Exeter is £3.688 million which comprises 
£1.356 million of formula grant and £2.332 million of specific grant.  

 

Page 30



  

4.3 Appendix 2 shows as a comparison the grant settlement figures for all Devon authorities 
covering the current spending review period. The final settlement figures will be announced 
later this month but at this stage it is not expected that they will be significantly different from 
the provisional announcement.  They appear to show that in comparison with other Devon 
Districts the City Council has fared slightly better in percentage terms of formula grant 
reduced. The cut of 13.8% in formula grant next year compares to an overall average cut of 
15% for all shire districts. This also compares with an average cut of 11.4% for Unitaries and 
12.6% for Counties. 

 
4.4 In the grant settlement the Government announced that councils will face an average cut of 

4.4%; and that no local authority would experience a decrease of more than 8.9% in 
2011/12, as a result of the grant reductions. It should be noted though that these figures 
relate to local authority “revenue spending power” – a new definition used by the 
Government, which encompasses an individual authority’s: 

 

• Council Tax Requirement; 

• Formula Grant; 

• Specific Grants; and 

• NHS funding for social care (not applicable for district councils). 
 

Appendix 3 shows a comparison of Devon authorities by using this new definition of revenue 
spending power. Using this measure Exeter does not compare favourably with the other 
Devon authorities. 

 

5. MONITORING OF REVENUE SAVINGS – 2010/11 

 
5.1 The revenue budget for the current financial year incorporated proposed savings of almost 

£1.1 million. If these are not achieved during the year then this may also have an adverse 
impact upon next year’s budget. These savings are monitored during the year as part of the 
stewardship process and the most recent revenue budget overview report to Executive in 
December indicated that the Council is on track to deliver those savings. Based upon 
financial information for the first 6 months of this year Service Committee budgets are 
forecasting an underspend of more than £300,000.  

 

6. FURTHER ISSUES TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
6.1 Before the Council can finalise its revenue budget for next year there are a number of issues 

that require further consideration as follows: -  
 

• Budget Consultation 

• Equality Impact Assessment 

• Central Government advice on the level of Council Tax 

• New Homes Bonus 

• Future spending pressures and review of the medium term financial planning process 

• The level of reserves and balances 
 

7. BUDGET CONSULTATION 

 
7.1 This is the second year running that the Council has undertaken a full public consultation 

specifically on the budget. For public consultation on the 2011/12 budget, it was agreed to 
use a single survey which would be made available online, printed in the Express & Echo 
and sent to the Wavelength panel. The survey asked participants to decide whether to 
protect, reduce or stop spending on different service areas. A summary report of the results 
of this consultation is attached in Appendix 4. 

 

Page 31



  

 

8. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
8.1 Equality Impact Assessments (EQIA) form part of the Council’s decision making process and 

are a tool to help the Council identify what effect or possible effects its work may have on 
different groups of people. All local authorities have a legal responsibility to assess their 
policies and functions, and to set out how they will monitor any possible negative impact on 
equality target groups. The Council needs to consider the impact on equalities of all new and 
reviewed Council strategies, policies, projects, services or functions, budget decisions and 
restructures. By anticipating the consequences of its actions on equality groups the Council 
can make sure that, as far as possible, any negative consequences are eliminated, 
minimised or counterbalanced by other measures, and opportunities for promoting equality 
are maximised. As part of this process, next year’s revenue savings proposals have been 
assessed for any potential equality issues and EQIA’s have been undertaken as appropriate 
with the results available on the council’s web site.   

 

9. COUNCIL TAX  

 
9.1 Council tax in England increased by an average of 1.8% in 2010/11, its lowest increase 

since the introduction of council tax in 1993/94. By way of a comparison, in 2010/11 Exeter 
City Council increased its band D council tax from £119.46 to £124.84; an increase of £5.38 
(4.5%). However, this still meant that Exeter had set the 4

th
 lowest council tax out of all the 

other District Councils. 

 
9.2 The provisional grant settlement confirmed that a local authority that freezes or reduces its 

Band D council tax in 2011/12 will receive an additional grant equivalent to having set a 2.5% 
increase from their 2010/11 level.  Any grant paid to an authority for freezing or reducing its 
council tax in 2011/12 will be matched exactly in each subsequent year of the Spending 
Review to compensate for the income foregone for a freeze. Authorities will not have to 
continue to freeze or reduce their council tax from 2012/13 to continue to receive this grant. 
For Exeter the compensating grant that it will receive for freezing its level of council tax at 
the 2010/11 level will be £118,456.  

 
9.3 The Localism Bill published on 13 December includes provisions to abolish Central 

Government capping and instead give the public the power to approve or veto excessive 
council tax rises. Any authority which wishes to increase its council tax beyond a threshold 
determined by the Secretary of State and approved by the House of Commons will be 
required to hold a referendum to seek the approval of their electorate. Local people would 
therefore have the final say on excessive increases; a majority no-vote would mean 
authorities having to refund their council taxpayers. It is expected that these provisions will 
come into effect from 2012/13 onwards. Council tax referendums will apply to all local, police 
and fire authorities.  

 

10. NEW HOMES BONUS 

 
10.1 The Coalition Government launched its consultation ‘New Homes Bonus’ on 12 November. 

This set out the Government’s policy to match fund the additional council tax raised when a 
new home is built, or a property is brought back into use, with an additional amount for 
affordable homes. The aim is to reward local authorities who take action now to increase 
house building. As announced in the Spending Review, the Government has set aside nearly 
£1 billion over the spending review period and this includes around £200 million to fully fund 
the scheme in 2011/12. However, funding beyond this level will have to be ‘top sliced’ from 
the formula grant settlement which due to the redistributive process of the new homes bonus 
means that the scheme will create financial winners and losers. The consultation period 
ended on 24 December and the Council has responded to the consultation. Although the 
Council could benefit from the new homes bonus reward no assumptions have yet been built 

Page 32



  

into the budget for future years. When it is fully known how the new scheme will work the 
budgetary impact will be considered as appropriate. 

 

11. FUTURE SPENDING PRESSURES AND REVIEW OF THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL 

PLANNING PROCESS 

 
11.1 The Council has a medium term financial strategy that forms an integral part of its formal 

financial planning processes. The key elements of this strategy form part of the overall 
Budget Strategy that is approved by Council each year.  As a brief reminder the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy contains the following key points: 

 

• It sets out a 4 year revenue financial plan (covering the period to 2014/15) 

• It identifies the likely level of grant support from the government 

• Sets out the likely level of future council tax increases 

• Identifies future service cost variations 

• Identifies level of future investment income 

• Takes into account the revenue consequences of our Capital Strategy 

• Identifies the future amount of efficiency savings/cost reductions required for a balanced 
budget  

 
11.2 An updated medium term financial plan (MTFP) covering the period 2010/11 to 2014/15 is 

attached in Appendix 5.  

 
11.3 Although the Council is required to approve an annual revenue budget it does also need to 

take into account future spending pressures and the likely level of available resources 
covered by its medium term financial plan. The latest forecast MTFP currently indicates that 
in addition to the savings proposed for next year the Council will need to reduce its revenue 
budget by a further £711,000 in 2012/13, £537,000 in 2013/14 and by a further £1.041 

million in of 2014/15.  This would amount to a cumulative reduction of £4.710 million over 

the next four years as shown in the table below:- 
 
  

Year Required Savings 
£000 

 
2011/12 
2012/13 
2013/14 
2014/15 

Total 

 
2,421 
   711 
   537 
1,041 

4,710 
 

 
 
11.4 Looking to the longer term there are a number of uncertainties and factors that could affect 

the future financial position. These include: the amount of grant support from central 
government after 2012/13, the level of future years’ pension contributions, potential costs 
arising from the review of service plans, the cost of any new statutory functions, and 
additional borrowing and revenue costs in respect of any new capital programme 
commitments. Any additional revenue costs that are not currently identified within the 
medium term financial plan will now have to be met from further savings.   

 

Page 33



  

12. BALANCES AND RESERVES 

 
12.1 The Council’s current policy is such that the minimum level of the General Fund Balance will 

now be £2 million. This is considered a sufficient level taking into account the potential level 
of financial risk facing the Council in the medium term. The latest estimated position of the 
General Fund Balance is that it will be £3.276 million as at 31 March 2011, equivalent to 
19.5% of Exeter’s net revenue budget. The Council’s revised medium-term financial plan 
(Appendix 5) indicates that the General Fund Balance will be reduced to the minimum 
recommended level of £2 million by the end of 2014/15.  

 
12.2 The Council also has other reserves that have been earmarked for specific purposes. The 

Council’s proposed revenue budget for 2011/12 makes use of £119,000 from the following 
earmarked reserves: - 

 
 Transfer (from)/ to reserves    
     
           £ 
 Isca Bowls         10,000 
 Devon Home Choice       27,000 

Planning Delivery Grant            (156,000) 

      (119,000) 

 

 

13. REVENUE ESTIMATES 2010/11 (APPENDIX 6) 

 
13.1 The Council’s revenue estimates for next year are being considered during the current cycle 

of Scrutiny Committee meetings for the final budget report to the Executive on 8 February 
2011.  In total, Service Committee Expenditure for 2011/12 is £12,816,990 which is 
£4,387,210 less than the current year. A summarised breakdown of this decrease is shown 
below: - 

 
           £000’s 
  
 Service Committee Expenditure 2010/11     17,204 
 Reduction of Concessionary Travel from base    (1,658) 
 Net Inflation allocation            (32) 
 Other budgetary adjustments          (276) 
 Proposed revenue savings       (2,421) 
 Service Committee Expenditure 2010/11     12,817 
  
 
13.2 In addition there are other items to take into account referred to as ‘below the line’ as they do 

not form part of the individual service controllable budgets. These include an estimate of 
£100,000 for net borrowing in respect of the overall cash balances, and transfers in respect 
of balances and reserves. The Council’s total General Fund Expenditure budget requirement 
for 2011/12 is planned to be £14,074,647, a decrease of £2,745,862 (16.3%) compared to 
2010/11. 

 

14. COUNCIL TAX BUDGET REQUIREMENT 2011/12 
 
14.1 When the Formula Grant of £9,219,387 and special tax freeze grant of £118,456 are both 

taken into account the resultant net expenditure to be financed from council tax is 
£4,736,804 (as indicated in Appendix 6), a small increase of £6,142 (0.1%) compared to 
2010/11.  

 

Page 34



  

14.2 Each year the Council must estimate the likely surplus or deficit position on its Collection 
Fund and any such amounts must be taken into account when determining the band D 
Council Tax amount for 2011/12. For next year it is forecast that the Collection Fund will be 
in a break even position.  

 
14.3 As indicated above it is proposed that the net expenditure to be funded by council tax for 

2011/12 is £4,736,804. When the tax base of 37,943 divides this amount, the proposed band 
D council tax for 2011/12 will be £124.84, which means that council tax will be frozen at the 
2010/11 level.    

 

15. SUMMARY 
 
15.1 Although the final grant settlement figures from the Government are not expected to be 

available until the end of January it is unlikely that they will be significantly different from the 
provisional settlement figures used elsewhere in this report. Based on this and the proposed 
revenue estimates presented to each Scrutiny Committee the proposed council tax increase 
for next year will be nil.  

 

16. RECOMMENDATION 
 
16.1 That Scrutiny Committee – Resources notes the recommendation to the Executive and 

comments accordingly.  
 
16.2 Executive approves the Draft Revenue budget proposals for 2011/12 and that the 

recommended minimum level for the General Fund Working Balance remains at £2 million. 
 
 
 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 

Background papers used in compiling this report:      
None 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1
1
-1

2 2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 t
o
 4

 d
a
y
s

8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

X
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 t
o
 4

 d
a
y
s

2
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 u
n
it
 b

y
 1

 f
te

4
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

X
/A

C
X

 A
d
m

in
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

G
ra

n
ts

 -
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 b

y
 2

0
%

6
9
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

6
9
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

s
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
1
6
8
,8

0
0

  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
6
8
,8

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 -

 A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 s

a
le

 o
f 
C

IP
F

A
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 :

D
e
le

te
 I
T

 T
ra

in
e
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

A
m

a
lg

a
m

a
te

 a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

2
6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

J
o
in

t 
p
ro

c
u
rm

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 p

e
c
e
d
e
n
ts

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
e
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
s
in

g
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
4
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

IT
 :

R
e
fo

rm
a
t 
b
u
lk

 p
ri
n
ti
n
g
 t
e
m

p
la

te
s

1
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

p
a
ir
/c

o
n
s
u
m

a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s

1
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

B
S

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 -

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
h
o
u
s
e

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
ta

ff
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 1

.5
 f
te

 (
c
o
p
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 E

D
R

M
S

)
3
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

S
a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
s

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

E
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 -

 c
a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta

ff
, 
p
o
s
ta

g
e
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 m

a
rr

ia
g
e
s
/c

iv
il 

c
e
re

m
o
n
ie

s
 a

t 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

G
u
ild

h
a
ll/

M
a
y
o
ra

lt
y
 -

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 e

tc
.

1
3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 p
o
s
ta

g
e
, 
v
e
n
d
in

g
, 
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
 c

le
a
n
in

g
4
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

C
S

C
 -

 c
a
s
h
ie

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

4
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

1

Page 37



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1
1
-1

2 2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

N
o
t 
fi
lli

n
g
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

5
8
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
8
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
7
7
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
le

ri
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x

2
0
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
a
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
ff
ic

e
r

9
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 c
o
m

b
in

e
 c

a
s
h
ie

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

re
d
it
o
rs

2
1
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
1
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

N
o
t 
fi
lli

n
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
in

 H
B

 s
e
c
ti
o
n

2
0
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 o

v
e
rt

im
e

2
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,1

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

le
ri
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x

4
0
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

D
e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

p
p
e
a
ls

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

P
o
s
t 
p
a
rt

ly
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 E

D
D

C
1
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

s
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
5
0
6
,3

0
0

  
  

  
  

4
2

,5
0

0
  
  
  
  

 
5
4
8
,8

0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

R
e
fu

s
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 -

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ro

u
n
d
s

1
3
5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
3

5
,0

0
0

R
e
fu

s
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 -

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

u
lk

y
 w

a
s
te

 c
h
a
rg

e
s

3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
fu

s
e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 -

 s
c
a
le

 d
o
w

n
 f
re

e
 b

u
lk

y
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 -

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
s

1
7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
y
c
la

te
s
 y

ie
ld

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 f
o
r 

p
ri
m

e
 s

it
e
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
s

4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
2
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 -

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 c

it
y
-w

id
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
2
7
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
7
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 -

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 n

e
w

 H
M

O
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 f
e
e

8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

P
e
s
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
- 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
s

1
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a
m

 -
 d

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t

4
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

a
tr

o
l 
- 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

u
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
6
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

6
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
R

o
o
m

 -
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

v
e
rt

im
e
 a

n
d
 p

/t
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t

1
7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2

Page 38



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1
1
-1

2 2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 :

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s
 S

e
c
ti
o
n

2
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
-n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

8
8
 A

lp
h
in

g
to

n
 R

o
a
d

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r'
s
 h

o
u
rs

1
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
/E

m
p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 t
e
a
m

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

U
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
te

d
 s

u
m

 m
o
n
e
y

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
0

0
,0

0
0

L
e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

IS
C

A
 C

e
n
tr

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 n
e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

In
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 s

1
0
6
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
s

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 T

e
a
m

 -
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 b

y
 1

ft
e

3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
is

u
re

 &
 M

u
s
e
u
m

s
 -

 F
le

x
ib

le
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
7
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

C
e
a
s
e
 a

ll 
s
p
o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

y
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
ra

p
s
to

re
1
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
5

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

*

C
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 :

In
c
re

a
s
e
 m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
fe

e
s
 b

y
 1

0
%

4
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

 
9
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
1
0
 y

e
a
r 

e
x
c
lu

s
iv

e
 r

ig
h
ts

 o
f 
b
u
ri
a
l 
o
p
ti
o
n

2
0
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
2
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
4
2
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 :

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
 p

o
s
t

1
6
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
6
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

llo
tm

e
n
t 
re

n
ts

 b
y
 1

8
%

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
 2

0
1
1

2
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

 
8
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

n
 s

c
ru

b
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 w

in
te

r 
s
p
o
rt

s
 f
e
e
s

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

in
c
re

a
s
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

s
p
o
rt

s
 f
e
e
s

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

G
ra

s
s
 o

v
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 s

h
ru

b
 b

e
d
s

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

o
w

lin
g
s
 g

re
e
n
s
 f
ro

m
 5

 t
o
 4

6
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,9

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 l
it
te

r 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s

8
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,7

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 r

e
a
c
ti
v
e
 t
e
a
m

 b
y
 1

 f
te

1
7
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
7
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

M
in

im
is

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
s
e
a
s
o
n
 p

it
c
h
 r

e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

T
a
k
e
 5

 p
it
c
h
e
s
 o

u
t 
o
f 
p
la

y
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s
 o

p
e
n
 a

t 
w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 b

y
 2

8
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

8
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
te

n
n
is

 c
o
u
rt

s
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 g

ra
s
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 b

y
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 p

o
s
ts

3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 s

h
ru

b
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
te

n
d
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 r

o
o
m

 c
le

a
n
in

g
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

C
e
a
s
e
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
 p

it
c
h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3

Page 39



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1
1
-1

2 2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

C
e
a
s
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

w
e
e
k
e
n
d
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 o
f 
p
a
rk

s
5
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
m

o
v
e
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
b
e
d
d
in

g
 i
n
 p

a
rk

s
3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 o

n
 u

n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 c

a
m

p
in

g
 i
n
 V

a
lle

y
 P

a
rk

s
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 :

R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 f
o
r

1
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

C
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
g
ra

p
h
ic

 d
e
s
ig

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

3
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

s
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
9
4
4
,7

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
5

4
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

1
,0

9
8

,7
0

0

E
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 :

D
e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

8
7
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

8
7
,4

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

2
5
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

B
ri
n
g
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e

9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

D
e
le

te
 1

 s
e
n
io

r 
c
iv

il 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
s
t

2
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

D
e
le

te
 1

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
tt
e
rn

s
1
9
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
9
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

T
o
u
ri
s
m

 :

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 r

e
 U

n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 P

a
s
s
a
g
e
s

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

w
it
h
d
ra

w
 g

ra
n
t 
to

 v
is

it
 D

e
v
o
n

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 b

u
d
g
e
t

1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

E
V

IT
/T

IC
 b

u
d
g
e
t

8
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 g

ro
u
p
 b

o
o
k
in

g
 f
e
e
s

2
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

M
e
rg

in
g
 o

f 
V

is
it
o
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 T

ic
k
e
ts

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

p
o
s
t

1
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

R
e
d
u
c
e
/r

a
s
ti
o
n
a
lis

e
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
p
ri
n
ti
n
g

1
1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 R

e
d
 C

o
a
t 
G

u
id

e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

3
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
to

p
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 O

p
e
n
 D

a
y
s
 l
e
a
fl
e
t

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
to

p
 s

u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

it
y
 b

re
a
k
s
.o

rg
3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

C
lo

s
e
 E

V
IT

 f
o
r 

o
n
e
 d

a
y
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k

1
3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
o
u
ri
s
m

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4

Page 40



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1
1
-1

2 2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
:

R
e
m

o
v
e
 p

ri
n
ti
n
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

1
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,3

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
to

p
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 D

e
v
o
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 S
h
o
w

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
to

p
 p

a
y
in

g
 D

C
C

 r
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
n
fo

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

3
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t

2
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
to

p
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 E

x
e
te

r 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 S

te
p
s

3
1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
1
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
s
tu

c
tu

re
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 P

o
s
t 
a
n
d
 S

e
n
io

r 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

R
e
d
u
c
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

A
rt

s
 a

n
d
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
ls

 :

S
to

p
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 V

ib
ra

p
h
o
n
ic

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l

7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u
m

m
e
r 

F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 
(O

p
ti
o
n
 1

) 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
to

 £
6
5
,0

0
0
 f
o
r 

s
m

a
lle

r 
fo

c
u
s
s
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

D
e
le

te
 o

n
e
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
p
o
s
t

1
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
4
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

S
to

p
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 L

ig
h
ts

 s
w

it
c
h
 o

n
7
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
to

p
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 L

ig
h
ts

3
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

R
e
m

o
v
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t

1
3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

E
s
ta

te
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
n
g
 u

p
/b

a
c
k
fi
ll 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

5
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

5
7
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f
e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

ie
s

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

S
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 I
T

 a
n
d
 T

ra
in

in
g
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

t 
L
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

t 
C

o
rn

 E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

t 
M

a
rk

e
ts

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

D
e
le

te
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
M

a
rk

e
ts

 A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
p
o
s
t

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

C
e
a
s
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
Q

u
a
y
 a

n
d
 B

ra
d
n
in

c
h
 P

la
c
e

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5

Page 41



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 P

O
S

S
IB

L
E

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

A
V

IN
G

S
 2

0
1
1
-1

2 2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 :

R
e
a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 f
e
e
 e

a
rn

in
g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t

6
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
In

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 p

re
-a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
s

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

P
la

n
n
in

g
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
- 

d
e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t

2
6
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
6
,2

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

n
e
w

 c
h
a
rg

e
s

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

F
o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
n
in

g
1
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 
re

d
u
n
d
a
n
t 
o
r 

p
a
rt

-t
im

e
6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

*

U
rb

a
n
 D

e
s
ig

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

 -
 d

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
(1

 o
f 
3
)

2
3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 
d
e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
t

1
9
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
9
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

*

s
u

b
 t

o
ta

l
8
0
1
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
1
,5

0
0

*
In

d
ic

a
te

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3
T

o
ta

l

£
£

£

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

1
6
8
,8

0
0

  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
6
8
,8

0
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

5
0
6
,3

0
0

  
  

  
  

4
2

,5
0

0
  
  
  
  

 
5
4
8
,8

0
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

9
4
4
,7

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
5

4
,0

0
0

  
  

  
 

1
,0

9
8

,7
0

0

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

8
0
1
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
1
,5

0
0

T
o

ta
l

2
,4

2
1
,3

0
0

  
  

 
1

9
6

,5
0

0
  

  
  

 
2

,6
1

7
,8

0
0

6

Page 42



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

F
O

R
M

U
L

A
 G

R
A

N
T

 D
E

C
R

E
A

S
E

S
 -

 D
E

V
O

N
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

IE
S

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

G
ra

n
t 

D
e
c
re

a
s
e

G
ra

n
t

G
ra

n
t

G
ra

n
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1
2
/1

3

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
D

e
c
re

a
s
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
D

e
c
re

a
s
e

£
m

£
m

%
£
m

%
£
m

%

D
e
v
o
n

2
1
1
.4

2
8

1
8
5
.8

0
3

-1
2
.1

%
1
7
1
.1

2
9

-7
.9

%
-4

0
.2

9
9

-1
9
.1

%

P
ly

m
o
u
th

1
2
3
.8

4
9

1
1
2
.3

3
1

-9
.3

%
1
0
5
.1

9
6

-6
.4

%
-1

8
.6

5
3

-1
5
.1

%

T
o
rb

a
y

7
0
.1

2
1

6
2
.4

1
6

-1
1
.0

%
5
7
.9

1
7

-7
.2

%
-1

2
.2

0
4

-1
7
.4

%

E
a
s
t 
D

e
v
o
n

7
.0

3
1

5
.9

2
9

-1
5
.7

%
5
.2

4
0

-1
1
.6

%
-1

.7
9
1

-2
5
.5

%

E
x
e
te

r
1
0
.6

9
0

9
.2

1
9

-1
3
.8

%
8
.2

6
6

-1
0
.3

%
-2

.4
2
4

-2
2
.7

%

M
id

 D
e
v
o
n

5
.6

8
9

4
.7

9
0

-1
5
.8

%
4
.1

7
1

-1
2
.9

%
-1

.5
1
8

-2
6
.7

%

N
o
rt

h
 D

e
v
o
n

7
.6

3
0

6
.5

0
1

-1
4
.8

%
5
.7

2
0

-1
2
.0

%
-1

.9
1
0

-2
5
.0

%

S
o
u
th

 H
a
m

s
4
.9

5
6

4
.1

7
6

-1
5
.7

%
3
.6

5
3

-1
2
.5

%
-1

.3
0
3

-2
6
.3

%

T
e
ig

n
b
ri
d
g
e

8
.7

0
3

7
.4

1
5

-1
4
.8

%
6
.5

1
7

-1
2
.1

%
-2

.1
8
6

-2
5
.1

%

T
o
rr

id
g
e

6
.0

6
4

5
.2

2
7

-1
3
.8

%
4
.6

5
5

-1
0
.9

%
-1

.4
0
9

-2
3
.2

%

W
e
s
t 
D

e
v
o
n

4
.0

4
4

3
.4

0
6

-1
5
.8

%
2
.9

7
7

-1
2
.6

%
-1

.0
6
7

-2
6
.4

%

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 S

P
E

N
D

IN
G

 P
O

W
E

R
 D

E
C

R
E

A
S

E
S

 -
 D

E
V

O
N

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
IE

S

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
S

p
e
n

d
in

g
S

p
e
n

d
in

g

P
o

w
e
r

P
o

w
e
r

P
o

w
e
r

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
D

e
c
re

a
s
e

£
m

£
m

£
m

%

D
e
v
o
n

5
6
8
.2

2
0

5
5
8
.1

4
7

-1
0
.0

7
3

-1
.8

%

P
ly

m
o
u
th

2
4
1
.4

0
6

2
3
0
.8

9
9

-1
0
.5

0
7

-4
.4

%

T
o
rb

a
y

1
4
0
.3

2
4

1
3
5
.4

9
1

-4
.8

3
3

-3
.4

%

E
a
s
t 
D

e
v
o
n

1
6
.7

6
1

1
5
.7

4
7

-1
.0

1
4

-6
.0

%

E
x
e
te

r
1
6
.7

8
2

1
5
.4

4
0

-1
.3

4
2

-8
.0

%

M
id

 D
e
v
o
n

1
2
.2

4
7

1
1
.4

6
6

-0
.7

8
1

-6
.4

%

N
o
rt

h
 D

e
v
o
n

1
6
.0

5
4

1
4
.7

8
4

-1
.2

7
0

-7
.9

%

S
o
u
th

 H
a
m

s
1
2
.1

7
3

1
1
.5

3
2

-0
.6

4
1

-5
.3

%

T
e
ig

n
b
ri
d
g
e

1
9
.2

9
9

1
8
.1

6
3

-1
.1

3
6

-5
.9

%

T
o
rr

id
g
e

1
0
.8

6
4

1
0
.1

2
2

-0
.7

4
2

-6
.8

%

W
e
s
t 
D

e
v
o
n

9
.3

6
2

8
.8

2
1

-0
.5

4
1

-5
.8

%

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 

Budget 2011/12 Consultation Report - SUMMARY 

Background 
For public consultation on the 2011/12 budget Members agreed to use a single survey which would be 
made available online, printed in the Express & Echo and sent to the Wavelength panel. In total 1437
responses were received across the three methods. This response gives us statistically reliable data.  

Responses by source 

Wavelength 838

Online 439

Express & Echo 160

Methodology 
The 2010 budget consultation work consisted of a single survey which asked participants to decide 
whether to Protect, Reduce or Stop spending on identified service areas categorised by Treasury 
Services. Participants were given the costs and income associated with each area. Services which are 
statutory did not have a Stop option. 
The survey was sent to the Wavelength panel at the end of September. The online survey went live on 
October 5 and the Express & Echo printed the survey in their edition of October 14.  

Tables and results 

The graph below plots the Stop score against the Protect score for each discretionary service. This gives 
an indication of public priorities. Services in the bottom right corner are more valued than services in the 
top left.

Discretionary services

Land drainageProperty and estates

Grants to arts

Community partnership

Christmas lights

Community patrol

Festivals and events

Highways and footpaths

Toilets

Play areas

Voluntary sector support

Community Safety Partnership

Countryside and waterways

Car parking

Parks, playing fields and open spaces

Sports facilities

Environmental strategy

Conservation & archaelogyTourism

Markets and halls

CCTV

Museums

Sport and play development

Economic development

Community consultation and 

involvement

Civic spending

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

7% 17% 27% 37% 47% 57% 67% 77%

Protect

S
to

p

Page 47



APPENDIX 4 
The graph below shows the Protect score for statutory services. For these services, respondents only 
had the option to Protect or Reduce spending, there was no Stop option. 

Statutory services

Recycling

Refuse collection

Building Control

Street cleaning

Food safety

Housing

Emergency Planning

Licensing

Environmental health

Litter enforcement

Land Charges

Cemeteries

Housing benefit admin

Elections & registration

Planning

C'cil tax & rates

Private sector housing

Council tax benefit

Committees/meetings

Cllr payments

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

Protect

Key Results 

Highways & Footpaths, Toilets and Land Drainage were the discretionary services 
that the public felt should be the most protected. 

Civic Spending was the least protected discretionary service. 

The discretionary services with the highest Stop scores were Christmas Lights 
and Civic Spending.

Refuse Collection and Recycling were the statutory services with the highest 
protect scores. 

The statutory services the public felt least inclined to protect were Councillors 
Expenses & Allowances (Cllr payments) and Supporting Committees & Meetings 
(Committees/meetings). 

For a more detailed breakdown of these figures and a copy of the full report, please contact Rob 
Simmonds, Consultation Officer, ext 5891. 

Page 48



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
  
5

M
E

D
IU

M
 T

E
R

M
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 P
L

A
N

 (
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 -

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
) 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
1
2
,0

9
0

9
,2

1
9

8
,2

6
6

8
,1

8
0

7
,4

8
3

E
x
tr

a
 g

ra
n
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
te

 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 f
re

e
z
e

1
1
8

1
1
8

1
1
8

1
1
8

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
  
- 

n
il 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 a

n
d
 2

.5
%

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
4
,7

3
0

4
,7

3
7

4
,8

8
0

5
,0

2
6

5
,1

7
8

L
ik

e
ly

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
6
,8

2
0

1
4
,0

7
4

1
3
,2

6
4

1
3
,3

2
4

1
2
,7

7
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

S
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
a
s
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t

1
7
,2

0
4

1
7
,5

8
3

1
3
,9

2
6

1
3
,8

9
4

1
3
,9

3
4

In
fl
a
ti
o
n

(3
2
)

3
0
0

3
0
0

3
0
0

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
s
ts

1
,6

6
9

2
1
3

2
0
0

2
0
0

R
e
p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
b
o
rr

o
w

in
g

3
7
9

6
9
1

2
8
4

7
7

3

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 /
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
(3

,5
6
4
)

(1
1
8
)

0
0

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

re
d

u
c
ti

o
n

s
 

(2
,4

2
1
)

0
0

0

1
7
,5

8
3

1
3
,9

2
6

1
4
,6

0
5

1
4
,4

7
1

1
4
,4

3
7

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 B

u
d
g
e
ts

4
0

A
IM

 C
a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

1
1
2

N
e
t 
In

te
re

s
t

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 U

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

(3
7
3
)

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y

1
,0

0
0

C
a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y

(1
,0

0
0
)

1
7
,3

6
2

1
4
,0

2
6

1
4
,7

0
5

1
4
,5

7
1

1
4
,5

3
7

O
th

e
r 

fu
n

d
in

g

A
re

a
 B

a
s
e
d
 G

ra
n
t

(5
8
)

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
/ 
(f

ro
m

) 
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s

(5
5
6
)

(1
1
9
)

(2
0
)

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
/ 
(f

ro
m

) 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

7
2

1
6
7

(7
1
0
)

(7
1
0
)

(7
1
7
)

(5
4
2
)

4
8

(7
3
0
)

(7
1
0
)

(7
1
7
)

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

0
(7

1
1
)

(5
3
7
)

(1
,0

4
1
)

(2
,2

8
9
)

T
o

ta
l 
N

e
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

1
6
,8

2
0

1
4
,0

7
4

1
3
,2

6
4

1
3
,3

2
4

1
2
,7

7
9

0
0

0
0

O
p
e
n
in

g
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

3
,8

9
8

3
,9

7
0

4
,1

3
7

3
,4

2
7

2
,7

1
7

C
lo

s
in

g
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

3
,9

7
0

4
,1

3
7

3
,4

2
7

2
,7

1
7

2
,0

0
0

B
a
la

n
c
e
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

2
3
.6

%
2
9
.4

%
2
5
.8

%
2
0
.4

%
1
5
.7

%

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

 

D
R

A
F

T
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

£
£

£
%

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 -

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

1
3
,6

6
1
,8

2
0

1
2
,9

2
3
,0

5
0

(7
3
8
,7

7
0
)

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 -

 E
c
o
n
o
m

y
5
5
9
,5

7
0

(2
,2

5
6
,5

6
0
)

(2
,8

1
6
,1

3
0
)

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 -

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

5
,4

7
2
,1

7
0

5
,5

4
7
,9

5
0

7
5
,7

8
0

F
R

S
1
7
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

8
6
1
,1

4
0

(3
3
3
,4

0
0
)

(1
,1

9
4
,5

4
0
)

L
e
s
s
 N

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
C

h
a
rg

e
s

(3
,3

5
0
,5

0
0
)

(3
,0

2
4
,6

9
0
)

3
2
5
,8

1
0

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

  
T

O
T

A
L

1
7
,2

0
4
,2

0
0

1
2
,8

5
6
,3

5
0

(4
,3

4
7
,8

5
0
)

(2
5
.3

)%

N
e
t 
In

te
re

s
t

(1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 G

ro
w

th
 I
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 G

ra
n
t

(5
0
,0

0
0
)

0
5
0
,0

0
0

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y

5
0
0
,0

0
0

0
(5

0
0
,0

0
0
)

M
in

im
u
m

 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

3
2
4
,0

0
0

1
,0

7
0
,0

0
0

7
4
6
,0

0
0

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

  
N

E
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

1
7
,8

7
8
,2

0
0

1
4
,0

2
6
,3

5
0

(3
,8

5
1
,8

5
0
)

(2
1
.5

)%

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

/(
fr

o
m

) 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e

(5
7
0
,1

7
1
)

1
6
7
,2

9
7

7
3
7
,4

6
8

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
to

/(
fr

o
m

) 
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s

(4
8
7
,5

2
0
)

(1
1
9
,0

0
0
)

3
6
8
,5

2
0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
1
6
,8

2
0
,5

0
9

1
4
,0

7
4
,6

4
7

(2
,7

4
5
,8

6
2
)

(1
6
.3

)%

F
o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t

(1
2
,0

8
9
,8

4
7
)

(9
,2

1
9
,3

8
7
)

2
,8

7
0
,4

6
0

(2
3
.7

)%

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 F

re
e
z
e
 G

ra
n
t

0
(1

1
8
,4

5
6
)

(1
1
8
,4

5
6
)

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 T
A

X
 N

E
T

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

4
,7

3
0
,6

6
2

4
,7

3
6
,8

0
4

6
,1

4
2

0
.1

%

C
H

A
N

G
E

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



  

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 
26 JANUARY 2011 

 
EXECUTIVE 

8 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME (2011/12 – 2013/14) 
 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To approve the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Capital Programmes for 
2011/12 along with schemes identified for the following two years.   
 
 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, the 
Council is required to prepare three-year capital expenditure plans and consider the 
affordability of its capital investment during all the years in which it will have a financial 
impact on the authority. 
 
The key objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure that the capital investment plans 
of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable and in considering its 
programme for capital investment, the Council is therefore required to have regard to: 
 
- Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and rent levels 
- Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing 
- Value for money, e.g. option appraisal 
- Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning 
- Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority 
- Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plans 
 

3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 

AVAILABLE CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
In considering the affordability of the Council’s capital plans, the authority is required to 
consider all of the resources currently available to it and estimated resources for the 
future. 
 

3.2 Together with money from the Council’s own capital receipts and capital reserves, the 
annual capital programme is financed from; Government grants, Section 106 monies, 
partnership funding and other external grants and contributions.  If necessary, the 
Council may borrow to supplement these funds. 
 

3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 

Under the prudential capital finance system, individual authorities are responsible for 
deciding the level of their affordable borrowing.  The system is designed to encourage 
authorities that need, and can afford, to borrow for capital investment to do so. 
 
The Council must ensure that any borrowing decisions remain affordable and to this end, 
has to adopt a number of prudential indicators, which are set out in the Prudential Code 
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, developed by CIPFA.  A report to the Executive 
setting out the Council’s Prudential Indicators will be presented at the February meeting 
along with the overall budget. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
 
 
3.9 

 
General Fund Available Resources 
 
The Council will carry forward no unapplied General Fund capital receipts into 2011/12 
as the unapplied capital receipts were fully utilised by the 2009/10 capital programme 
and the Council now needs to borrow in order to achieve the programme.  Appendix 1 
sets out the use of the resources available in respect of the General Fund. 
 
Based broadly upon the assumption that 70% of the Capital Programme will be spent in 
the financial year it is approved, it is forecast that the Council will have to continue to use 
borrowing for capital purposes. 
 
In previous year’s the Council has received support for private sector housing 
improvements from the Government’s Regional Housing Pot which enabled the authority 
to set its budget at a level which was financed 100% from that grant.  However, grant 
assistance ceases from 2011/12 and it is up to each authority to determine the level of 
programme which will have to be financed from authorities own resources.   
 
A sum of £400,000 has been included in the proposed programme in each year from 
2011/12 to cover the estimated expenditure required to meet the City’s mandatory 
obligations to support energy efficiency measures and other improvements to private 
sector housing (based on the existing level of demand). 
 
A borrowing requirement of £21.9 million has been identified over the next four financial 
years, which will have an ongoing impact on the Council Tax.  The current revenue cost 
of borrowing is approximately £66,000 for each £1 million that is borrowed which is 
historically low.  The affordability of the General Fund capital programme is ultimately 
decided by the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the Council Tax. 
 

3.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.11 

Housing Revenue Account Available Resources 
 
The capital programme for 2011/12 will be funded from the Major Repairs Allowance, 
Revenue Contribution, any capital receipts generated in the period and use of part of the 
HRA working balance.  Appendix 2 sets out the use of the resources available in respect 
of the HRA. 
 
Based upon the medium term financial plan it is projected that borrowing will not need to 
commence until 2013/14 for HRA capital purposes, at which point the borrowing costs 
will have an incremental impact on housing rents. 
 

3.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.13 

Council House Building Programme Available Resources 
 
Wave One of the Council House Building Programme is nearing completion.  The 
programme is being funded from grant funding from the National Affordable Housing 
Programme through the Homes and Communities Agency, budget transfer from the 
Council’s Affordable Housing Programme and borrowing.   The borrowing will be funded 
from within the rental stream of the new properties. 
 
The funding schedule for the programme is attached at Appendix 3. 
                                                                                                                                                  

4. GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

4.1 The proposed capital programme is set out in Appendix 4.  The table below sets out the 
total of new capital bids included within the three-year capital expenditure plans for 
Executive to consider for approval: 

 

 

Page 54



Status 2011/12 
£ 

2012/13 
£ 

2013/14 
£ 

Future Years 
£ 

Pre-approved 
schemes 

7,521,210 1,874,260 951,000 681,000 

New bids 1,216,000 100,000   

Total General 
Fund Capital 
Programme 

8,737,210 1,974,260 951,000 681,000 

 
 
4.2 

 
The capital programme has been set out in line with the Exeter Vision themes, in order to 
demonstrate how the Council’s capital priorities help to contribute towards their 
achievement.  Although a number of schemes contribute to the achievement of more 
than one vision theme, they have been placed under the theme to which it is considered 
the scheme contributes the most. 
 

4.3 Details of the new capital bids are set out below, in order to provide an indication of how 
the Council seeks to further its capital investment. 
 

4.3.1 An Accessible City 
 
It is proposed that funding is made available to enhance the provision of mapping and 
information for visitors to Exeter City Centre; to continue to enhance the competitiveness 
of the city centre in relation to other centres in the region.   
 

4.3.2 An Electronic City 
 
The proposed programme for the next financial year includes provision to continue with 
the programmes to replace and upgrade the Council’s  PC’s and enhance and upgrade 
the corporate network infrastructure, and to increase server and storage capacity to meet 
the current and predicted demand. 
 
Budget provision is also sought to implement security controls to strengthen prevention 
of the disclosure of restricted and sensitive information and provide information 
assurance.  This will ensure compliance with requirements for connection to the 
Government secure internet.  Such connections will increase as more Government 
agencies are available online and connect to that network.  
 

4.3.3 A Cultural and Fun Place to be 
 
It is proposed that funding be made available to continue the Council’s programme of 
improving the city’s parks, to build on the work of previous years, which has seen a 
significant increase in the appreciation and use of parks. 
 
The programme will provide for a range of further improvements including the upgrading 
of paths and structures within parks and open spaces, and the renewal of fencing and 
paths and landscaping improvements to neighbourhood parks. 
 
Other proposed schemes include: 

• The next phase of the programme to replace allotment toilets 

• The reroofing of St Katherine’s Priory, to safeguard the structure and install 
insulation to modern standards, thereby reducing carbon emissions. 

• Improvements to Cowick Barton changing rooms: replacing external paving, and 
repairing external walls and flashings to the rooflight. 

 

  

Page 55



4.3.4 A City Where the Environment is Cared For 

 

Funding is requested for a range of environmental improvements to Cowick Street 
including enhancements to St Thomas Centre frontage (including tree planting, de-
cluttering and a new recycling area), together with general enhancement to Cowick 
Street through co-ordinated street furniture and tree planting.  This scheme is being 
undertaken following the development of detailed design with the Steering Group 
comprising community members, ward councillors and portfolio holder. 
 
Funding is also requested for the provision of three green waste shredders, which will 
reduce the carbon footprint and improve operational efficiency, and in so doing adhere to 
reduced volume capacity at the green waste tip. 
 

4.3.5 Achieving Excellence in Public Services 
 
It is proposed that funding be made available to allow for the continuation of the 
Council’s vehicle replacement programme to ensure that a safe and reliable fleet is 
maintained. 
 
Funding is also required for works to Verney House arising from the stock condition 
survey.  Replacing the roof covering will maintain the integrity of the office 
accommodation.  As scaffolding will be a significant part of the cost, it is also appropriate 
to undertake external decorating at the same time. 
 
Budget provision is also sought to replace the existing franking machine which is at the 
end of its life. 
 

  
 

5. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

5.1  For 2011/12, the medium term financial plan provides for a capital programme of 
£6,734,270, including slippage from 2010/11 of £1,130,000.  A copy of the HRA Capital 
Programme is attached at Appendix 5. 
 

5.2 The HRA Capital Programme will be funded by: 
  

• Major Repairs Allowance 

• HRA Capital Receipts 

• HRA Working Balance 

• Revenue Contributions to Capital 
 

 
£3.501m 
£0.993m 
£0.499m 
£1.741m 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5.3  
 
 
 
5.4 

These resources will be utilised to improve Council dwellings so that they meet not only 
the Government’s Decent Homes Standard but also the higher Exeter Standard, which 
the Council has agreed with its tenants. 
 
In accordance with the HRA Business Plan, the capital programme is intended to meet 
the Decent Homes Standard by 2010 and the Exeter Standard by 2015. 
 
 

Page 56



 

6. COUNCIL HOUSE BUILDING PROGRAMME 

 

6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 

Wave 1 
 
The Sivell Place development has now been completed whilst Merlin Crescent is 
expected to be completed by 31st March 2011.  The 2011/12 capital programme 
provides for residual expenditure in respect of this scheme of £119,160.  A copy of the 
Council House Building Programme (Wave 1) is attached at Appendix 6. 
 
Wave 2 
 
The bid to the Homes and Communities Agency for Wave Two of the programme was 
unsuccessful.  Design fees for the planned scheme were incurred in 2009/10 and 
2010/11 totalling £237,799 which it is hoped to recover in future from prospective 
developers as part of land transfer arrangements. 
 

 
 
7. 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

7.1 It is recommended that the Scrutiny Committee – Resources supports and the Executive 
approves: 
 

• The General Fund capital programme for 2011/12 as set out in Appendix 4 
 

 
 

• The HRA capital programme for 2011/12 as set out in Appendix 5 
 

• The Council House Building programme for 2011/12 as set out in Appendix 6 
 

 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 

 
CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 

 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
None 
 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
F

u
tu

re
 Y

e
a
rs

T
O

T
A

L

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
L

E

U
s
a
b
le

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 
F

o
rw

a
rd

G
F

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
3
6
0
,0

0
0

5
9
5
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

1
,8

5
5
,0

0
0

G
F

 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

a
n
a
l 
B

a
s
in

 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

5
3
6
,2

8
8

5
3
6
,2

8
8

1
,0

7
2
,5

7
5

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
O

u
tl
a
y

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 G

ra
n
t

3
3
7
,7

5
4

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

1
,4

6
1
,7

5
4

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
G

ra
n
t

1
,4

5
3
,6

2
3

0
0

0
0

1
,4

5
3
,6

2
3

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

o
tt
e
ry

 F
u
n
d

1
,6

9
1
,4

6
7

9
6
5
,2

0
0

2
,6

5
6
,6

6
7

O
th

e
r 

- 
G

ra
n
ts

/E
x
te

rn
a
l 
F

u
n
d
in

g
/R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
/S

1
0
6

1
,2

1
5
,0

5
6

3
0
9
,4

7
7

1
,5

2
4
,5

3
3

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 A

v
a
il
a
b

le
5
,0

5
7
,9

0
0

2
,6

8
6
,9

6
5

1
,1

1
7
,2

8
8

5
8
1
,0

0
0

5
8
1
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

2
4
,1

5
2

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 

C
o
m

m
it
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
9
,6

9
5
,4

4
0

7
,5

2
1
,2

1
0

1
,8

7
4
,2

6
0

9
5
1
,0

0
0

6
8
1
,0

0
0

3
0
,7

2
2
,9

1
0

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 N

e
w

 B
id

s
1
,2

1
6
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
,3

1
6
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
1
9
,6

9
5
,4

4
0

8
,7

3
7
,2

1
0

1
,9

7
4
,2

6
0

9
5
1
,0

0
0

6
8
1
,0

0
0

3
2
,0

3
8
,9

1
0

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 S
P

E
N

D
 I
N

 Y
E

A
R

1
5
,4

4
8
,0

0
0

1
0
,6

5
3
,0

4
7

3
,7

1
3
,5

8
5

1
,2

5
7
,9

7
8

7
6
2
,0

0
0

3
1
,8

3
4
,6

1
0

U
N

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
:

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 
F

o
rw

a
rd

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r

5
,0

5
7
,9

0
0

2
,6

8
6
,9

6
5

1
,1

1
7
,2

8
8

5
8
1
,0

0
0

5
8
1
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

2
4
,1

5
2

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

(6
8
0
,4

0
0
)

3
4
2
,3

7
1

9
2
,8

4
4

1
6
0
,8

8
6

0
(8

4
,3

0
0
)

L
e
s
s
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 S

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r

(1
5
,4

4
8
,0

0
0
)

(1
0
,6

5
3
,0

4
7
)

(3
,7

1
3
,5

8
5
)

(1
,2

5
7
,9

7
8
)

(7
6
2
,0

0
0
)

(3
1
,8

3
4
,6

1
0
)

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t

1
1
,0

7
0
,5

0
0

7
,6

2
3
,7

1
2

2
,5

0
3
,4

5
4

5
1
6
,0

9
2

1
8
1
,0

0
0

2
1
,8

9
4
,7

5
8

U
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5
T

O
T

A
L

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
L

E

U
s
a
b
le

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 
F

o
rw

a
rd

1
1
0
,7

1
1

1
1
0
,7

1
1

O
th

e
r 

H
R

A
 S

a
le

s
5
8
2
,0

0
0

0
0

0
5
8
2
,0

0
0

R
T

B
 s

a
le

s
, 
n
e
t 
o
f 
p
o
o
lin

g
2
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e

3
,3

4
2
,8

8
3

3
,4

8
0
,9

8
4

3
,4

8
1
,0

0
0

3
,4

8
1
,0

0
0

3
,4

8
1
,0

0
0

1
7
,2

6
6
,8

6
7

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 C

a
p
it
a
l

1
,5

4
4
,1

4
7

1
,6

7
3
,3

5
0

1
,2

0
0
,0

0
0

8
3
0
,0

0
0

8
3
0
,0

0
0

6
,0

7
7
,4

9
7

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y

6
9
,9

6
5

0
0

0
0

6
9
,9

6
5

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e

1
6
0
,6

9
5

5
8
7
,2

2
5

2
2
8
,5

1
0

0
0

9
7
6
,4

3
0

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
6
,0

1
0
,4

0
1

5
,8

4
1
,5

5
9

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

4
,4

1
1
,0

0
0

4
,4

1
1
,0

0
0

2
5
,6

8
3
,4

7
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

M
R

A
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,3

4
2
,8

8
3

3
,4

8
0
,9

8
4

3
,4

8
1
,0

0
0

3
,4

8
1
,0

0
0

3
,4

8
1
,0

0
0

1
7
,2

6
6
,8

6
7

H
R

A
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,4

0
6
,8

0
7

2
,8

8
9
,0

1
6

1
,1

6
0
,5

1
0

1
,1

6
0
,5

1
0

1
,1

6
0
,5

1
0

7
,7

7
7
,3

5
3

F
e
e
s

3
6
8
,0

0
0

3
6
4
,2

7
0

3
6
8
,0

0
0

3
6
8
,0

0
0

3
6
8
,0

0
0

1
,8

3
6
,2

7
0

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
5
,1

1
7
,6

9
0

6
,7

3
4
,2

7
0

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

2
6
,8

8
0
,4

9
0

U
N

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
:

U
s
a
b
le

 R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 
F

o
rw

a
rd

1
1
0
,7

1
1

8
9
2
,7

1
1

0
0

0
1
1
0
,7

1
1

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r

5
,8

9
9
,6

9
0

5
,8

4
1
,5

5
9

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

4
,4

1
1
,0

0
0

4
,4

1
1
,0

0
0

2
5
,5

7
2
,7

5
9

L
e
s
s
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 S

p
e
n
d

(5
,1

1
7
,6

9
0
)

(6
,7

3
4
,2

7
0
)

(5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0
)

(5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0
)

(5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0
)

(2
6
,8

8
0
,4

9
0
)

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t

0
0

5
9
8
,5

1
0

5
9
8
,5

1
0

1
,1

9
7
,0

2
0

U
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
9
2
,7

1
1

0
0

0
0

0

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

:

B
a
la

n
c
e
 B

ro
u
g
h
t 
F

o
rw

a
rd

2
,6

8
1
,7

2
9

2
,5

2
1
,0

3
4

1
,9

3
3
,8

0
9

1
,7

0
5
,2

9
9

1
,7

0
5
,2

9
9

2
,6

8
1
,7

2
9

U
s
e
d
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
6
0
,6

9
5

5
8
7
,2

2
5

2
2
8
,5

1
0

0
0

9
7
6
,4

3
0

B
a
la

n
c
e
 C

a
rr

ie
d
 F

o
rw

a
rd

2
,5

2
1
,0

3
4

1
,9

3
3
,8

0
9

1
,7

0
5
,2

9
9

1
,7

0
5
,2

9
9

1
,7

0
5
,2

9
9

1
,7

0
5
,2

9
9

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

O
T

A
L

£
£

£
£

£

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

V
A

IL
A

B
L

E

W
a
v
e
 O

n
e

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 A
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
5
1
0
,5

0
0

5
1
0
,5

0
0

G
ra

n
t 
fr

o
m

 H
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 A

g
e
n
c
y

2
0
4
,4

7
0

1
,2

7
4
,9

9
2

6
5
,5

3
8

1
,5

4
5
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 A

v
a
il
a
b

le
2
0
4
,4

7
0

1
,7

8
5
,4

9
2

6
5
,5

3
8

0
2
,0

5
5
,5

0
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

2
0
4
,4

7
0

2
,7

3
0
,2

8
0

1
1
9
,1

6
0

0
3
,0

5
3
,9

1
0

U
N

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
:

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r

2
0
4
,4

7
0

1
,7

8
5
,4

9
2

6
5
,5

3
8

0
2
,0

5
5
,5

0
0

L
e
s
s
 E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 S

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r

(2
0
4
,4

7
0
)

(2
,7

3
0
,2

8
0
)

(1
1
9
,1

6
0
)

0
(3

,0
5
3
,9

1
0
)

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 R

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t

(9
4
4
,7

8
8
)

(5
3
,6

2
2
)

0
(9

9
8
,4

1
0
)

G
ra

n
t 
to

 b
e
 C

a
rr

ie
d
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
0

0
0

0

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 T

H
E

M
E

S
L

e
a
d

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
O

ri
g

in
a
l

N
e
w

 B
id

s
T

o
ta

l
F

u
tu

re

O
ff

ic
e
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
Y

e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

P
R

O
S

P
E

R
O

U
S

 C
IT

Y

1
B

a
s
in

 /
 Q

u
a
y
s
id

e
M

C
6
4
9
,8

5
0

5
7
7
,4

4
0

6
9
1
,0

3
0

5
3
6
,2

6
0

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
y
s
id

e
 b

y
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 l
a
n
d
 a

c
q
u
is

it
io

n

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

it
y

6
4
9
,8

5
0

5
7
7
,4

4
0

6
9
1
,0

3
0

5
3
6
,2

6
0

0
0

A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
L

E
 C

IT
Y

1
K

in
g
 W

ill
ia

m
 S

tr
e
e
t 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

R
C

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
a
c
ili

ty
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

, 
a
n
d
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
, 
b
y
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 c
le

a
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

p
a
in

ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

2
W

e
ll 

O
a
k
 P

a
rk

 F
o
o
tp

a
th

/C
y
c
le

w
a
y

R
S

8
0
,0

0
0

8
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
o
o
tp

a
th

/c
y
c
le

w
a
y
 i
n
 W

e
ll 

O
a
k
 P

a
rk

 t
o
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 S

h
a
k
e
s
p
e
a
re

 R
o
a
d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

C
C

T
V

, 
re

-l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
in

g
 o

ff
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

W
y
v
e
rn

 P
a
rk

3
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 S
ig

n
a
g
e
 P

h
 3

 
R

S
3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

E
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 m
a
p
p
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
m

a
p
p
in

g

a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

 t
o
 E

x
e
te

r 
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
.

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 C

it
y

2
8
0
,0

0
0

0
3
0
,0

0
0

3
1
0
,0

0
0

0
0

0

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 C

IT
Y

1
S

e
rv

e
r 

a
n
d
 S

to
ra

g
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

P
E

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h
e
 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
s
e
rv

e
rs

 n
o
w

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 u

s
e
fu

l 
lif

e

2
IT

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

ta
ff
 R

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s

P
E

3
7
,5

0
0

3
7
,5

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
IT

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
o
ft
w

a
re

, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lif

y
 a

s
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
P

C
 &

 M
o
b
ile

 D
e
v
ic

e
s
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
P

E
1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

u
p
g
ra

d
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 P

C
s

4
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
P

E
3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

A
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 b

a
n
d
w

id
th

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
te

 s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

5
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

G
C

S
x
 &

 P
C

I 
D

S
S

P
E

4
8
,0

0
0

4
8
,0

0
0

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
th

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

 

o
f 
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 &

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 &

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

fo
r 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
  
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
S

e
c
u
re

 I
n
te

rn
e
t.
  
S

u
c
h
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

s
 m

o
re

 G
o
v
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 &

 c
o
n
n
e
c
t 
to

 t
h
a
t 
n
e
tw

o
rk

.

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 C

it
y

0
3
7
,5

0
0

2
1
8
,0

0
0

2
5
5
,5

0
0

0
0

0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 -

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 A

N
D

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 Y
E

A
R

S

W
h

a
t 

th
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

Page 65



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 T

H
E

M
E

S
L

e
a
d

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
O

ri
g

in
a
l

N
e
w

 B
id

s
T

o
ta

l
F

u
tu

re

O
ff

ic
e
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
Y

e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 -

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 A

N
D

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 Y
E

A
R

S

W
h

a
t 

th
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 A
N

D
 F

U
N

 P
L

A
C

E
 T

O
 B

E

1
P

la
y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

s
 -

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
M

3
,7

4
0

3
,7

4
0

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

la
y
in

g
 f
ie

ld
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 

ro
o
m

s
.

2
P

la
y
 A

re
a
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
ts

A
C

1
5
4
,2

2
0

1
5
4
,2

2
0

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
s

3
S

p
o
rt

s
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

A
C

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

4
P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 P

a
th

s
 &

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

P
M

4
0
,0

0
0

1
7
0
,0

0
0

2
1
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

s
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

n
a
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 &

 

u
s
e
 o

f 
p
a
rk

s
. 
 T

o
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

o
v
e
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 d

e
c
a
d
e
s
.

5
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 R

A
M

M
 r

e
 H

L
F

 P
a
rk

s
 B

id
P

M
1
7
6
,8

0
0

1
7
6
,8

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 R
A

M
M

 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

6
E

x
w

ic
k
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
A

C
1
8
,2

6
0

1
8
,2

6
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o
r 

fi
x
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 f
it
ti
n
g
s
, 
o
u
ts

id
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 h

u
t 
a
n
d
 

lig
h
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 g

a
m

e
s
 a

re
a
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 E
x
w

ic
k
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e

7
R

A
M

 M
u
s
e
u
m

 R
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
C

5
5
2
,8

0
0

5
5
2
,8

0
0

M
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
t 
u
s
in

g
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

o
tt
e
ry

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

8
R

A
M

 M
u
s
e
u
m

 O
ff
 S

it
e
 S

to
re

A
C

4
1
,0

3
0

4
1
,0

3
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 s
to

re
 f
o
r 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
A

lb
e
rt

 

M
e
m

o
ri
a
l 
M

u
s
e
u
m

 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 i
n
 E

x
to

n
 R

o
a
d

9
C

o
w

ic
k
 B

a
rt

o
n
 C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 R

o
o
m

s
 -

 R
e
p
la

c
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
P

a
v
in

g
 

P
M

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
0

C
o
w

ic
k
 B

a
rt

o
n
 C

h
a
n
g
in

g
 R

o
o
m

s
 -

 R
e
p
a
ir
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
W

a
lls

 &
 F

la
s
h
in

g
s
 t
o
 

R
o
o
fl
ig

h
t 
&

 C
h
im

n
e
y
s

P
M

8
,0

0
0

8
,0

0
0

T
o
 r

e
ta

in
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 a

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
a
b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

1
1

N
e
ig

b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 P

a
rk

s
 &

 L
o
c
a
l 
O

p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 -

 P
a
th

 &
 F

e
n
c
in

g
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l 
&

 

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
P

M
6
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
jo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
a
rk

s
 &

 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 n

e
g
h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 

p
a
rk

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 
fe

n
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

a
th

s
, 
a
n
d
 l
a
n
s
c
a
p
in

g

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

1
2

A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 -
 N

e
x
t 
P

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
T

o
ile

t 
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

P
M

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

1
3

R
e
ro

o
fi
n
g
 o

f 
S

t 
K

a
th

e
ri
n
e
's

 P
ri
o
ry

A
C

4
7
,0

0
0

4
7
,0

0
0

T
o
 r

e
ta

in
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 a

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
a
b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 

w
o
rk

s
 w

ill
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 i
n
 i
n
s
ta

lli
n
g
 i
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
.

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
a
n

d
 F

u
n

 P
la

c
e
 T

o
 B

e
4
3
4
,0

5
0

6
0
2
,8

0
0

3
4
5
,0

0
0

1
,3

8
1
,8

5
0

0
0

0

T
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
t 

le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 

a
n
d
 D

D
A

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

Page 66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 T

H
E

M
E

S
L

e
a
d

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
O

ri
g

in
a
l

N
e
w

 B
id

s
T

o
ta

l
F

u
tu

re

O
ff

ic
e
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
Y

e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 -

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 A

N
D

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 Y
E

A
R

S

W
h

a
t 

th
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

H
E

A
L

T
H

Y
 A

N
D

 A
C

T
IV

E
 C

IT
Y

1
D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

R
N

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

T
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 l
e
g
a
l 
d
u
ty

 t
o
 p

a
y
 g

ra
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
s

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti

v
e
 C

it
y

0
2
8
1
,0

0
0

0
2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

2
8
1
,0

0
0

C
A

R
E

D
 F

O
R

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

1
H

o
m

e
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
R

N
6
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 w

h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
s
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
re

e
n
 b

in
s
 f
o
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

2
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
P

M
1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

d
io

x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
n
e
rg

y
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 
re

n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

3
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 R

o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 P

a
th

w
a
y
s

P
M

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 r

o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
a
fe

r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

4
C

e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
u
rc

h
e
s
 S

to
ra

g
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

P
M

3
9
,8

0
0

3
9
,8

0
0

T
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 t
o
 v

e
h
ic

le
 

a
n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
s
to

ra
g
e
 a

t 
H

ig
h
e
r 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 a

n
d
 E

x
w

ic
k
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry

5
M

id
i 
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

a
n
k
s

R
N

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
b
ri
n
g
 b

a
n
k
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

s

6
C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

K
H

4
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
4
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
's

 

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
 G

a
n
d
y
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

h
a
y
 G

a
te

, 
F

o
re

 S
tr

e
e
t 
a
n
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
m

in
o
r 

w
o
rk

s

7
P

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
3
 G

re
e
n
 W

a
s
te

 S
h
re

d
d
e
rs

P
M

3
6
,0

0
0

3
6
,0

0
0

T
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

in
g
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
, 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 s

o
 d

o
in

g
 a

d
h
e
re

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 v

o
lu

m
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

t 
th

e
 g

re
e
n
 w

a
s
te

 t
ip

.

8
M

in
c
in

g
la

k
e
 /
 N

o
rt

h
b
ro

o
k
 S

tu
d
y

D
H

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

o
d
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
d
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

9
C

o
w

ic
k
 S

tr
e
e
t 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
W

o
rk

s
R

S
1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
C

o
w

ic
k
 S

t 
&

 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 K

e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 E

x
e
te

r 
&

 C
o
w

ic
k
 S

t 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
&

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
h
o
p
s
 &

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 
&

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
  
L
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 C

o
w

ic
k
 s

t 
a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

 y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
h
o
p
s
, 

w
it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
ra

ff
ic

 g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

a
re

d
 F

o
r

7
9
,8

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

0
1
3
6
,0

0
0

6
1
5
,8

0
0

0
4
8
0
,0

0
0

0
2
7
0
,0

0
0

0
0

S
A

F
E

 C
IT

Y

1
R

e
p
la

c
e
 D

ig
it
a
l 
R

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

e
n
tr

e
R

N
1
6
,0

0
0

1
6
,0

0
0

4
8
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
d
ig

it
a
l 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n

t

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
c
e
n
tr

e

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

S
a
fe

 C
it

y
0

1
6
,0

0
0

0
1
6
,0

0
0

1
6
,0

0
0

0
0

Page 67



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 T

H
E

M
E

S
L

e
a
d

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
O

ri
g

in
a
l

N
e
w

 B
id

s
T

o
ta

l
F

u
tu

re

O
ff

ic
e
r

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
Y

e
a
rs

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 -

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 A

N
D

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 Y
E

A
R

S

W
h

a
t 

th
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t

ry
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 I
N

 T
H

E
 C

IT
Y

1
R

e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 G

ra
n
ts

R
N

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 m
a
k
in

g
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
m

e
s
 f
it
 f
o
r 

h
a
b
it
a
ti
o
n

2
S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 G

ra
n
ts

S
W

1
,9

1
4
,8

5
0

2
,0

2
3
,1

8
0

3
,9

3
8
,0

3
0

T
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y

3
E

x
tr

a
le

t 
P

lu
s

S
W

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

2
,0

1
4
,8

5
0

2
,4

2
3
,1

8
0

0
4
,4

3
8
,0

3
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
0
0
,0

0
0

A
C

H
IE

V
IN

G
 E

X
C

E
L

L
E

N
C

E
 I
N

 P
U

B
L

IC
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
V

e
h
ic

le
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
P

M
3
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

2
V

e
rn

e
y
 H

o
u
s
e
 W

o
rk

s
 A

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 S

to
c
k
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y

M
C

4
5
,0

0
0

4
5
,0

0
0

T
o
 r

e
ta

in
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 a

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 u

s
e
a
b
le

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
.

R
e
p
la

c
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
o
f 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 w

ill
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 

o
ff
ic

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
s
c
a
ff
o
ld

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
s
t,
 i
t 
is

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 o

th
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 a

t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 s

c
a
ff
o
ld

in
g
 (

ie
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
n
g
)

3
B

e
lle

 I
s
le

 D
e
p
o
t 
- 

S
e
c
u
re

 E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
S

to
ra

g
e

P
M

1
2
5
,0

0
0

1
2
5
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
s
e
c
u
ti
y
 o

f 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

4
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
F

ra
n
k
in

g
 M

a
c
h
in

e
J
S

1
7
,0

0
0

1
7
,0

0
0

T
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 f
ra

n
k
in

g
 m

a
c
h
in

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

(a
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
) 

to
 r

e
a
c
h
 i
ts

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 l
im

it
 

u
n
d
e
r 

R
o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.

5
C

a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 S

ta
ff
 C

o
s
ts

A
S

2
6
1
,0

0
0

2
6
1
,0

0
0

2
6
1
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
c
e
rt

a
in

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lif

y
 a

s
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
n
g
in

e
e
rs

, 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

 a
n
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
rs

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 E

x
c
e
ll
e
n

c
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

0
2
6
1
,0

0
0

4
8
7
,0

0
0

7
4
8
,0

0
0

2
6
1
,0

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
3
,4

5
8
,5

5
0

4
,5

9
8
,9

2
0

1
,2

1
6
,0

0
0

8
,7

3
7
,2

1
0

1
,9

7
4
,2

6
0

9
5
1
,0

0
0

6
8
1
,0

0
0

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

K
e
y
 T

a
b

le

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 M

u
s
e
u
m

s
A

C

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
S

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
y
)

M
C

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
E

c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

K
H

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

D
H

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

J
S

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
IT

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
E

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
M

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d
 T

o
u
ri
s
m

R
B

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g
, 
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

R
C

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

R
S

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

R
N

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
S

W

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 r

e
lia

b
le

 f
le

e
t 
is

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

Page 68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3
2
0
1
3
/1

4
T

o
ta

l

B
/F

W
D

T
o

ta
l

£
£

£
£

£
£

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 I
N

 T
H

E
 C

IT
Y

1
A

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s

4
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
5
0
,0

0
0

4
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,3

5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
A

s
b
e
s
to

s
 S

u
rv

e
y

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

3
A

s
b
e
s
to

s
 W

o
rk

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
B

a
th

ro
o
m

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
5
0
,0

0
0

6
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

6
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,5

5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
H

e
a
ti
n
g

4
0
0
,0

0
0

1
,1

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
1
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

9
7
6
,7

1
0

  
  
  
  
  

9
7
6
,7

1
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
,4

5
3
,4

2
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
R

e
n
n
e
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 H

e
a
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
,0

0
0

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
O

th
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
5
0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
,0

0
0

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
R

e
p
o
in

ti
n
g

3
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
S

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
R

e
p
a
ir
s

5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0

F
ir
e
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 W

o
rk

5
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1

C
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
A

re
a
s

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
0
0
,0

0
0

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
R

e
w

ir
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d

5
9
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

5
9
0
,0

0
0

4
4
7
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

4
4
7
,8

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,4

8
5
,6

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
3

E
n
e
rg

y
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

1
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,0

0
0

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
5

D
o
o
r 

E
n
tr

y
 S

y
s
te

m
  
In

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6

F
e
e
s

3
6
4
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
6
4
,2

7
0

3
6
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

3
6
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,1

0
0
,2

7
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7

F
ir
e
 A

la
rm

s
 a

t 
S

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
,0

0
0

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
8

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
C

o
n
c
re

te
 C

a
n
o
p
ie

s
2
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0
,0

0
0

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
9

K
it
c
h
e
n
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

4
0
0
,0

0
0

9
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

1
,3

0
0
,0

0
0

9
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

9
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
,1

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0

P
la

s
ti
c
 w

in
d
o
w

s
/ 
d
o
o
rs

 r
e
a
c
ti
v
e

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

2
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
1

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 R

e
ro

o
fi
n
g

2
5
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
5
0
,0

0
0

2
5
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
5
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2

R
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
w

e
lli

n
g
s

2
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
6
0
,0

0
0

2
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

2
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l 
H

R
A

 C
a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
,1

3
0
,0

0
0

5
,6

0
4
,2

7
0

6
,7

3
4
,2

7
0

  
  
  

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

5
,0

0
9
,5

1
0

1
6
,7

5
3
,2

9
0

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 T
H

E
M

E
S

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 -
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 A
N

D
 F

U
T

U
R

E
 Y

E
A

R
S

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 6

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

2
0

1
1

/1
2

2
0

1
2

/1
3

T
o

ta
l

£
£

£
£

£

W
a

v
e

 O
n

e

1
M

e
rl
in

 C
re

c
e

n
t

1
4

2
,4

1
0

  
 

2
,1

7
9

,0
5

0
  

  
1

1
9

,1
6

0
  

  
  

 
2

,4
4

0
,6

2
0

  
  

  
 

2
S

iv
e

ll 
P

la
c
e

6
2

,0
6

0
  

  
 

5
5

1
,2

3
0

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
6

1
3

,2
9

0
  

  
  

  
  

T
o

ta
l 

H
o

u
s

e
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

2
0

4
,4

7
0

  
 

2
,7

3
0

,2
8

0
  

  
1

1
9

,1
6

0
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

,0
5

3
,9

1
0

  
  

  
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 H
O

U
S

E
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES 
26 JANUARY 2011 

 
EXECUTIVE  

8 FEBRUARY 2011 

 

COUNCIL 
22 FEBRUARY 2011 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2011/12 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 
1.1 To seek adoption by the Council of the Treasury Management Strategy Report, 

incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy 2011/12, as required under section 
15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 and to seek adoption of revised clauses in 
respect of Treasury Management as part of the Council’s Financial Regulations. 
 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 In February 2004 the Council adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public 
Services: Code of Practice, which requires the Council to approve a treasury 
management strategy before the start of each financial year.  In 2009, CIPFA updated 
the guidance and require the adopted clauses from 2004 to be updated and re-
approved. 
 

2.2 In addition, the Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG) issued 
revised guidance on local authority investments in March 2010 that requires the Council 
to approve an investment strategy before the start of each financial year. 
 

3. CHANGES TO THE STRATEGY 
 

3.1 The Strategy has been extended to form an overall Treasury Management Strategy as 
required by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.  The Council has taken 
the decision to disinvest the Externally Managed Fund and to use the investments to 
reduce overall borrowing.  This has been reflected in the new strategy.  Investments with 
the highest rated UK banks and local authorities have been increased to £3m per 
institution (or group of institutions). 
 

4. CLAUSES TO BE FORMALLY ADOPTED 
 

4.1 
 

The following clauses to be adopted and replace section 13 of Financial Regulations: 
 

 1.    The Council will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for effective treasury 
management : 
− a treasury management policy statement, stating the policies, objectives and 

approach to risk management of its treasury management activities 
− suitable treasury management practices (TMPs), setting out the manner in 

which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and 
prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. 

 
The content of the treasury management policy statement and TMPs will follow the 
recommendations contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject only to 
amendment where necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of Exeter City 

Agenda Item 10

Page 73



Council.  Such amendments will not result in a material deviation from the Code’s 
key principles. 

 

 2. The Council’s Executive will receive reports on its treasury management policies, 
practices and activities, including, as a minimum: 

• An annual treasury management strategy including as a minimum an annual 
strategy and plan in advance of the year 

• A mid-year review 
• An annual report after the end of the financial year in the form prescribed in 

the TMPs. 

 3 The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and monitoring of its 
treasury management policies and practices to the Executive, and for the 
execution and administration of treasury management decisions to the Head of 
Treasury Services, who will act in accordance with the Council’s policy 
statement and TMPs and, if a CIPFA member, with CIPFA's Standard of 
Professional Practice on Treasury Management. 

 
 4. The Council designates Scrutiny Committee – Resources to be responsible for 

ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies. 
 

5. RISKS INVOLVED 
 

5.1 The economic conditions of the past 18 months have demonstrated the risks involved in 
treasury management. The Council is still awaiting the final outcome of the winding up 
process of the Icelandic Banks and has strengthened our lending criteria substantially 
since then.  
 

6. CONCLUSIONS 
 

6.1 The Strategy continues to limit the types of institution that the Council will lend money to, 
in order to minimise risk.  
 

7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7.1 That Scrutiny and Executive support and Executive recommend to Council the adoption 
of the new Treasury Management clauses for inclusion in Financial Regulations and the 
Treasury Management Strategy and delegations contained therein. 
 

 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended 
Background Papers used in compiling this report:  
1. Treasury Management Strategy 

Page 74



 
APPENDIX A 

 
EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2011/12 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The Council’s strategy is based on the requirements of the DCLG’s Guidance on Local 

Government Investments (“Guidance”) and CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public 
Services: Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“CIPFA TM Code”). 
 

2. Economic Context 
 

2.1 The strength of the UK economy’s recovery from recession has surprised analysts and 
policymakers alike.  A 2.0% increase in the six months to September left gross domestic 
product 2.8% higher than a year ago.  Economic activity has been boosted by three 
main factors: the exceptionally loose stance of monetary policy, the lower value of 
sterling and the recovery in international trade.  With exports cheaper because of the 
depreciation of sterling, the recovery in global trade has primarily benefited the 
manufacturing sector. 

 
2.2 Despite the recession, inflation has remained high.  The annual change in the consumer 

price index increased to 3.2% in October, and has been above the 2% target for 36 of 
the past 45 months.  A number of factors have boosted consumer price inflation.  The 
resumption of the 17.5% VAT rate, a rise in commodity prices and higher import prices 
due to the past depreciation of sterling have acted to offset the effect from weaker 
domestic demand. 
 

2.3 The current factors boosting inflation are considered temporary by members of the Bank 
of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) and not representative of the underlying 
demand and supply situation.  Inflation is expected to remain above target throughout 
2011, but fall below target in 2012 as the effect of these temporary factors wanes.  This 
outlook is driven by the expectation that potential supply comfortably exceeds demand, 
and that this significant margin of spare capacity will bear down on pricing pressure.  
The continuing poor availability of credit and forthcoming fiscal tightening are expected 
to weigh on domestic demand throughout the forecast period. 
 

2.4 The outlook suggests the MPC will look to maintain the current level of monetary policy 
to support demand in the face of potential difficulties.  Our advisor’s central forecast is 
for Bank Rate to remain at 0.5% for most of 2011, and although rising thereafter, 
remaining below “normal” levels until 2013.  Longer-term interest rates are likely to rise 
slowly as the economic situation improves and government borrowing increases, but the 
rate of increase will be tempered by the coalition government’s austerity measures and 
the fact that UK government debt is still considered to be a safe investment. 
 

2.5 The high level of uncertainty surrounding the economic and political outlook means 
there are substantial risks on both sides of the economy.  The speed of interest rate 
rises depends on the recovery in domestic demand, which in turn depends on private 
sector confidence and the strength of the global economy.  Long-term rates may rise 
more significantly if investors risk appetite increases due to faster economic growth or, if 
planned spending cuts undershoot expectations, the government loses investor 
confidence.  Equally rates could fall in the event of a sovereign default or non-financial 
event, as long as the UK retains its safe haven status. 
 

Page 75



 

2.6 Sterling Consultancy Services central interest rate forecast – November 2010 

  
Bank Rate 

1 month 
LIBOR 

3 month 
LIBOR 

12 month 
LIBOR 

25 year 
PWLB 

Current 0.50 0.57 0.74 1.47 5.26 

Q1 2011 0.50 0.60 0.80 1.60 5.45 

Q2 2011 0.50 0.60 0.90 2.00 5.55 

Q3 2011 0.50 0.60 1.00 2.50 5.65 

Q4 2011 1.00 1.10 1.50 2.75 5.75 

H1 2012 2.00 2.10 2.50 3.50 5.85 

H2 2012 3.00 3.10 3.50 4.25 5.95 

H1 2013 4.00 4.10 4.50 5.00 6.05  
  
2.7 HM Treasury Survey of Forecasts – November 2010 

Average annual Bank Rate %  

2011 2012 2013 2014 

Highest 1.8 3.1 3.6 4.5 

Average 0.7 1.5 2.5 3.1 

Lowest 0.5 0.5 0.6 1.2  
  
3. Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios 

 
3.1 Current portfolio 

The Council’s treasury portfolio as at 31st December 2010 was as follows. 
 

  Principal 
Amount £m 

Interest Rate % 

Investments  - maturing 2010/11 1.9 0.71 - 0.73% 

 - maturing 2011/12 6.1 0.95 -1.45% 

 - maturing later 0 - 

Total Investments 8.0 0.71 – 1.45% 

Debt - maturing 2010/11 0 - 

 - maturing 2011/12 10.0 0.75 – 0.80% 

 - maturing later 0 - 

Total Debt 10.0 0.75 – 0.80% 

Net Debt 2.0   
  
3.2 Expected changes 

According to current cash flow forecasts, net investments are expected to reduce by £8 
million by 31st March 2011 and remain very low by 31st March 2011, as a result of capital 
expenditure using up the money withdrawn from Investec.  
The cash flow forecast includes planned borrowing of £7 million as part of the 2011/12 
capital programme.  The decision of whether to take external borrowing will be made in 
light of current and forecast interest rates. 
 

3.3 Budget implications 
The net budget for interest payments in 2011/12 is £100,000.  If actual levels of 
investments and borrowing, and actual interest rates differ from those forecast, 
performance against budget will be correspondingly different. 
 

Page 76



 

4. Investment Strategy 
 

4.1 The Council holds small surplus funds, which represent income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  Much of the Council’s reserves have 
been used to reduce the amount of debt taken on during the current financial year.  Both 
the CIPFA Code and the CLG Guidance require to Council to invest its funds prudently, 
and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the 
highest rate of return, or yield. 
 

4.2 Specified Investments 
Specified investments are those expected to offer relatively high security and liquidity, 
and can be entered into with the minimum of formalities.  The CLG Guidance defines 
specified investments as those: 

• denominated in pounds sterling, 

• due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement, 

• not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and 

• invested with one of: 
o the UK Government, 
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or 
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”. 

 
4.3 The Council defines the following as being of “high credit quality” for making specified 

investments, subject to the monetary and time limits shown. 
    

In-house investment Monetary limit1 Time limit 

UK owned, or with a major UK subsidiary2 
banks and building societies holding short-term 
credit ratings no lower than F1+ and P-1 
 

£3m each 
 

12 months 

UK owned banks, or banks with a major UK 
subsidiary2 and building societies holding short-
term credit ratings no lower than F1 and P-1 
 

£1m each 3 months 

Money market funds3 holding the highest 
possible credit ratings (AAA) 
 

£3m each 
 

1 week 

UK Central Government 
 

no limit 12 months 

UK Local Authorities4 £3m each 
 

12 months 

 
 1 banks within the same group ownership are treated as one bank for limit purposes 

2 e.g. Santander / National Australia Bank 
3 as defined in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations 2003 
4 as defined in the Local Government Act 2003 
 

4.4 The maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) 
will be £3 million.  A group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a 
single organisation for limit purposes. 
 

4.5 Non specified Investments 
• No non specified investments will be made by the Council. 
 

Page 77



 

4.6 Foreign countries 
Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold a AAA or AA+ 
sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies, and to a maximum of 
£3 million per country.  Only banks that are domiciled in the UK but are owned in 
another country will be used and need to meet the rating criteria of and will count 
against the limit for both countries.  There is no limit on investments in the UK. 
 

4.7 Liquidity management 
The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine the 
maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.  The forecast is compiled 
on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and payments over-estimated to 
minimise the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet 
its financial commitments. 
 

 Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium term 
financial plan and cash flow forecast. 
 

4.8 Credit ratings 
The Council uses credit ratings from two main rating agencies Fitch Ratings Ltd and 
Moody’s Investors Service to assess the risk of loss of investments.  The lowest 
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality. 
 
Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers, who will 
notify changes in ratings as they occur.  Where an institution has its credit rating 
downgraded so that it fails to meet the above criteria then: 

• no new investments will be made, 

• any existing investments that can be recalled at no cost will be recalled, and 

• full consideration will be given to the recall of any other existing investments 
 
Where a credit rating agency announces that it is actively reviewing an organisation’s 
credit ratings with a view to downgrading it so that it is likely to fall below the above 
criteria, then no further investments will be made until the outcome of the review is 
announced.   
 

4.9 Other information on the security of investments 
Full regard will be given to other available information on the credit quality of banks and 
building societies, including credit default swap prices, financial statements and rating 
agency reports.  No investments will be made with an organisation if there are 
substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may meet the above criteria. 
 

4.10 Investment instruments 
Investments may by made using any of the following instruments: 

• interest paying bank accounts 

• fixed term deposits 

• call or notice deposits (where the Council can demand repayment) 

• certificates of deposit 

• treasury bills and gilts issued by the UK Government 

• bonds issued by multilateral development banks  

• shares in money market funds 
 

Page 78



 

5. Planned investment strategy for 2011/12 – In-house 
 

5.1 The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three categories: 

• Short-term – cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next month, plus 
a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the same period. 

• Medium-term – cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash flow cycle, 
including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned uses of reserves, and a 
longer-term contingency. 

• Long-term – cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily to 
generate investment income. 

 
5.2 The Council’s in-house managed funds are based on the likely cash-flow position and 

rarely exceed one month. Investments will be made to ensure that cash flow is protected 
and borrowing is not required.  However, on occasion, money has been invested for a 
longer period up to 364 days.  These are funds which are not required for day-to-day 
cash management purposes. 
 

5.3 The Council will continue to seek to utilise its call accounts (which are linked to base 
rate) and use short-dated deposits up to 3 months to ensure liquidity of assets for day-
to-day cashflow.  Although these are essentially cash, a limit of £3 million is retained on 
the accounts.  Additionally, the Council’s bankers, the Co-operative Bank, operate a 
Public Sector Reserve Account, which automatically sweeps excess funds from our 
general bank account into one paying a higher interest rate.  There is no limit on the 
account, with interest varying depending on the amount in the account.  However, the 
credit rating of the Co-operative Bank no longer meets our lending criteria and therefore 
only minimal funds are kept in this account, where possible. 
 

6. Borrowing Strategy 
 

6.1 The Council currently holds no long-term loans.  The Council’s capital financing 
requirement (CFR, or underlying need to borrow) as at 31st March 2010 is expected to 
be £19.4 million, and is forecast to rise to £26.5 million by March 2011 as capital 
expenditure is incurred. 
 

6.2 The maximum expected long-term borrowing requirement for 2011/12 is: 
 

 £m 

Not borrowed in previous years 19.4 

Forecast increase in CFR 7.1 

Loans maturing in 2010/11   0.0 

TOTAL 26.5  
  
6.3 However, to reduce risk and minimise cost, it has been decided to defer borrowing until 

later years, and to temporarily reduce the size of the Council’s investment balance 
instead. 
 

6.4 In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally up to one month) 
to cover unexpected cash flow shortages. 
 

6.5 Sources of borrowing  
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be: 

• Public Works Loan Board 

• any institution approved for investments above 

• any other bank or building society on the Financial Services Authority list. 
 

Page 79



6.6 Debt instruments 
Loans will be arranged by one of the following debt instruments: 

• fixed term loans at fixed or variable rates of interest 

• lender’s option borrower’s option (LOBO) loans. 
 

 As an alternative to borrowing loans, the Council may also finance capital expenditure 
and incur long-term liabilities by means of: 

• leases 

• Private Finance Initiative. 
 

6.7 Borrowing strategy to be followed 
 

 With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, it continues to 
be more cost effective in the short-term to not borrow and reduce the level of 
investments held instead.  However, with long-term rates forecast to rise in the coming 
years, any such short-term savings will need to be balanced against potential longer-
term costs. 
 

7. Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 
 

7.1 The Council sets each year, in February, prudential indicators for Treasury 
Management, to ensure that proper control of borrowing and investing is maintained.  
These indicators can be found in the Council’s budget book. 
 

8. Other Matters 
 

8.1 The draft revised CLG Investment Guidance also requires the Council to approve the 
following matters each year as part of the investment strategy: 
 

8.2 Investment consultants 
The Council contracts with Sterling Consultancy Services to provide advice and 
information relating to its investment and borrowing activities.  However, responsibility 
for final decision making remains with the Council and its officers.  The services 
received include: 

• advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports, 

• advice on investment decisions, 

• notification of credit ratings and changes, 

• other information on credit quality, 

• advice on debt management decisions, 

• accounting advice, 

• reports on treasury performance, 

• forecasts of interest rates, and 

• training courses. 
 

 The quality of the advisory service is monitored by the Head of Treasury Services. 
 

8.3 Investment training 
The needs of the Council’s treasury management staff for training in investment 
management are assessed annually as part of the staff appraisal process, and 
additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff change.  Staff 
regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by Sterling 
Consultancy Services and CIPFA. 

 

Page 80



 

8.4 Investment of money borrowed in advance of need 
The Council may, from time to time, borrow in advance of spending need, where this is 
expected to provide the best long term value for money.  Since amounts borrowed will 
be invested until spent, the Council is aware that it will be exposed to the risk of loss of 
the borrowed sums, and the risk that investment and borrowing interest rates may 
change in the intervening period.  These risks will be managed as part of the Council’s 
overall management of its treasury risks. 
 

 The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit.  The 
maximum periods between borrowing and expenditure is expected to be two years, 
although the Council does not link particular loans with particular items of expenditure. 
 

9. Investment Reports 
 

9.1 At the end of the financial year, the Council will prepare a report on its investment 
activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report.  Progress will also be reported after six 
months of the financial year. 
 

 
 
 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
JANUARY 2011 
 
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – RESOURCES 
26 JANUARY 2011 

 
EXECUTIVE 

8 FEBRUARY 2011 
 
 

LICENSING OF THE GUILDHALL 

FOR WEDDINGS AND CIVIL PARTNERSHIPS 

 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1 To propose an application be submitted to Devon County Council for the Guildhall to be 
licensed for weddings and civil partnerships. 

 
2. BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 For a number of years, any premise holder has been able to apply for their premises to be 
licensed by the local Registration Authority for the conduct of weddings and civil partnership 
ceremonies.  There are some 16 approved premises within Exeter, which, in 2009, 
undertook 268 of the 610 ceremonies held in Exeter.  

 
2.2 A fee is payable which, if the application is successful, then licenses the premises for three 

years.  An inspection of the premises is undertaken by the County Registration Manager to 
ensure that it is appropriate and fitting for this use.  Following this, the application has to be 
advertised in the local press during which time objections can be lodged on the grounds of 
unsuitability of the premises.  If after a period of 21 days no objections are received, the 
premises are licensed for a period of three years. 

 
2.3 As the Guildhall is such a unique building within the City, and already attracts a number of 

private bookings for dinners and receptions for which a fee is payable, it is considered likely 
that the Guildhall would be deemed suitable as a wedding venue, and would prove popular.   

 
3. THE ISSUES 

 

3.1 Due to an agreement between Devon County Council and this authority for the use of the 
Guildhall free of charge for three Citizenship Ceremonies per year, this Council would pay 
the costs associated with the necessary public notice (approximately £200) instead of the 
normal application fee of £2,000. 

 
3.2 It is down to the licence holder to set the appropriate fee which hirers would pay for the use 

of their premises as the venue for their wedding or civil partnership.  Research has been 
carried out locally to ascertain the fees charged in other City Centre venues, and it is 
proposed that a fee of £600 per wedding or civil partnership ceremony be charged.  It is 
suggested that due to its uniqueness in the City, it will prove to be a popular venue which 
could generate in the region on 15 – 20 weddings per year, accruing £8,000 to £11,000 net 
income per annum after allowing for operational costs. 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 83



3.3 As part of the licence conditions, a ‘responsible person’ has to be on site for the hour 
before, and during, the wedding or civil partnership ceremony.  It is suggested that the 
Senior Mace Sergeant be nominated as the responsible person, with all Guildhall staff as 
well as the Mayoral Support Officer and the Head of Corporate Customer Services, being 
also so designated.   

 
3.4 Due to the popularity of the Guildhall for charity events and other private bookings, and so 

as to allow use of the Guildhall for such events to continue, it is proposed that in the first 
instance, weddings and civil partnerships only take place at the Guildhall on alternate 
Saturdays, with a maximum of 2 weddings or civil partnership ceremonies per day.  For 
comparison, Larkbeare House which whilst only being offered on one Saturday per month, 
undertook 34 ceremonies in 2009.  No ceremonies would be held on weekdays although it 
may be available for a Sunday or Bank Holiday hire subject to additional costs being 
covered. 

 
3.5 The proposal of allowing the Guildhall to be used for weddings and civil partnerships will 

obviously have an impact on its availability for civic functions and other private hirings, 
particularly those which may need to be arranged at short notice.  It is hoped that by 
suggesting the use of the Guildhall for ceremonies on alternate Saturdays, this will help 
alleviate this.  Again, this will be reviewed after 12 months of operation. 

 
3.6 The views of the Police and local Highway Authority have been sought with regards to 

access to the Guildhall for wedding vehicles.  Neither have any objection to the proposal.  
However, the Traffic Regulation Order which restricts access to private vehicles to the High 
Street would need amending – this would cost approximately £1,000 due to the need for 
two public notices being published in a local newspaper.  There is no budgetary provision 
for this.  However, it is felt that the level of income which could be forthcoming will far 
exceed the one-off expenditure required to facilitate this. 

 
4. THE PROPOSAL 

 

4.1 It is proposed that an application to licence the Guildhall for weddings and civil partnership 
ceremonies be submitted to Devon County Council on the basis outlined in this report.  The 
arrangement will be reviewed after 12 months of operation, and if no issues have been 
identified, the arrangement will continue for the duration of the initial licence (three years) 
when it will be reviewed again. 

 
5. RECOMMENDED 

 

5.1 That the Scrutiny Committee Resources supports and Executive approves the use of the 
Guildhall for weddings and civil partnerships along the lines detailed in this report. 
 
 
 

HEAD OF CORPORATE CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 

Page 84



EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – RESOURCES 
 

26 JANUARY 2011 
 
 

NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2011/12 
 
 

 
1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To detail the work proposed to non-housing properties in order to maintain and service 

such buildings in 2011/12. The work financed from the Asset Improvement and 
Maintenance fund, referred to as AIM, is contained within the Council’s overall revenue 
budgets.  

 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Following an examination of routine servicing and operational work, the gathering of 

historical information as to levels of reactive repair costs and the assembly and prioritisation 
of Heads of Service property requirements, a budget was established as; 

 
(A) Routine Servicing and Maintenance  £   441,980 
(B) Operational Essentials   £     82,020 
(C) Reactive Repairs    £   513,540 
(D) Lease Repairs     £     55,450 
(E) Service Department Recharges  £            343,650 
(F)  Service Priorities and contingency  £            185,500 
 

Total (Appendix G)  £         1,622,140 
 
2.2 The attached Appendices A to F provide further breakdowns of the above categories, 

detailing the properties involved, the projects and servicing works along with an estimated 
budget required. Further explanation is provided in the text below. 

 
ANNUAL COMMITMENTS 

 
2.3 Routine Servicing and Maintenance (Appendix A) 
 

Appendix A lists all identified work needed to inspect, service and maintain plant, 
equipment, controls, monitoring devices and specific structures. The work is required 
annually to ensure plant, equipment and specific structures are maintained in a fully 
operational and safe state. The costs listed are either based upon historical cost 
information updated for either operational (due to changes in testing regulations) or 
inflationary increases, or for where new plant has been fitted and is now out of warranty.  
 
The 2011/12 budget now includes provisions for resuming responsibilities for servicing and 
maintenance work, outside warranty agreements, following completion of the RAMM 
project. Provision has also been made in this year for periodic maintenance to City Wall in 
respect of removal of damaging plant growth and for periodic inspection and preventive 
maintenance to public car park ventilation fans. 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 85



 
2.4 Operational Essentials (Appendix B) 
 

Appendix B details budgeted amounts for property and plant and equipment repairs that, 
although monitored by the AIM Group, are administered by certain Heads of Service. The 
appropriate Head of Service will utilise budgets to ensure that property and plant are in 
good working order thus ensuring that efficient and effective service delivery is assured.  

 
2.5 Reactive Repairs (Appendix C) 
 

Appendix C details budgets required to finance reactive repair works that may arise in the 
financial year, the budgets have been set by taking account of expenditure on reactive 
repairs in previous years.  
 
The repairs have been placed in categories of property family to indicate the levels of 
expenditure normally incurred. The expenditure is closely monitored and controlled 
throughout the year to ensure spending is targeted to mainly urgent and essential repair 
work. Similar monitoring provides evidence to consider whether the budget allocated 
remains a fair reflection of the financial resource needed. 

 
2.6 Lease Repairs (Appendix D) 
 

The annual property condition survey highlights potential problem areas in respect of 
leased properties, in addition there are various other periodic checks carried out during the 
year.  Often there are further works needed that may not have been indentified through the 
annual property condition survey, so it can be a difficult task to accurately quantify the full 
extent of the lease liabilities in each particular year.  

The 2011/12 lease repair budget has been set at the expected level of financial resource 
needed to enable the necessary condition surveys and periodic checks to be carried out 
and also to cover any repair and maintenance work required to enable individual properties 
to be maintained to the required lettable condition.   

  
2.7 Service Department Recharges (Appendix E) 
 

This represents the cost of the staff resources required to programme, organise, tender, 
instigate, supervise, control, monitor and settle accounts in respect of the work proposed 
for non-housing AIM projects. The budget reflects the amount of Contracts and Direct 
Services and Engineering and Construction staff resources needed to deliver the work 
programme. 

 
 

PRIORITISED WORK PROGRAMME 
 
2.8 Service Priorities (Appendix F) 
 

As part of the exercise to alleviate the financial pressures facing the Council next year the 
AIM group, in consultation with Heads of Service, conducted a vigorous prioritisation of 
requests for projects from services. This prioritisation process effectively limited the amount 
of service priorities to those that were considered only either urgent or essential.  
 
It is recognised that, with a reduced programme of planned refurbishment work, it is likely 
that other unforeseen or unplanned work will become essential through the year.  Therefore 
a contingency budget has again been set to allow for meeting such essential work 
demands as they arise. Nevertheless, this contingency budget has been reduced by some 
40% from that set in 2010/11. 
 

Page 86



Appendix F lists the service priorities identified by the AIM group as the most needed 
and/or most urgent and as subsequently agreed by SMT. 

 
3 PROPOSALS 
 
3.1 It is proposed that the sum of £1,622,140 be set aside, from total resources available, to 

carry out necessary works listed above and in appendices A to F attached to this report in 
respect of non-housing property Service and Maintenance Work, Operational Essentials, 
Reactive Repairs, Lease Repairs, Service Department Recharges and Service Priorities. 

 
4 RECOMMENDED 
 

(1) that the Committee note that the sum of £1,622,140 has been split into the 
categories of work in the year 2011/12 as outlined in this report. 

 
 
HEAD OF CONTRACTS AND DIRECT SERVICES 
HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
ACTING HEAD OF ESTATES SERVICES 
 

 

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE 

 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)  
Background papers used in compiling this report:  
 

None 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



N
O

N
-H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

IM
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 A

S
E

R
V

IC
IN

G
 A

N
D

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 W
O

R
K

E
F

IM
S

C
O

D
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

2
0
1
1
/1

2

1
A

ir
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
in

g
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 (
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
 o

f 
a

n
d

 c
h

ill
e

r 
p

la
n

t)
Y

0
0

6
3

4
7

£
1

3
,3

2
0

2
C

o
rn

 E
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 B
u

ild
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

Y
0

0
6

3
4

8
£

5
,7

5
0

3
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 r
o

lle
r 

s
h

u
tt

e
r 

d
o

o
rs

 
Y

0
0

6
3

4
9

£
2

,1
1

0

4
L

iv
e

s
to

c
k
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

Y
0

0
6

3
5

0
£

1
5

,1
1

0

6
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

L
ig

h
tn

in
g

 C
o

n
d

u
c
to

rs
, 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
5

5
£

1
,2

0
0

7
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

L
if
ts

 o
n

 P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 (

n
o

t 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
)

Y
0

0
6

3
5

6
£

5
,9

3
0

8
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

L
if
ts

, 
V

a
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s

Y
0

0
6

3
5

7
£

9
,8

5
0

9
F

ix
e

d
 I

n
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
e

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
, 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
5

9
£

5
3

,4
2

0

1
0

P
o

rt
a

b
le

 a
p

p
lia

n
c
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
e

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t,
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
6

0
£

1
5

,8
1

0

1
1

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

S
ta

n
d

-b
y
 G

e
n

e
ra

to
rs

, 
V

a
ri
o

u
s
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
6

1
£

2
,0

0
0

1
2

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

S
p

ri
n

k
le

rs
, 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
6

2
£

1
4

,4
6

0

1
3

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

B
o

ile
r 

a
n

d
 H

e
a

ti
n

g
 P

la
n

t,
 V

a
ri
o

u
s
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
6

3
£

6
,0

0
0

1
4

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

H
e

a
t/

V
e

n
ti
la

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
, 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 S

it
e

s
Y

0
0

6
3

6
5

£
1

8
,5

0
0

1
5

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

C
a

rd
 R

e
a

d
e

rs
 a

n
d

 B
a

rr
ie

rs
 i
n

 C
a

r 
P

a
rk

s
Y

0
0

6
3

6
6

£
4

0
0

1
6

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
u

ts
id

e
 w

a
rr

a
n

ty
 a

g
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
t 

R
A

M
M

 
Y

0
0

6
3

6
7

£
8

,7
5

0

1
7

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 T

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
F

ir
e

 A
la

rm
s

Y
0

0
6

3
6

9
£

1
2

,1
7

0

1
8

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 T

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 L

ig
h

ti
n

g
Y

0
0

6
3

7
0

£
3

5
,5

5
0

1
9

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 T

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
G

a
s
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 B

o
re

h
o

le
s

Y
0

0
6

3
7

1
£

6
,0

0
0

2
0

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

M
o

n
u

m
e

n
ts

 
Y

0
0

6
3

7
2

£
1

0
,0

0
0

2
1

In
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
)

Y
0

0
6

3
7

3
£

1
7

,5
0

0

2
2

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 s

h
ip

 c
a

n
a

l 
lo

c
k
 g

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 b
a

n
k
s
(T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
)

Y
0

0
6

3
7

4
£

3
,5

0
0

2
3

E
x
e

 E
s
tu

a
ry

 -
 H

y
d

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

 S
u

rv
e

y
s

Y
0

0
6

3
7

5
£

5
,1

5
0

2
4

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 t

o
 W

a
llg

a
te

s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

Y
0

0
6

3
7

6
£

7
,0

0
0

2
5

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 o

f 
v
o

lt
a

g
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

r 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
Y

0
0

6
3

7
9

£
1

,6
0

0

2
6

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

a
u

to
m

a
ti
c
 d

o
o

r 
s
e

ts
 i
n

 l
o

b
b

ie
s
 o

f 
C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
Y

0
0

6
3

8
0

£
6

1
0

2
7

P
a

d
d

lin
g

 p
o

o
ls

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

Y
0

0
6

3
8

5
£

5
0

0

2
8

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 G
a

te
w

a
y
 F

e
a

tu
re

 H
o

n
it
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 

Y
0

0
6

3
8

6
£

4
,1

2
0

2
9

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 f

o
o

tw
a

y
s

Y
0

0
6

3
8

8
£

2
7

,5
0

0

3
0

A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

a
fe

ty
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

e
m

o
ri
a

ls
Y

0
0

6
3

8
9

£
2

3
,3

1
0

3
1

C
le

a
n

in
g

 o
f 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

P
y
ra

m
id

 r
id

d
le

 
Y

0
0

6
3

9
0

£
1

,5
0

0

3
2

R
o

u
ti
n

e
 S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

g
a

s
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
in

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
Y

0
0

6
3

9
2

£
7

5
0

3
3

A
la

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
in

g
 a

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
c
e

n
tr

e
 

Y
0

0
6

3
9

3
£

1
,3

5
0

3
4

F
ir
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

in
g

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

Y
0

0
6

3
9

4
£

4
,3

0
0

3
5

L
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 M

a
rk

e
t 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

Y
0

0
6

3
4

5
£

2
5

,0
0

0

3
6

L
e

g
io

n
e

lla
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
Y

0
0

6
3

9
5

£
6

4
,7

8
0

3
7

C
it
y
 w

a
ll 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

Y
0

0
6

3
9

7
£

6
,7

0
0

3
8

C
a

r 
p

a
rk

 f
a

n
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

Y
0

0
6

3
9

8
£

1
0

,4
8

0

T
O

T
A

L
 R

O
U

T
IN

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

IN
G

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 £

4
4
1
,9

8
0

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

1
1

1
S

C
R

1
 A

im
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
A

P
P

A
 S

e
rv

-m
a

in
t

Page 89



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2011/12 APPENDIX B

NON-HOUSING AIM FUND PROGRAMME 2011-12

OPERATIONAL ESSENTIALS

BUDGET

2011/12

Cost Centre 

Allocation LEAD OFFICER

CIVIC CENTRE (LIFTS) 11,210 T054 J Street

CANAL 25,170 F030 Roger Coombes

CAR PARKS 26,810 M201 Roger Coombes

REACTIVE UNOCCUPIED PROPERTY 18,830 M001/M002 Mike Carson

TOTAL OPERATIONAL ESSENTIALS 82,020

APPENDIX B 111SCR1 Aim budget Appendix 1APPB opp ess

Page 90



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2011/12 APPENDIX C,D,E

APPENDIX C

REACTIVE REPAIRS BUDGET LEAD OFFICER

2011/12

£

GENERAL REACTIVE WORK 399,250 Various

CANAL SPECIAL WORKS 30,890 R Coombes

CIVIC CENTRE 83,400 J Street

TOTAL REACTIVE REPAIRS 513,540

APPENDIX D

 LEASE REPAIRS BUDGET LEAD OFFICER

2011/12

£

LEASE REPAIRS 49,830 Mike Carson

HEALTH AND SAFETY CHECKS 5,620 Mike Carson

TOTAL LEASE REPAIRS 55,450

APPENDIX E

SERVICE DEPARTMENT RECHARGES BUDGET LEAD OFFICER

2011/12

£

SERVICE RECHARGES 343,650 Paul Mc Cormick

Dave Hubbard

TOTAL SERVICE RECHARGES 343,650

APPENDIX C,D,E 111SCR1 Aim budget Appendix 1APPCDEreactiveleasefees

Page 91



N
O

N
-H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

IM
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 F

R
E

F

C
o

s
t

C
e

n
tr

e

A
c

c
o

u
n

t

C
o

d
e

J
o

b
 C

o
d

e
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

1
F

0
4

5
3

7
0

0
1

Y
0

0
6

2
3

7
R

o
u

g
e

m
o

n
t 

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 a

n
d

 R
e

d
e

c
o

ra
ti
o

n
£

4
5

,0
0

0

1
4

T
0

5
4

3
7

0
0

1
Y

0
0

6
2

3
8

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 L
if
t 

R
o

p
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
e

rm
in

a
to

rs
£

7
,0

0
0

4
C

1
0

3
3

7
0

0
1

Y
0

0
6

2
3

9
P

e
ri
m

e
te

r 
R

o
o

f 
S

a
fe

ty
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
t 

C
o

rn
 E

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

£
2

0
,0

0
0

1
1

F
0

3
6

3
7

0
0

1
Y

0
0

6
2

4
1

R
e

p
la

c
in

g
 W

a
te

r 
S

u
p

p
ly

 P
ip

e
s
 o

n
 P

a
rk

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
£

1
0

,0
0

0

5
M

8
1

1
3

7
0

0
1

Y
0

0
6

2
4

2
C

it
y
 W

a
ll 

R
e

p
a

ir
s

£
6

,0
0

0

6
F

0
4

6
3

7
0

0
1

Y
0

0
6

2
4

3
R

e
p

a
ir
 W

in
d

o
w

 S
t 

N
ic

h
o

la
s
 P

ri
o

ry
£

4
,0

0
0

1
2

M
5

0
4

3
7

0
0

1
Y

0
0

6
2

4
4

P
a

rt
it
io

n
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
a

t 
U

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

 p
a

s
s
a

g
e

s
£

4
,0

0
0

n
/a

N
/A

A
s
b

e
s
to

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 n

o
n

-h
o

u
s
in

g
£

3
0

,0
0

0

N
/A

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 N

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 &
 O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y

£
5

9
,5

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
£

1
8

5
,5

0
0

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

1
1

1
S

C
R

1
 A

im
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
A

P
P

F
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s

Page 92



NON-HOUSING AIM BUDGET 2011/12 APPENDIX G

BUDGET

SUMMARY APPENDIX FOR COMMENTS

2011/12

£

ROUTINE SERVICING AND MAINTENANCE WORK A 441,980

OPERATIONAL ESSENTIALS (cost centre funded) B 82,020

REACTIVE REPAIRS C 513,540

LEASE REPAIRS D 55,450

SERVICE DEPARTMENT RECHARGES E 343,650

SERVICE PRIORITIES F 185,500

TOTALS £ 1,622,140

APPENDIX G 111SCR1 Aim budget Appendix 1summary

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                    
EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – RESOURCES 

26 JANUARY 2011 
 
  
 

ESTIMATES 2011/12 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Attached are the draft estimates for 2011/12, which were discussed at an informal 
meeting of Scrutiny Committee - Resources on 13 December 2010. 
 

1.2 This report outlines the strategic framework within which the estimates have been 
prepared, changes in accounting practices, which affect all budgets and detailed reasons 
for any significant changes in the Management Unit estimates. 
 

2. BUDGET FRAMEWORK 
 

2.1 With regard to inflation, an overall allowance of £100,000 has been set aside for next 
year.  This includes an assumption with regard to increases in pay and increases for 
utility costs and contracts being offset by increases for fees and charges.  For the 
following three years an overall inflation allowance of £300,000 has been included for 
planning purposes.  The inflationary assumptions that have been included for next year 
are as follows: 
 

 • Pay     1.0% - to cover any pay award and                
                                                                            increments 

• Utilities     3.0% 

• Insurance    3.0% 

• Rates     4.5% 

• Fuel     3.0% 

• General Inflation   1.0% - see para 2.3 below 

• Income (excluding car parks)   3.0% 
 

2.2 There has been no offer of an increase in pay for 2010/11.  Unions have submitted a pay 
claim for 2011/12 of £250 for all employees, on which the Local Government Employers 
are consulting Councils.  Given the Government’s announcement of a pay freeze for 
employees earning more than £21,000 and an increase of £250 for those earning less, it 
is felt prudent at this stage to budget next year for pay increases and increments totalling 
not more than 1.0%. 

2.3 As a means of finding efficiency savings many non-pay budgets will again not be fully 
increased for inflation.  There will be some exceptions to this in particular where there 
are ongoing contractual arrangements in place and where the Council has to meet the 
full price increase e.g. insurance and fuel.  Recently released figures show that UK 
inflation increased in October mainly reflecting changes in fuel prices.  The Consumer 
Prices Index (CPI) measure rose to 3.2%, up from 3.1% in September.  The Retail Prices 
Index (RPI), the alternative measure of inflation which includes housing costs, however 
fell slightly to 4.5%, down from 4.6% a month earlier.  The government target for the CPI 
measure remains at 2%. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 95



2.4 With regard to interest rates, the Bank of England has put the base rate of interest on 
hold at only 0.5% since March 2009.  Although many analysts are predicting that interest 
rates could start to increase next year, in the short term they are likely to remain at their 
historically low levels.  The low levels of interest rates affect the City Council in a number 
of ways. On the negative side the Council has to assume lower investment returns on 
cash deposits in comparison with previous years.  This has also been exacerbated by 
the continuing lack of confidence within some parts of the banking sector.  The likelihood 
is that investment returns will continue to be low. Conversely on the positive side, the low 
interest rates also mean that the cost of borrowing is cheaper than it has been in the 
past.  However rates are beginning to rise and this has an effect on the financial position 
of the Council.  
 

2.5 The Government has now announced the provisional local government finance 
settlement for 2011/12 and 2012/13 and this was in line with previous forecasts.  For 
Exeter the guideline figures are as follows: 
 

• Formula Grant 2011/12  £9,219,387 (decrease 13.8% against 2010/11 ‘adjusted’ 
formula grant ) 

• Formula Grant 2012/13  £8,265,565 (decrease 10.3% against 2011/12 
provisional formula grant ) 

 
The provisional settlement now indicates that in overall cash terms our 2011/12 grant will 
decrease by £1,471,049 against the 2010/11 adjusted grant amount of £10,690,436. 

 

2.6 The adjusted grant figure of £10.690 million for 2010/11 takes into account the transfer of 
funding responsibility for concessionary travel to Devon County Council from 1 April 
2011.  The amount of funding that has been ‘taken’ from Exeter is £3.688 million which 
comprises £1.356 million of formula grant and £2.332 million of specific grant.  
 

2.7 The provisional grant settlement confirmed that a local authority that freezes or reduces 
its Band D council tax in 2011/12 will receive an additional grant equivalent to having set 
a 2.5% increase from their 2010/11 level.  Any grant paid to an authority for freezing or 
reducing its council tax in 2011/12 will be matched exactly in each subsequent year of 
the Spending Review to compensate for the income foregone for a freeze.  Authorities 
will not have to continue to freeze or reduce their council tax from 2012/13 to continue to 
receive this grant.  For Exeter the compensating grant that it will receive for freezing its 
level of council tax at the 2010/11 level will be £118,456.  

  
2.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

It is expected that the available resources for the General Fund Capital Programme 
(other than borrowing) over the next 5 years will total about £13.4 million and the capital 
programme that can be funded other than by borrowing is therefore still quite substantial.  
In terms of the General Fund, the currently approved capital programme and proposed 
new bids total almost £34 million over the next 5 with a resultant borrowing requirement 
of £20.9 million.  
 
A list of the proposed new schemes for Resources Scrutiny Committee is attached at 
Appendix 2. 
 
In respect of deferred charges, the government allows councils to treat some revenue 
expenditure as capital expenditure e.g. grants to Housing Associations, or grants to 
improve or develop assets owned by others (science park contributions and 
enhancements to the city centre).  This expenditure will be shown in the revenue 
accounts for the year but it is financed by the use of capital receipts or borrowing and 
therefore these charges are removed from the net cost of services to ensure that they do 
not impact on the Council Tax requirement.  For this reason, and to reflect the difficulty in 
estimating the charges to revenue, these costs will be charged to revenue and reported 
only with the final accounts. 

Page 96



 
2.10 
 
 
2.11 
 
 

 
The changes in respect of 2011/12 Fees and Charges for the budget are included at 
Appendix 3.   
 
The variance in respect of FRS 17 retirement benefits has increased this year as a result 
of the methodology used by the actuary.  This is a notional figure, which is reversed out 
below the line; there is no impact on the Council Tax. 
 

3. REVENUE BUDGET SAVINGS 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Savings proposals to reduce the revenue base budget in 2011/12 by £2.446 million have 
been identified in order to alleviate the financial pressures that are facing the Council 
next year.  These were reviewed by the all party Resources Member Working Group and 
were presented at the December meetings of Scrutiny Committees to consider next 
year’s budget.  However, due to the likelihood of further revenue pressures facing the 
Council beyond 2011/12 other savings will need to be identified for future years.  
 
The specific revenue savings that have been included within the draft estimates for 
Scrutiny Committee Resources are as follows:-   
 
  £ 
 Corporate Services  
   
 IT Services  
   
 BS security standard maintenance – to be provided in-

house 
  5,000 

 Staffing reduction 1.5 FTE (copy centre and Information 
Management) 

38,000 

 Reformat bulk printing templates 14,000 
 General repair/consumables and maintenance savings 11,000 
   
 Treasury Services 

 
 

 Service restructure – combine Cashiering and Creditors 21,900 
 Not filling currently vacant post in Housing Benefits section 20,200 
 Reduction in planned overtime   2,100 
 Further reduction in clerical support for Benefits and Council 

Tax 
40,200 

 Deletion of Appeals Officer post partly funded by EDDC 14,000 
 Not filling vacant posts in Council Tax section 58,700 
 Reduction of clerical support for Benefits and Council Tax 20,100 
 Reduction of working days of an assessment officer   9,900 
   
 Corporate Customer Services  
   
 Customer Service Centre – cashiers service and service 

development 
45,000 

 Savings arising from combined elections 40,000 
 Election administration – casual staff, postage, training   9,000 
 Income from marriages and civil ceremonies at the Guildhall 10,000 
 Guildhall/Mayoralty – reduced costs re transport, staffing, 

etc 
13,500 

 Civic Centre – postage, vending, publications and office 
cleaning 

42,000 

  
 

 

Page 97



 Legal Services  
   
 Joint procurement of research and precedents information  6,000 
 Reduced fees for practising certificates  4,700 
   
 Internal Audit  
   
 Additional net income from sale of CIPFA publication 20,000 
   
 Chief Executive Services  
   
 Reduction of CX working hours to 4 days 28,000 
 Reduction in staff in CX Support unit by 1 fte 44,000 
 Reduction of CX/ACX Admin Support   8,800 
 Reduction of Policy Officer working hours to 4 days   8,800 
 Reduction in Community Involvement and consultation 

budgets 
10,000 

 Grants – various reduce by 20% 
Emergency Planning Salary saving 
 
Human Resources 
 
Delete IT Trainer budget 
Amalgamate all service training budgets 

69,200 
  5,000 

 
 
 

35,000 
26,000 

 
 

 

Total 

 

   680,100  
  

 
4. 
 
4.1 
 

KEY REVENUE BUDGET CHANGES PROPOSED FOR 2011/12 
 
The Revenue budgets are attached at Appendix 1.  The proposed budgets reflect some 
minor budget increases and some significant savings, the key changes are as follows: 

  
86A1 REVENUE COLLECTION & BENEFITS 

 
The net cost of Housing Benefits has increased to reflect the effect of the Housing 
Benefit Subsidy reforms which were introduced in 2010/11.  This restricted the Housing 
Benefits Subsidy to the prescribed Local Housing Allowance rate applicable to each type 
of property occupied. 
 
A large proportion of the net cost for 2010/11 was in respect of Non Housing Revenue 
Account Rent Rebates (i.e. temporary accommodation for homeless persons).  This cost 
(£350k) has been transferred to Advisory Services in Scrutiny Committee – Community 
for 2011/12.  The remaining additional net cost in this Management Unit for 2011/12 is 
mainly in respect of Rent Allowances for private rented accommodation. 
 
There has been an overall reduction in the cost of administering Revenue Collection and 
Benefits due to staff savings and efficiencies, despite an increase in Benefits caseload, 
see also 86B1 Treasury Services below. 
 

  

Page 98



 

86A2 ELECTIONS & ELECTORAL REGISTRATION 
  
 There are Exeter City council elections planned for May 2011 and it has been assumed 

in the budget calculations that there will be a national referendum held at the same time. 
Subject to the two events taking place together, there will be an estimated £40,000 
saving in 2011, along with some general efficiency savings. 
 

  
86A3 CORPORATE 
  
 There has been an increase in volume and cost of the central bank charges. 

 
There has been a decrease in the corporate cost allocation from 86B1Treasury Services 
management and 86B8 Chief Executive Services due to budget reductions and 
efficiency savings referred to above. 
  

  
86A4 CIVIC CEREMONIALS 
  
 The cost of improvements and repairs for the Guildhall has been increased through the 

AIM programme. 

Additional net income is expected from Guildhall lettings and efficiency savings in 
operational costs. 

 
  
86A5 DEMOCRATIC REPRESENTATION 
  
 There has been no inflation provision made in the budget for Members’ Allowances in 

2011/12. 
 

  
86A6 GRANTS/CENTRAL SUPPORT/CONSULTATION 
  
 As part of the budget saving measures a reduction has been made in the core grants 

budget total.  

The grants budget for Ring and Ride and Taxi Card has been transferred to Grants 
Committee from Scrutiny Committee – Economy. 

Additional expenditure is being incurred on business rate relief as a result of the 
economic downturn. 

  
86A7 UNAPPORTIONABLE OVERHEADS  
  
 There is a balance on Central Support Services and the AIM Fund contingency that 

appear within Unallocated Central Costs.  The actual users of these services will be 
recharged during 2011/12.  

 
CENTRAL SUPPORT SERVICES ACCOUNTS: 

  
 The management units listed below are recharged out across the whole of the Council 

and are either brought back to zero cost or have small balances left that are to be 
recharged back to the users of the services in 2011/12. 

Page 99



  
86A8 CHIEF EXECUTIVE SERVICES  
  
 The staffing and operational costs of Chief Executive’s Services have been reviewed and 

have resulted in budget savings throughout the department. 
 

  
86A9 STRATEGIC / COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 
  
 This management unit brings together the Council’s community partnerships with the 

police, health authorities and other councils to establish strategies and programmes 
within the Exeter area.  The estimated cost of administering the partnerships is shown in 
cost centre S053 Community Safety, within management unit 86A6. 

  
 

86B1 TREASURY SERVICES 
  
 The staffing and operational costs of Treasury Services have been reviewed and have 

resulted in budget savings throughout the department. 

The cost of administering Housing Benefits has reduced overall despite an increase in 
caseload and a reduction in Government grant. 

The depreciation of IT equipment and software in Accountancy Services, Council Tax 
Collection, NNDR Collection and Benefits Administration has resulted in reduced capital 
financing costs. 

  
86B2 INTERNAL AUDIT 
  
 It is expected that additional net income will arise from the sale of CIPFA matrices that 

have been developed by Internal Audit. 
  
86B3 HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES 
  
 All of the service based training budgets throughout the Council have been transferred to 

HR and added to the corporate budget; this combined training budget has been reduced 
and will be managed by the unit. 

Capital charges have increased due to the revaluation of IT software and equipment. 

  
86B4 LEGAL SERVICES 
  
 As market conditions are still difficult to trade in there is not expected to be any increase 

in external fee income for legal work but there are expected to be some savings in 
operating costs. 
 

  

 

86B5 CORPORATE CUSTOMER SERVICES 
  
 The cost centre T047 Information & GIS Management has been transferred to 86B6 IT 

Services, see below. 

A range of cost saving measures, including staffing, have been made within Mail, Civic 
Centre and the Customer Service Centre services. 

 
Capital charges have decreased due to the depreciation of IT software and equipment. 

Page 100



  
86B6 IT SERVICES 
  
 There have been some savings in the cost of administering and maintaining IT systems, 

including identifying printing savings in client departments through out the Council. 

There has been a reduction in the capital financing costs due to the depreciation of IT 
software and equipment. 

  
86B7 DIRECTOR CORPORATE SERVICES OFFICE 
  
 Secretarial support for the Director is now provided by Treasury Services. 
  

 
5. RECOMMENDATION  
  
 That Scrutiny Resources notes this report. 

 
 

HEAD OF TREASURY SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act  1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling the report: 
None 

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

Page 103



S
U

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

5
R

E
S

R
2
0
1
0
-1

1
IN

F
L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2
0
1
1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

7
,0

3
5
,1

6
0

7
1
,5

0
0

(2
7
0
,2

2
0
)

(2
1
,5

0
0
)

2
7
8
,7

3
0

7
,0

9
3
,6

7
0

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

4
2
,8

9
6
,7

1
0

8
5
7
,9

4
0

0
0

2
,1

5
1
,7

5
0

4
5
,9

0
6
,4

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

6
7
3
,8

4
0

1
4
,4

6
0

(1
6
,0

0
0
)

(1
0
,0

0
0
)

6
8
,1

3
0

7
3
0
,4

3
0

S
u
p
p
lie

s
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

3
,2

2
6
,8

6
0

2
2
,1

1
0

(1
5
1
,1

3
0
)

(8
,5

0
0
)

(2
1
3
,8

9
0
)

2
,8

7
5
,4

5
0

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

4
1
,5

8
0

7
0

0
0

(2
,2

8
0
)

3
9
,3

7
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
,4

3
9
,9

1
0

7
4
,0

6
0

0
0

(3
5
1
,8

5
0
)

7
,1

6
2
,1

2
0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
1
,0

8
7
,3

7
0

0
0

0
(2

7
0
,5

2
0
)

8
1
6
,8

5
0

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

6
2
,4

0
1
,4

3
0

1
,0

4
0
,1

4
0

(4
3
7
,3

5
0
)

(4
0
,0

0
0
)

1
,6

6
0
,0

7
0

6
4
,6

2
4
,2

9
0

In
c
o
m

e
(5

6
,9

2
9
,2

6
0
)

(1
,0

0
2
,7

3
0
)

(7
,2

5
0
)

0
(1

,1
3
7
,1

0
0
)

(5
9
,0

7
6
,3

4
0
)

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

5
,4

7
2
,1

7
0

3
7
,4

1
0

(4
4
4
,6

0
0
)

(4
0
,0

0
0
)

5
2
2
,9

7
0

5
,5

4
7
,9

5
0

O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

 A
N

A
L

Y
S

IS
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0
1
0
-1

1
IN

F
L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2
0
1
1
-1

2

8
6
A

1
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 C
O

L
L
E

C
T

IO
N

/B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
1
,8

0
0
,2

4
0

2
,5

7
0

0
0

5
2
,8

6
0

1
,8

5
5
,6

7
0

8
6
A

2
 E

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 &

 E
L
E

C
T

O
R

A
L
 R

E
G

3
4
7
,3

2
0

3
,4

2
0

(9
,5

5
0
)

(4
0
,0

0
0
)

1
2
,7

1
0

3
1
3
,9

0
0

8
6
A

3
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

8
9
1
,0

5
0

8
,4

6
0

0
0

(2
,4

9
0
)

8
9
7
,0

2
0

8
6
A

4
 C

IV
IC

 C
E

R
E

M
O

N
IA

L
S

2
5
3
,0

5
0

3
,1

3
0

(2
3
,7

2
0
)

0
1
0
,7

5
0

2
4
3
,2

1
0

8
6
A

5
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
8
7
5
,3

7
0

5
,8

1
0

0
0

2
4
0

8
8
1
,4

2
0

8
6
A

6
 G

R
A

N
T

S
/C

E
N

T
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

/C
O

N
S

U
L
T

A
T

IO
N

1
,0

4
5
,6

9
0

2
,3

8
0

(7
4
,2

0
0
)

0
2
8
,0

3
0

1
,0

0
1
,9

0
0

8
6
A

7
 U

N
A

P
P

O
R

T
IO

N
A

B
L
E

 O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

S
2
5
9
,4

5
0

2
,6

0
0

0
0

9
2
,7

8
0

3
5
4
,8

3
0

8
6
A

8
 C

H
IE

F
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
(6

5
0
)

(1
0
6
,5

3
0
)

0
1
0
7
,1

8
0

0

8
6
A

9
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
/ 
C

O
M

M
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
S

0
(4

5
0
)

(7
8
0
)

0
1
,2

3
0

0

8
6
B

1
 T

R
E

A
S

U
R

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
8
,8

2
0

(2
1
5
,8

5
0
)

0
2
0
7
,0

3
0

0

8
6
B

2
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L
 A

U
D

IT
0

(3
6
0
)

(2
0
,8

5
0
)

0
2
1
,2

1
0

0

8
6
B

3
 H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
0

(1
0
)

1
9
8
,9

5
0

0
(1

9
8
,9

4
0
)

0

8
6
B

4
 L

E
G

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
(1

,2
2
0
)

(2
0
,7

4
0
)

0
2
1
,9

6
0

0

8
6
B

5
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
(3

3
1
,6

1
0
)

2
,0

2
0

(1
2
7
,6

1
0
)

0
4
5
7
,2

0
0

0

8
6
B

6
 I
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3
3
1
,6

1
0

9
0
0

(4
3
,3

9
0
)

0
(2

8
9
,1

2
0
)

0

8
6
B

7
 D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
(1

0
)

(3
3
0
)

0
3
4
0

0

N
e
t 

C
o

s
t

5
,4

7
2
,1

7
0

3
7
,4

1
0

(4
4
4
,6

0
0
)

(4
0
,0

0
0
)

5
2
2
,9

7
0

5
,5

4
7
,9

5
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 104



8
6

A
1

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

/B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
4

2
,8

9
6

,7
1

0
8

5
7

,9
4

0
0

0
2

,1
5

1
,7

5
0

4
5

,9
0

6
,4

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
8

,6
9

0
0

0
0

(1
4

,7
0

0
)

8
3

,9
9

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
,0

8
7

,5
3

0
2

0
,8

6
0

0
0

(1
5

1
,1

7
0

)
1

,9
5

7
,2

2
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

5
,0

8
2

,9
3

0
8

7
8

,8
0

0
0

0
1

,9
8

5
,8

8
0

4
7

,9
4

7
,6

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
3

,2
8

2
,6

9
0

)
(8

7
6

,2
3

0
)

0
0

(1
,9

3
3

,0
2

0
)

(4
6

,0
9

1
,9

4
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,8

0
0

,2
4

0
2

,5
7

0
0

0
5

2
,8

6
0

1
,8

5
5

,6
7

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

0
1

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
7

9
3

,0
8

0
7

,9
3

0
0

0
(1

2
1

,7
8

0
)

6
7

9
,2

3
0

S
0

0
2

 R
e

n
t 

A
llo

w
a

n
c
e

s
(2

6
,6

9
0

)
(1

7
,0

6
0

)
0

0
1

5
4

,2
7

0
1

1
0

,5
2

0

S
0

0
3

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
2

4
,6

8
0

0
0

0
(3

,6
8

0
)

2
1

,0
0

0

S
0

0
4

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

6
6

0
,4

2
0

7
,3

2
0

0
0

(1
1

,3
1

0
)

6
5

6
,4

3
0

S
0

0
5

 R
e

n
t 

R
e

b
a

te
s

3
4

7
,3

9
0

4
,3

7
0

0
0

4
,6

9
0

3
5

6
,4

5
0

S
0

0
6

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

A
d

v
a

n
c
e

s
1

,3
6

0
1

0
0

0
2

2
0

1
,5

9
0

S
0

0
7

  
N

o
n

 H
R

A
 R

e
n

t 
R

e
b

a
te

s
0

0
0

0
3

0
,4

5
0

3
0

,4
5

0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
1

,8
0

0
,2

4
0

2
,5

7
0

0
0

5
2

,8
6

0
1

,8
5

5
,6

7
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 105



8
6

A
2

E
L

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 &
 E

L
E

C
T

O
R

A
L

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
9

0
,3

9
0

1
,9

2
0

(7
,5

5
0

)
(2

1
,5

0
0

)
5

,0
1

0
1

6
8

,2
7

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

1
9

,3
5

0
1

9
0

0
(1

0
,0

0
0

)
0

9
,5

4
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

8
1

,1
5

0
8

3
0

(2
,0

0
0

)
(8

,5
0

0
)

0
7

1
,4

8
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

1
3

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
5

,5
4

0
5

4
0

0
0

8
,7

0
0

6
4

,7
8

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
2

,6
0

0
0

0
0

(1
,0

0
0

)
1

,6
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
3

4
9

,1
6

0
3

,4
8

0
(9

,5
5

0
)

(4
0

,0
0

0
)

1
2

,7
1

0
3

1
5

,8
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,8

4
0

)
(6

0
)

0
0

0
(1

,9
0

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
4

7
,3

2
0

3
,4

2
0

(9
,5

5
0

)
(4

0
,0

0
0

)
1

2
,7

1
0

3
1

3
,9

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

1
0

 E
le

c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
2

1
6

,5
1

0
2

,2
5

0
(5

,5
5

0
)

0
7

,3
4

0
2

2
0

,5
5

0

S
0

1
1

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s

1
3

0
,8

1
0

1
,1

7
0

(4
,0

0
0

)
(4

0
,0

0
0

)
5

,3
7

0
9

3
,3

5
0

S
0

1
2

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

1
3

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

B
y
-E

le
c
ti
o

n
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
0

1
4

 P
a

rl
ia

m
e

n
ta

ry
 E

le
c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

1
7

 E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
 E

le
c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

1
8

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

B
y
-E

le
c
ti
o

n
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
3

4
7

,3
2

0
3

,4
2

0
(9

,5
5

0
)

(4
0

,0
0

0
)

1
2

,7
1

0
3

1
3

,9
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 106



8
6

A
3

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

(6
0

,0
0

0
)

(6
0

0
)

0
0

6
0

,6
0

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
9

2
,1

3
0

1
,6

5
0

0
0

1
5

,5
3

0
2

0
9

,3
1

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,0

8
9

,1
7

0
1

0
,8

7
0

0
0

(6
7

,0
6

0
)

1
,0

3
2

,9
8

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,2
2

1
,3

0
0

1
1

,9
2

0
0

0
9

,0
7

0
1

,2
4

2
,2

9
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
3

0
,2

5
0

)
(3

,4
6

0
)

0
0

(1
1

,5
6

0
)

(3
4

5
,2

7
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
9

1
,0

5
0

8
,4

6
0

0
0

(2
,4

9
0

)
8

9
7

,0
2

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

1
5

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

s
ts

8
4

3
,2

9
0

8
,0

6
0

0
0

(1
,1

3
0

)
8

5
0

,2
2

0

S
0

6
6

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4

7
,7

6
0

4
0

0
0

0
(1

,3
6

0
)

4
6

,8
0

0

U
0

2
6

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
8

9
1

,0
5

0
8

,4
6

0
0

0
(2

,4
9

0
)

8
9

7
,0

2
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 107



8
6

A
4

C
IV

IC
 C

E
R

E
M

O
N

IA
L

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
5

0
,3

8
0

1
,5

6
0

(1
0

,2
2

0
)

0
8

,6
7

0
1

5
0

,3
9

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

4
1

,7
3

0
1

,0
5

0
0

0
3

,0
2

0
4

5
,8

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
1

,6
5

0
6

0
(1

,0
0

0
)

0
3

0
5

0
,7

4
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

5
,3

9
0

5
0

0
0

0
5

,4
4

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
0

,2
7

0
4

1
0

0
0

5
,4

1
0

4
6

,0
9

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
3

8
,6

5
0

0
0

0
(6

,3
8

0
)

3
2

,2
7

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
3

2
8

,0
7

0
3

,1
3

0
(1

1
,2

2
0

)
0

1
0

,7
5

0
3

3
0

,7
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

(7
5

,0
2

0
)

0
(1

2
,5

0
0

)
0

0
(8

7
,5

2
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5

3
,0

5
0

3
,1

3
0

(2
3

,7
2

0
)

0
1

0
,7

5
0

2
4

3
,2

1
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

3
6

 G
u

ild
h

a
ll 

C
h

a
m

b
e

rs
9

1
,6

7
0

1
,9

9
0

(1
9

,2
6

0
)

0
1

0
,9

3
0

8
5

,3
3

0

S
0

3
7

 M
a

y
o

ra
lt
y

1
2

2
,0

7
0

1
,0

0
0

(4
,4

6
0

)
0

8
5

0
1

1
9

,4
6

0

S
0

3
9

 C
iv

ic
 H

o
s
p

it
a

lit
y

1
0

,7
3

0
1

0
0

0
(1

2
0

)
1

0
,6

2
0

S
0

4
0

 P
u

b
lic

 C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
s

1
4

,8
1

0
9

0
0

0
(1

,1
0

0
)

1
3

,8
0

0

S
0

4
1

 T
w

in
n

in
g

1
3

,7
7

0
4

0
0

0
1

9
0

1
4

,0
0

0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
2

5
3

,0
5

0
3

,1
3

0
(2

3
,7

2
0

)
0

1
0

,7
5

0
2

4
3

,2
1

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 108



8
6

A
5

D
E

M
O

C
R

A
T

IC
 R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
6

,3
8

0
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

6
,5

8
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
8

6
,4

8
0

0
0

0
(3

,6
9

0
)

2
8

2
,7

9
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
7

1
,7

1
0

5
,7

1
0

0
0

3
,8

3
0

5
8

1
,2

5
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
8

7
5

,3
7

0
5

,8
1

0
0

0
2

4
0

8
8

1
,4

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

8
7

5
,3

7
0

5
,8

1
0

0
0

2
4

0
8

8
1

,4
2

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

1
6

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 C

o
s
ts

5
3

9
,2

2
0

5
,1

5
0

0
0

1
,6

3
0

5
4

6
,0

0
0

S
0

4
6

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

 A
llo

w
a

n
c
e

s
 &

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

3
3

6
,1

5
0

6
6

0
0

0
(1

,3
9

0
)

3
3

5
,4

2
0

S
0

5
5

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
8

7
5

,3
7

0
5

,8
1

0
0

0
2

4
0

8
8

1
,4

2
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 109



8
6

A
6

G
R

A
N

T
S

/C
E

N
T

 S
U

P
P

/C
O

N
S

U
L

T
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

8
0

7
,0

7
0

0
(7

4
,2

0
0

)
0

3
7

,2
4

0
7

7
0

,1
1

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
3

8
,6

2
0

2
,3

8
0

0
0

(9
,2

1
0

)
2

3
1

,7
9

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,0
4

5
,6

9
0

2
,3

8
0

(7
4

,2
0

0
)

0
2

8
,0

3
0

1
,0

0
1

,9
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,0

4
5

,6
9

0
2

,3
8

0
(7

4
,2

0
0

)
0

2
8

,0
3

0
1

,0
0

1
,9

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

4
5

 G
ra

n
ts

 -
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
0

4
7

 G
ra

n
ts

 -
 A

rt
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

4
8

 G
ra

n
ts

 -
 L

e
is

u
re

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

4
9

 G
ra

n
ts

 -
 H

o
u

s
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
0

5
0

 G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s

8
0

2
,0

1
0

2
5

0
(6

9
,2

0
0

)
0

3
6

,9
5

0
7

7
0

,0
1

0

S
0

5
2

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
3

5
,9

9
0

3
6

0
0

0
(4

,9
2

0
)

3
1

,4
3

0

S
0

5
3

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
5

1
,7

7
0

5
2

0
0

0
1

,3
6

0
5

3
,6

5
0

S
0

5
4

 E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 P

o
lic

ie
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

5
7

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 I
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

9
1

,1
5

0
9

1
0

0
0

(3
,9

0
0

)
8

8
,1

6
0

S
0

6
0

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
6

4
,7

7
0

3
4

0
(5

,0
0

0
)

0
(1

,4
6

0
)

5
8

,6
5

0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
1

,0
4

5
,6

9
0

2
,3

8
0

(7
4

,2
0

0
)

0
2

8
,0

3
0

1
,0

0
1

,9
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 110



8
6

A
7

U
N

A
P

P
 O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

2
8

3
,8

5
0

2
,8

4
0

0
0

(3
,6

2
0

)
2

8
3

,0
7

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

5
9

,5
0

0
5

9
,5

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

(2
4

,4
0

0
)

(2
4

0
)

0
0

3
6

,9
0

0
1

2
,2

6
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

5
9

,4
5

0
2

,6
0

0
0

0
9

2
,7

8
0

3
5

4
,8

3
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

2
5

9
,4

5
0

2
,6

0
0

0
0

9
2

,7
8

0
3

5
4

,8
3

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

5
1

 U
n

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
C

o
s
ts

(2
4

,4
0

0
)

(2
4

0
)

0
0

9
6

,4
0

0
7

1
,7

6
0

S
0

5
6

 S
u

p
e

ra
n

n
u

a
ti
o

n
2

8
3

,8
5

0
2

,8
4

0
0

0
(3

,6
2

0
)

2
8

3
,0

7
0

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
2

5
9

,4
5

0
2

,6
0

0
0

0
9

2
,7

8
0

3
5

4
,8

3
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 111



8
6

A
8

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

8
8

7
,5

8
0

9
,1

5
0

(1
0

1
,5

3
0

)
0

4
4

,8
3

0
8

4
0

,0
3

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
0

7
,2

5
0

4
6

0
(5

,0
0

0
)

0
(1

,6
0

0
)

1
0

1
,1

1
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

4
,6

9
0

0
0

0
(2

3
0

)
4

,4
6

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
1

2
,9

1
0

2
,0

8
0

0
0

(1
4

,1
3

0
)

2
0

0
,8

6
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

5
,4

9
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

5
,5

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

,2
2

7
,9

2
0

1
1

,6
9

0
(1

0
6

,5
3

0
)

0
2

8
,8

8
0

1
,1

6
1

,9
6

0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
,2

2
7

,9
2

0
)

(1
2

,3
4

0
)

0
0

7
8

,3
0

0
(1

,1
6

1
,9

6
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(6

5
0

)
(1

0
6

,5
3

0
)

0
1

0
7

,1
8

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

8
1

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

2
0

4
,1

9
0

2
,0

1
0

(4
0

,1
3

0
)

0
6

,4
0

0
1

7
2

,4
7

0

T
0

8
2

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 U
n

it
3

8
7

,4
4

0
3

,9
2

0
(5

5
,4

8
0

)
0

1
2

,9
5

0
3

4
8

,8
3

0

T
0

8
3

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
0

3
,7

4
0

3
,0

5
0

(4
2

0
)

0
6

,4
0

0
3

1
2

,7
7

0

T
0

8
4

 P
re

s
s
 &

 P
u

b
lic

 R
e

la
ti
o

n
s

2
0

2
,0

7
0

1
,6

4
0

(4
0

0
)

0
1

,6
3

0
2

0
4

,9
4

0

T
0

8
5

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
3

5
,9

9
0

3
4

0
(5

,1
0

0
)

0
2

0
0

3
1

,4
3

0

T
0

8
6

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 &

 I
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

9
1

,1
5

0
6

4
0

(5
,0

0
0

)
0

1
,3

7
0

8
8

,1
6

0

T
0

8
7

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(1
,2

2
4

,5
8

0
)

(1
2

,2
5

0
)

0
0

7
8

,2
3

0
(1

,1
5

8
,6

0
0

)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

(6
5

0
)

(1
0

6
,5

3
0

)
0

1
0

7
,1

8
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 112



8
6

A
9

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

/C
O

M
M

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

7
2

,3
7

0
7

5
0

(7
8

0
)

0
3

,3
3

0
7

5
,6

7
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
8

7
,5

2
0

0
0

0
(2

5
8

,0
0

0
)

2
9

,5
2

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
3

,2
3

0
1

0
0

0
0

(3
3

0
)

1
3

,0
0

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
3

7
4

,0
2

0
8

5
0

(7
8

0
)

0
(2

5
5

,0
0

0
)

1
1

9
,0

9
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
7

4
,0

2
0

)
(1

,3
0

0
)

0
0

2
5

6
,2

3
0

(1
1

9
,0

9
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(4

5
0

)
(7

8
0

)
0

1
,2

3
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

S
0

7
0

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
1

7
,8

5
0

5
2

0
(5

0
0

)
0

5
9

0
1

8
,4

6
0

S
0

7
1

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

ro
je

c
ts

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
5

 C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
6

 F
a

m
ily

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
0

7
7

 A
S

B
 A

c
ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 F
u

n
d

0
(7

8
0

)
0

0
7

8
0

0

S
0

7
8

 A
S

B
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r
3

3
,9

3
0

3
3

0
(2

8
0

)
0

1
,2

1
0

3
5

,1
9

0

S
0

7
9

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
5

2
0

0
0

0
0

5
2

0

S
0

8
0

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
/S

tr
a

t/
P

a
rt

/R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
(5

2
,3

0
0

)
(5

2
0

)
0

0
(1

,3
5

0
)

(5
4

,1
7

0
)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

(4
5

0
)

(7
8

0
)

0
1

,2
3

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 113



8
6

B
1

T
R

E
A

S
U

R
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

2
,4

2
3

,1
2

0
2

4
,8

3
0

(2
1

8
,1

5
0

)
0

8
7

,9
6

0
2

,3
1

7
,7

6
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
0

4
,4

9
0

6
,0

9
0

(1
2

,7
0

0
)

0
5

,4
9

0
4

0
3

,3
7

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

2
3

,8
5

0
2

0
0

0
(2

,0
5

0
)

2
1

,8
2

0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
,7

3
2

,2
8

0
1

7
,2

6
0

0
0

(8
3

,7
2

0
)

1
,6

6
5

,8
2

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
2

1
7

,6
9

0
0

0
0

(8
1

,0
1

0
)

1
3

6
,6

8
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
4

,8
0

1
,4

3
0

4
8

,2
0

0
(2

3
0

,8
5

0
)

0
(7

3
,3

3
0

)
4

,5
4

5
,4

5
0

In
c
o

m
e

(4
,8

0
1

,4
3

0
)

(3
9

,3
8

0
)

1
5

,0
0

0
0

2
8

0
,3

6
0

(4
,5

4
5

,4
5

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
8

,8
2

0
(2

1
5

,8
5

0
)

0
2

0
7

,0
3

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

0
1

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
n

c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
8

3
4

,8
7

0
7

,8
5

0
(1

7
,5

0
0

)
0

(4
6

,5
0

0
)

7
7

8
,7

2
0

T
0

0
2

 C
a

s
h

ie
ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

5
6

,0
2

0
1

,5
6

0
(1

1
,3

2
0

)
0

(4
5

,0
6

0
)

1
0

1
,2

0
0

T
0

0
3

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
7

7
8

,0
3

0
6

,3
0

0
(5

4
,6

4
0

)
0

(3
1

,5
7

0
)

6
9

8
,1

2
0

T
0

0
4

 N
N

D
R

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
1

5
,0

5
0

2
,2

3
0

(1
1

,7
7

0
)

0
(2

4
,4

0
0

)
(1

8
,8

9
0

)

T
0

0
6

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
0

0
7

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
2

6
7

,0
8

0
2

,1
8

0
(6

,7
0

0
)

0
6

,1
7

0
2

6
8

,7
3

0

T
0

0
8

 L
.H

.A
 a

n
d

 N
V

Q
 W

o
rk

8
,4

3
0

1
0

0
0

(2
7

0
)

8
,1

7
0

T
0

0
9

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
9

1
7

,2
9

0
1

8
,1

7
0

(1
0

5
,4

7
0

)
0

6
2

,9
6

0
8

9
2

,9
5

0

T
0

1
0

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
2

7
5

,9
4

0
2

,9
9

0
(5

,2
0

0
)

0
1

0
,2

4
0

2
8

3
,9

7
0

T
0

1
1

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 J
o

in
t 

T
ra

in
in

g
 P

o
s
t

2
5

,4
1

0
2

8
0

(2
,2

0
0

)
0

4
,2

5
0

2
7

,7
4

0

T
0

1
3

 P
o

lic
y
 T

re
a

s
u

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

7
,7

1
0

9
4

0
(1

0
0

)
0

5
,0

7
0

1
0

3
,6

2
0

T
0

1
5

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

5
9

,4
4

0
6

6
0

(9
5

0
)

0
9

,2
3

0
6

8
,3

8
0

U
0

8
0

 T
re

a
s
u

ry
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
R

e
h

a
rg

e
s

(3
,4

3
5

,2
7

0
)

(3
4

,3
5

0
)

0
0

2
5

6
,9

1
0

(3
,2

1
2

,7
1

0
)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

8
,8

2
0

(2
1

5
,8

5
0

)
0

2
0

7
,0

3
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 114



8
6

B
2

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
9

7
,7

1
0

2
,0

3
0

(7
,3

5
0

)
0

5
,2

1
0

1
9

7
,6

0
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

8
5

0
0

0
0

0
8

5
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

5
5

0
0

0
0

0
5

5
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
3

,9
6

0
3

4
0

0
0

(1
,1

6
0

)
3

3
,1

4
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

3
3

,0
7

0
2

,3
7

0
(7

,3
5

0
)

0
4

,0
5

0
2

3
2

,1
4

0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
3

3
,0

7
0

)
(2

,7
3

0
)

(1
3

,5
0

0
)

0
1

7
,1

6
0

(2
3

2
,1

4
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(3

6
0

)
(2

0
,8

5
0

)
0

2
1

,2
1

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

1
8

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
2

1
3

,1
3

0
1

,7
7

0
(2

0
,8

5
0

)
0

4
,0

5
0

1
9

8
,1

0
0

U
0

8
1

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(2
1

3
,1

3
0

)
(2

,1
3

0
)

0
0

1
7

,1
6

0
(1

9
8

,1
0

0
)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

(3
6

0
)

(2
0

,8
5

0
)

0
2

1
,2

1
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 115



8
6

B
3

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

4
7

3
,8

9
0

4
,5

1
0

2
2

1
,1

5
0

0
(1

6
,5

3
0

)
6

8
3

,0
2

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

7
7

,0
7

0
1

,2
2

0
(2

2
,2

0
0

)
0

1
0

0
5

6
,1

9
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

7
9

0
0

0
0

0
7

9
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
7

4
,8

2
0

1
,6

9
0

0
0

2
,7

5
0

1
7

9
,2

6
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

7
,3

5
0

0
0

0
4

,4
4

0
2

1
,7

9
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
7

4
3

,9
2

0
7

,4
2

0
1

9
8

,9
5

0
0

(9
,2

4
0

)
9

4
1

,0
5

0

In
c
o

m
e

(7
4

3
,9

2
0

)
(7

,4
3

0
)

0
0

(1
8

9
,7

0
0

)
(9

4
1

,0
5

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

0
)

1
9

8
,9

5
0

0
(1

9
8

,9
4

0
)

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

2
2

 I
T

 T
ra

in
e

r
1

6
,0

8
0

1
3

0
0

0
(7

,5
7

0
)

8
,6

4
0

T
0

2
4

 T
ra

in
in

g
1

5
5

,4
9

0
1

,3
1

0
2

0
1

,2
5

0
0

(2
,5

0
0

)
3

5
5

,5
5

0

T
0

2
5

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

3
8

4
,6

9
0

3
,9

7
0

(1
,9

0
0

)
0

3
3

,3
9

0
4

2
0

,1
5

0

T
0

2
6

 P
a

y
ro

ll
1

4
1

,2
9

0
1

,5
7

0
(4

0
0

)
0

(2
,0

2
0

)
1

4
0

,4
4

0

T
0

2
7

 P
o

lic
y
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
5

,7
3

0
1

4
0

0
0

3
3

0
1

6
,2

0
0

U
0

8
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(7
1

3
,2

8
0

)
(7

,1
3

0
)

0
0

(2
2

0
,5

7
0

)
(9

4
0

,9
8

0
)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

(1
0

)
1

9
8

,9
5

0
0

(1
9

8
,9

4
0

)
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 116



8
6

B
4

L
E

G
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

5
3

1
,7

8
0

5
,3

2
0

(1
4

,7
4

0
)

0
2

3
,4

1
0

5
4

5
,7

7
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
7

,9
5

0
1

9
0

(6
,0

0
0

)
0

8
0

3
2

,2
2

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

1
,1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
,1

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
4

,5
3

0
9

5
0

0
0

1
5

,0
6

0
1

1
0

,5
4

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

8
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
6

6
6

,1
6

0
6

,4
6

0
(2

0
,7

4
0

)
0

3
8

,5
5

0
6

9
0

,4
3

0

In
c
o

m
e

(6
6

6
,1

6
0

)
(7

,6
8

0
)

0
0

(1
6

,5
9

0
)

(6
9

0
,4

3
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

,2
2

0
)

(2
0

,7
4

0
)

0
2

1
,9

6
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

3
8

 L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
6

1
5

,0
8

0
4

,9
3

0
(2

0
,7

4
0

)
0

3
8

,5
5

0
6

3
7

,8
2

0

U
0

8
3

 L
e

g
a

l 
In

te
rn

a
l 
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(6
1

5
,0

8
0

)
(6

,1
5

0
)

0
0

(1
6

,5
9

0
)

(6
3

7
,8

2
0

)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

(1
,2

2
0

)
(2

0
,7

4
0

)
0

2
1

,9
6

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 117



8
6

B
5

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
 S

R
V

S
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

O
T

H
E

R
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

8
7

4
,1

0
0

8
,8

7
0

(7
8

,3
3

0
)

0
6

9
,3

5
0

8
7

3
,9

9
0

P
re

m
is

e
s

6
0

4
,7

1
0

1
3

,0
3

0
(1

6
,0

0
0

)
0

7
,0

0
0

6
0

8
,7

4
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
7

2
,0

7
0

4
,6

0
0

(3
7

,0
3

0
)

0
8

,9
8

0
3

4
8

,6
2

0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

7
9

0
0

0
0

0
7

9
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
9

7
,6

7
0

5
,9

5
0

0
0

(4
7

,8
1

0
)

5
5

5
,8

1
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
2

5
4

,7
9

0
0

0
0

(8
8

,4
2

0
)

1
6

6
,3

7
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

,7
0

4
,1

3
0

3
2

,4
5

0
(1

3
1

,3
6

0
)

0
(5

0
,9

0
0

)
2

,5
5

4
,3

2
0

In
c
o

m
e

(3
,0

3
5

,7
4

0
)

(3
0

,4
3

0
)

3
,7

5
0

0
5

0
8

,1
0

0
(2

,5
5

4
,3

2
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(3
3

1
,6

1
0

)
2

,0
2

0
(1

2
7

,6
1

0
)

0
4

5
7

,2
0

0
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

4
8

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
O

ff
ic

e
9

9
,8

3
0

9
2

0
(1

,3
4

0
)

0
8

0
0

1
0

0
,2

1
0

T
0

5
1

 M
a

il
2

2
9

,4
3

0
2

,3
1

0
(1

6
,1

8
0

)
0

9
,1

9
0

2
2

4
,7

5
0

T
0

5
2

 T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

s
2

0
4

,9
0

0
1

,8
9

0
0

0
(1

0
,4

8
0

)
1

9
6

,3
1

0

T
0

5
4

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

1
,0

3
1

,1
0

0
1

6
,1

3
0

(5
0

,6
7

0
)

0
(3

0
,7

4
0

)
9

6
5

,8
2

0

T
0

5
5

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
1

,1
3

4
,9

0
0

1
1

,0
9

0
(5

9
,4

2
0

)
0

(1
9

,5
6

0
)

1
,0

6
7

,0
1

0

U
0

8
4

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
In

t 
R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

(3
,0

3
1

,7
7

0
)

(3
0

,3
2

0
)

0
0

5
0

7
,9

9
0

(2
,5

5
4

,1
0

0
)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
(3

3
1

,6
1

0
)

2
,0

2
0

(1
2

7
,6

1
0

)
0

4
5

7
,2

0
0

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 118



8
6

B
6

IT
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

8
8

9
,2

2
0

9
,1

4
0

(5
2

,3
9

0
)

0
(1

5
,2

6
0

)
8

3
0

,7
1

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

8
,0

5
0

1
9

0
0

0
(1

,3
9

0
)

6
,8

5
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
2

0
,1

5
0

7
,0

1
0

9
,0

0
0

0
(3

,3
5

0
)

4
3

2
,8

1
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

2
,1

9
0

0
0

0
0

2
,1

9
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

4
8

9
,1

2
0

4
,8

5
0

0
0

(5
1

,3
9

0
)

4
4

2
,5

8
0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
5

4
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

(9
8

,1
6

0
)

4
4

1
,8

4
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
2

,3
4

8
,7

3
0

2
1

,1
9

0
(4

3
,3

9
0

)
0

(1
6

9
,5

5
0

)
2

,1
5

6
,9

8
0

In
c
o

m
e

(2
,0

1
7

,1
2

0
)

(2
0

,2
9

0
)

0
0

(1
1

9
,5

7
0

)
(2

,1
5

6
,9

8
0

)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

3
3

1
,6

1
0

9
0

0
(4

3
,3

9
0

)
0

(2
8

9
,1

2
0

)
0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
0

4
7

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 &

 G
IS

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

3
3

1
,6

1
0

3
,8

8
0

(1
7

,2
0

0
)

0
(1

0
2

,2
8

0
)

2
1

6
,0

1
0

T
0

4
9

 D
s
k
to

p
 &

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
8

0
5

,6
1

0
3

,4
1

0
(9

,5
2

0
)

0
(7

5
,8

0
0

)
7

2
3

,7
0

0

T
0

5
0

 H
e

lp
d

e
s
k
 &

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

3
5

6
,1

3
0

4
,0

2
0

1
2

,9
9

0
0

(2
,3

6
0

)
3

7
0

,7
8

0

T
0

5
3

 C
o

p
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

1
6

5
,6

4
0

2
,9

5
0

(2
1

,9
9

0
)

0
1

6
,4

0
0

1
6

3
,0

0
0

T
0

5
9

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
 &

 S
y
s
te

m
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
4

5
4

,1
4

0
4

,5
6

0
(5

,8
1

0
)

0
(9

,6
2

0
)

4
4

3
,2

7
0

T
0

6
0

 P
o

lic
y
 I

T
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

1
0

5
,4

6
0

1
,0

3
0

(8
6

0
)

0
(8

,5
8

0
)

9
7

,0
5

0

T
0

6
1

 W
e

b
s
it
e

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
7

6
,8

3
0

7
0

0
(5

0
0

)
0

7
,3

0
0

8
4

,3
3

0

T
0

6
2

 E
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

o
s
ts

4
7

,5
7

0
4

7
0

(5
0

0
)

0
5

,5
5

0
5

3
,0

9
0

U
0

8
5

 I
T

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
R

e
h

a
rg

e
s

(2
,0

1
1

,3
8

0
)

(2
0

,1
2

0
)

0
0

(1
1

9
,7

3
0

)
(2

,1
5

1
,2

3
0

)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
3

3
1

,6
1

0
9

0
0

(4
3

,3
9

0
)

0
(2

8
9

,1
2

0
)

0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

Page 119



8
6

B
7

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
O

T
H

E
R

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E

2
0

1
0

-1
1

IN
F

L
A

T
IO

N
R

E
C

U
R

R
IN

G
N

O
N

-R
E

C
U

R
R

IN
G

A
D

J
U

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
2

0
1

1
-1

2

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

1
0

4
,3

9
0

1
,0

8
0

(3
3

0
)

0
5

,6
7

0
1

1
0

,8
1

0

P
re

m
is

e
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

p
p

lie
s
 &

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

2
,3

4
0

0
0

0
0

2
,3

4
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

0
0

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

3
2

,9
5

0
3

1
0

0
0

1
,4

8
0

3
4

,7
4

0

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
1

4
0

,0
8

0
1

,3
9

0
(3

3
0

)
0

7
,1

5
0

1
4

8
,2

9
0

In
c
o

m
e

(1
4

0
,0

8
0

)
(1

,4
0

0
)

0
0

(6
,8

1
0

)
(1

4
8

,2
9

0
)

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

0
(1

0
)

(3
3

0
)

0
3

4
0

0

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 B

y

T
3

0
1

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

1
4

0
,0

6
0

1
,3

9
0

(3
3

0
)

0
7

,1
5

0
1

4
8

,2
7

0

T
3

0
2

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

n
t 

R
e

c
h

a
rg

e
(1

4
0

,0
6

0
)

(1
,4

0
0

)
0

0
(6

,8
1

0
)

(1
4

8
,2

7
0

)

N
e

t 
C

o
s

t
0

(1
0

)
(3

3
0

)
0

3
4

0
0

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

N
E

W
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L
S

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

O
F

F
IC

E

Page 120



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

S
C

H
E

M
E

S
 L

IS
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
IN

 K
E

Y
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 T

H
E

M
E

S
L

e
a

d
D

e
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

O
ri

g
in

a
l

N
e

w
 B

id
s

T
o

ta
l

F
u

tu
re

O
ff

ic
e

r
2

0
1

0
/1

1
2

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

1
/1

2
2

0
1

2
/1

3
2

0
1

3
/1

4
Y

e
a

rs

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 C

IT
Y

1
S

e
rv

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

to
ra

g
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
E

4
0

,0
0

0
4

0
,0

0
0

T
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

rv
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
to

ra
g

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h

e
 m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
s
e

rv
e

rs
 n

o
w

 r
e

a
c
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 u

s
e

fu
l 

lif
e

2
IT

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
ta

ff
 R

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

P
E

3
7

,5
0

0
3

7
,5

0
0

T
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

IT
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

u
te

r 
s
o

ft
w

a
re

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
lif

y
 a

s
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

3
P

C
 &

 M
o

b
ile

 D
e

v
ic

e
s
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

E
1

0
0

,0
0

0
1

0
0

,0
0

0
T

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
o

lli
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
s
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 P

C
s

4
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
P

E
3

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0

A
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 b

a
n

d
w

id
th

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

te
 s

it
e

s
 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

5
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 C
o

m
p

lie
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
G

C
S

x
 &

 P
C

I 
D

S
S

P
E

4
8

,0
0

0
4

8
,0

0
0

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

th
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 &

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 &

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

.

T
h

is
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
e

  
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
S

e
c
u

re
 I

n
te

rn
e

t.
  

S
u

c
h

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

a
s
 m

o
re

 G
o

v
t 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
lin

e
 &

 c
o

n
n

e
c
t 

to
 t

h
a

t 

n
e

tw
o

rk
.

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 C

it
y

0
3

7
,5

0
0

2
1

8
,0

0
0

2
5

5
,5

0
0

0
0

0

A
C

H
IE

V
IN

G
 E

X
C

E
L

L
E

N
C

E
 I

N
 P

U
B

L
IC

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1
C

a
p

it
a

lis
e

d
 S

ta
ff

 C
o

s
ts

A
S

2
6

1
,0

0
0

2
6

1
,0

0
0

2
6

1
,0

0
0

T
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

c
e

rt
a

in
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

r 
a

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 

q
u

a
lif

y
 a

s
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

n
g

in
e

e
rs

, 
a

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
u

rv
e

y
o

rs

2
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

F
ra

n
k
in

g
 M

a
c
h

in
e

J
S

1
7

,0
0

0
1

7
,0

0
0

T
o

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

ra
n

k
in

g
 m

a
c
h

in
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 (

a
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
) 

to
 r

e
a

c
h

 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 l
im

it
 u

n
d

e
r 

R
o

y
a

l 

M
a

il 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
- 

A
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 E

x
c

e
ll

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

u
b

li
c

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

0
2

6
1

,0
0

0
1

7
,0

0
0

2
7

8
,0

0
0

2
6

1
,0

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
0

2
9

8
,5

0
0

2
3

5
,0

0
0

5
3

3
,5

0
0

2
6

1
,0

0
0

0
0

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
K

e
y

 T
a

b
le

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

T
re

a
s
u

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
A

S

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
J
S

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

IT
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
P

E

W
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 i
s

 t
ry

in
g

 t
o

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 -

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 A

N
D

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 Y
E

A
R

S

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 -

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - RESOURCES APPENDIX 3

Existing Charge Recommended Charge

from 01/04/2011

Fee VAT Total Fee VAT Total

£  p £    p £     p £  p £    p £     p

A SUPPLY OF PHOTOCOPIES

Monochrome  A4 0.17 0.03 0.20 0.17 0.03 0.20

                         A3 0.35 0.05 0.40 0.33 0.07 0.40

Colour              A4 1.30 0.20 1.50 1.25 0.25 1.50

                         A3 2.61 0.39 3.00 2.50 0.50 3.00

B HIRE OF COMMITTEE ROOMS AT CIVIC CENTRE

For official and quasi-official purposes

(as determined by Committee) No Charge No Charge

Other Organisations

   Committee Room A - Bad Homburg 44.00 -     44.00 46.00 -      46.00

   (1/2 day up to 7.30pm)

   Committee Room B - Rennes 55.00 -     55.00 58.00 -      58.00

   (1/2 day up to 7.30pm)

A & B - Bad Homburg & Rennes ( as one room ) 110.00 -     110.00 115.00 -      115.00

   (1/2 day up to 7.30pm)

   (special charge after 8pm to be negotiated)

   Morning Coffee (Per cup) 0.61 0.09 0.70 0.62 0.13 0.75

   Afternoon Tea (Per cup) 0.43 0.07 0.50 0.46 0.09 0.55

C DATA PROTECTION ACT ENQUIRIES

(Maximum subject to Data Protection Act) 10.00 - 10.00 10.00 -      10.00

D COUNCIL MINUTES

Inclusion on mailing list (per annum) for:

1 Council Agenda/Committee Minutes 42.00 - 42.00 44.00 - 44.00

2 Planning Committee Agenda 98.00 - 98.00 103.00 - 103.00

3 Executive 70.00 - 70.00 73.00 - 73.00

4 Other Committee/Sub-committee Agenda 42.00 - 42.00 44.00 - 44.00

E GENERAL CONVEYANCING,

SALE OF COUNCIL HOUSING, ETC.

All recharges have been based on the actual amount of work involved, the market rate and at the discretion of the

Head of Legal Services

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

EXETER CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – RESOURCES 
26 JANUARY 2010 

 
 

THE SHERIFF’S COACH 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek Members’ views on moving the City’s Sheriff’s Coach from its current location (the 

Livestock Centre at Matford) to a private collection and storage arrangement. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 As part of the preparatory work for the creation of the Customer Service Centre in 2005, the 

Sheriff’s Coach was moved from its then location (in the foyer of the reception in Phase 2) 
to a display/storage facility at the Livestock Centre.   

 
2.2 This matter was reported to both this committee in September 2005 (minute 59/05 refers) 

and the Executive in October 2005, where the resolution was that this arrangement be put 
in place for the medium term whilst alternatives were sought.   

 
2.3 At that time, the Coach was used annually to lead the Lammas Fair celebrations, and was 

also brought out for other important Civic functions (i.e. the bicentenary commemorations of 
the Battle of Trafalgar). 

 
2.4 However, a further decision was taken in 2007 that the costs of ensuring that the Coach 

was sufficiently roadworthy, as well as those of transportation and the required horses to 
enable it to take part in the Lammas procession did not justify the cost involved.  It was, 
therefore, decided that it would no longer be used. 

 
2.5 The purpose-built facility within which it is currently housed, was always considered to be a 

medium term solution, and whilst having some environmental controls, they are not 
sufficient to maintain the Coach in a stable condition.  Its condition therefore is gradually 
deteriorating and will continue to do so.  No suitable alternative location has been identified. 

 
2.6 Whilst there are no rental costs for the current arrangement, charges of approximately £500 

are incurred for the necessary electricity to run the environmental controls within the 
storage unit.  The last time that the Coach was used, the necessary works to ensure that it 
was roadworthy cost approximately £350. 

 
3. THE PROPOSAL 
 
3.1 An approach has been received from Ben Ford Carriages of Morchard Bishop to store the 

Coach at their premises (together with the lamps and liveries that go with it), and ensure 
that the Coach is maintained to a roadworthy condition in return for an annual fee of £500.   

 
3.2 Ben Ford Carriages is a private company which is run for commercial purposes in 

supplying horse drawn vehicles (and the horses) for weddings, funerals and other 
functions, including the Lord Mayor’s Show in London.  Indeed, they recently supplied the 
horse drawn carriage used as part of the Guildhall Shopping Centre’s arrival of Father 
Christmas parade in Exeter on 20 November 2010.  They also supply vehicles for the film 
and television industry and own a number of horses to pull such vehicles.  

Agenda Item 14

Page 125



 2 

   
3.3 For these purposes, they privately own a large number of different vehicles, as well as 

storing a carriage for the Liveries of London – this latter arrangement has been in place for 
over 40 years and is similar to the one now proposed for the Sheriff’s Coach. 

 
3.4 The Sheriff’s Coach will be added to their list of vehicles available to hire.  Any potential 

hirings will be first agreed with the City Council, as will the fee, which will then come to the 
Council.  

 
3.5 If the Council wished to use the Coach in the future, Ben Ford Carriages would arrange for 

the Coach to be transported to where it was wanted, as well as providing the horses 
required to pull it.  Additional charges would be levied (very much in keeping with those 
charged on the last occasion the Coach was used) but there would be no additional cost in 
making the Coach roadworthy, as at present. 

 
3.6 The Head of Corporate Customer Services has visited the site in Morchard Bishop, and 

concluded that the proposed secure storage arrangements would offer a more suitable 
environment and would maintain the vehicle for roadworthiness.   

 
4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Whilst regrettable that the Coach will no longer be stored in Exeter, nor be on display, its 

current location and storage arrangements are not suited to the long term retention, 
condition and conservation of the Coach.  The agreement would allow termination should 
the Council identify an alternative use for the Coach.   
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Members’ views are sought on the proposal outlined in this report. 
 
 
 
HEAD OF CORPORATE CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES DIRECTORATE 

 

 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
None. 
 

Page 126



Agenda Item 15

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 137

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Audit Plan 2010/11
	7 Certification Work Report 2009/10
	8 Revenue Budget Proposals 2011/12
	Revenue Budget report app 1
	Revenue Budget report app 2
	Revenue Budget report app 3
	Revenue Budget Report app 4
	Revenue Budget report app 5
	Revenue Budget report app 6

	9 Capital Programme 2011/12-2013/14
	Capital Monitoring Appendix 1
	Capital Monitoring Appendix 2
	Capital Monitoring Appendix 3
	Capital Monitoring Appendix 4
	Capital Monitoring Appendix 5
	Capital Monitoring Appendix 6

	10 Treasury Management Strategy 2011/12
	11 Licensing the Guildhall for Weddings and Civil Partnerships
	12 Non-Housing AIM Budget 2011/12
	111SCR1 Aim budget Appendix 1

	13 Estimates 2011/12
	Estimates - Resources Appendix 1
	Estimates - Resources Appendix 2
	Estimates - Resources Appendix 3

	14 The Sheriff's Coach
	15 Restructure of the Accounts Payable and Cashiering Services
	Proposed restructure - Finance 2011 APPENDIX 1
	Proposed restructure - Financial Services APPENDIX 2

	16 Staffing - Housing Benefits
	Housing benefits Staffing Appendix A


